
 
 
 

MINUTES REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
 

DECLARATION OF A QUORUM 
 

President Bissell called the meeting to order at 10:30 A.M.  Directors present were John Boyle,  Treasurer, Ken 
Brown, Secretary, Staff present were General Manager Jeff Gouveia and Office Manager Judi Silber.  Public 
present were Robert Fraser and Diane Lundquist, via teleconference.  Absent with notice Gunnar Thordarson, 
Director. 

 
 

Public comments on agenda items will be limited to 3 minutes or otherwise at the discretion of the Board Chair. 
 
 

PUBLIC FORUM 
 

Any member of the public may address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the 
Board’s jurisdiction provided the matter is not on the agenda or pending before the Board. 

 

BOARD BUSINESS 
 

1. The Board will consider adoption of the January 21, 20 Board Meeting minutes 
 
 Motion Boyle Second Brown to approve the January 21, 2020 Minutes as presented. 
 AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown 
 NOES:   
 ABSENT:  Thordarson 
 MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
2. Board Vacancy – Government Code Section 1780 – Remaining Members of the Board to Consider 

Appointment to Fill The Vacancy from Qualified List of Candidates – Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 

 Vice President, Stefaniya Becking resigned from the Board of Directors at the last meeting on January 21, 
2020.  The District elected to follow the Vacancy Policy and appoint a qualified candidate.  The District e-
blasted it’s customers via Constant Contact, put a Notice of Vacancy in the local Cub Reporter, posted the 
Notice of Vacancy locally at the library, post office, and Sheriff’s office.    The District received applications 
from Robert Fraser, Diane Lundquist, and Chris Smith.  All three candidates were well qualified and 
knowledgeable regarding business generally with some having experience with wastewater permitting and 
the operations of water and wastewater systems.  General Manager Gouveia conveyed to the candidates 
who were not appointed that he hoped they will consider resubmitting their applications in the future when 
new vacancies occur.  Discussion ensued on the qualifications of each candidate. 

 
 Motion Bissell Second Brown to appoint Diane Lundquist, a retired civil engineer, as the new Director to fill the 

remaining term for Stefaniya Becking, which expires on 12-01-2021. 
  

AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT:  Thordarson 
 MOTION CARRIED 
 

Bear Valley Water District ▪ 441 Creekside Drive ▪ P.O. Box 5027 ▪ Bear Valley, CA 95223 ▪ Phone: (209) 753 - 2112 



 
 

3. Manager’s Report  –  General Manager 
 
 See Attachment. 

 
4. Financial Report  –  General Manager 

 
4.1 P&L and Balance Sheet Reports - Discussion and Possible Action Item 

 
  Motion Boyle Second Brown to accept the P & L and Balance Sheet as presented. 
  AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT:  Thordarson 
  MOTION CARRIED 
 

4.2 Accounts Payable Report - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 
 Motion Boyle Second Brown to accept the Accounts Payable Reports are presented. 
 AYES:  Bissell, Boyle, Brown 
 NOES:   

ABSENT:  Thordarson 
 MOTION CARRIED 
 

4.3 A/R & Aging Reports – Discussion 
 
The ending Accounts Receivable balance as of March 12, 2020 was a credited balance of  
$32,092.87.  The previous year had a credit balance of $18,739.74.   
 

 
5. Board Member Reports 

 
 GM Gouveia will present the preliminary budget at the June meeting. 
 
 The next board meeting will be on Tuesday, June 23rd at 9:00 A.M.  
 
 Supervisor Terry Woodrow will swear in Diane Lundquist at the next meeting on June 23, 2020. 
 
 Office Manager Silber will send Diane Lundquist the link for the Fair Political Practices Commission for the Form 

700 and the link for the AB1234 training. 
 
 President Bissell adjourned the meeting at 12:15 P.M. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bear Valley Water District ▪ 441 Creekside Drive ▪ P.O. Box 5027 ▪ Bear Valley, CA 95223 ▪ Phone: (209) 753 - 2112 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  MARCH 15, 2020 
TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  MANAGER’S REPORT 

__________________________________________________________________ 

1. Collections, Treatment & Disposal Operations - Update 

a. Flows - Influent Flows & Pond Transfers  

a. Volumes - Storage, Capacity & Disposal 

Transferred to PR (MG) Volume of water moved from treatment to storage 0.365 (MG). 

Current storage volume = 7066.7 = 6.02 MG =7.9% (3/12/2020).  GM foresees no surface discharge in 2020 

nor any challenges emptying the reservoir. 

2. Permit Compliance & Monitoring & Reporting Programs (MRPs) - Update 

a. WDR MRP - Land Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Status Matrix – All Monthly Reporting Submitted On-Time 

b. NPDES MRP – Surface Water Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Status Matrix – All Monthly Reporting Submitted On-Time 

ii. NPDES Permit Renewal – Preparing for February 1, 2021 Submission 

i. Report of Waste Discharge – Due February 1, 2021 

ii. Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan – February 1, 2021 

iii. Anti-degradation Analysis – To Relax Seasonal Discharge Prohibition  

3. Other 

a. DSOD Inundation Map & Emergency Action Plan (EAP) – Update 

GM reported that the inundation maps had been submitted to the Department of Safety of Dams 

and 

one minor correction had been requested be addressed prior to approval.  Mead & Hunt, 

contracted by the District to prepare the maps completed the correction and the maps have 

been re-submitted and are awaiting approval.  Once approved, the maps will be combined with 

the District’s draft Emergency Action Plan (EAP), to be prepared by the General Manager, and 

submitted to the California Department of Emergency Services (OES) for approval.   The deadline 

for the District’s submission of its draft EAP is January 1, 2021. 



 
  

 

b. Alpine County Wildfire Risk Mitigation Plan – Feb 26 Public Workshop 

Alpine County Wildfire Risk Mitigation reduces risks and protects resources throughout 

the county.  The WRMP will identify the important resources and assets within the county that 

are important to protect and develop GIS maps.  With this plan, the county will go after grants 

to fund the plan.  GM attended the public workshop and remains engaged in the process. 

 

c. Alpine County Public Health Brief 

GM is following the public health briefs from Alpine County Health Office Richard O. Johnson. 

 

d. COVID-19 Guidance for Wastewater Workers 

The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) recently released guidance for 

wastewater workers, reporting that the coronavirus has been found to be removed from the 

treatment process  through conventional disinfection already occurring at treatment facilities. 

The Water Environment Federation (WEF) has released the Water Professional’s Guide to COVID19.  

 

e. Other 

GM stated that the District has an opportunity to escalate the permit cycle of June 2020.  He  

recommended that the Board support submitting the Report of Waste Discharge in FY 2019-20 

instead of as previously budgeted in FY 20-21.   

 

 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  JUNE 23, 2020 
TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

__________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

Established by the California Legislature in 1963 recognizing that boundary determinations to discourage sprawl 
and encourage orderly government are best regulated at the local level, Local Agency Formation 
Commissions (LAFCO) are California regional service planning agencies responsible for approving, establishing, 
expanding, reorganizing, and, in limited circumstances, dissolving cities and special districts and their municipal 
service areas to meet current and future community needs.  
 
Known commonly today as the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 which 
added significant reforms to the original law, LAFCOs have both regulatory and planning powers.  LAFCOs use 
their planning powers to influence land use by adopting and revising “Spheres of Influence” documents which 
establish a city or special district’s future boundary and service areas. LAFCOs regulate by reviewing and acting 
on proposals to change boundaries.  These powers are generally exercised in response to applications filed by 
other local agencies, landowners or registered voters. LAFCOs are also allowed to initiate certain proposals if 
consistent with a recommendation from its own planning studies, such as establishing, consolidating, or even 
dissolving special districts.   
 
LAFCOs control nine types of boundary changes: annexations, detachments, dis-incorporations, dissolutions, 
formations, incorporations, mergers, consolidations, subsidiary districts, and reorganizations.   Most relevantly, 
LAFCOs are tasked with preparing and approving both Spheres of Influence and Municipal Service Reviews 
(MSR) typically conducted on all special districts every five years.  In conducting an MSR, LAFCOs must review 
all of the agencies that provide the public services within a study area.  
 
Since 1972, state law made it possible for LAFCOs to expand their memberships by adding two representatives 
of independent special districts. Today, just over half of all LAFCOs have commissioners representing special 
districts.  Originally, state law required the county governments to pay for LAFCOs.  However, with the passage 
of AB 2838 (Hertzberg, 2000), the Legislature required cities and independent special districts to share the 
counties’ fiscal burden.  Each sector (county, city, district) typically pays one-third of a LAFCO’s budget.   
 
The process of seating special district representatives was streamlined through legislation sponsored by the 
California Special Districts Association (CSDA) and the California Association of Local Agency Formation 
Commission (Cal LAFCO) in 2017.  Assembly Bill 979 (Lackey), simplified the process by enabling districts to solicit 
a vote for representation by a written request of a district representing 10% or more of the assessed value of 
taxable property in the county.  If a majority of committee members support representation, districts are seated 
on the Commission.  

As discussed above, LAFCOs impact special district governance and operations whether special districts have 
representation on LAFCO or not.  While there are no developing or pending LAFCO actions in Alpine County or 
anticipated to impact the Bear Valley Water District directly, the potential for a LAFCO MSR or an application 
by a landowner or other local agency still exists.  Through the important work recently performed by CSDA in 
Alpine County on behalf of Kirkwood Meadows PUD, Markleeville PUD and the Bear Valley Water District, the 
District should consider the current opportunity to secure representation on the County LAFCO commission to 
influence future LAFCO regulatory and planning decisions.  



 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

ACTION: 

 

1. Review and comment on potential BVWD representation on the Alpine County LAFCO and the 
enclosed cost worksheet. 
 

2. Provide staff direction on the development of a resolution approving LAFCO membership and the 
District’s share of cost. 
 

 

Attachments:  

- Memo from Dane Wadle dated March 18, 2020 

- Alpine County LAFCO Operational Costs with Proposed Special District Costs 

- Alpine County Official LAFCO Website  

- CSDA Announcement RE: Tuolumne County Special Districts & LAFCO 

- CSDA LAFCO Representation White Paper 

 

 















 
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL DISTRICT 
REPRESENTATION 

ON LAFCO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION 
Last updated: February 14, 2018 

  
 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DISCLAIMER: 
This publication is provided for general information only and is not offered or intended as legal advice. Readers should 

seek the advice of an attorney when confronted with legal issues and attorneys should perform an independent 
evaluation of the issues raised in these materials. 

 
 

COPYRIGHT: 
Copyright © 2018 by the California Special Districts Association (CSDA), Sacramento, California 

All rights reserved. This publication, or parts thereof, may not be reproduced in any form without CSDA’s permission 
 
  



 

Page 2 of 19 
 

 
 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  
PAGE 3 

• Introduction 
• Who Generally Pays for LAFCO Operations? 
• Do Special Districts, Cities, and Counties Always Need to Split Costs 

Equally? 
PAGE 4 

• What are the Benefits of Representation? 
• Are There Any Additional Considerations? 

PAGE 5 
• Where Should We Start? 

PAGE 6 
• Map of LAFCOs with Special District Representation 

PAGE 7 
• Table of Apportionment of LAFCO Net Operating Expenses Between 

General Membership Classes and Between Agencies Within Each 
Membership Class 

PAGE 11 
• Appendix of relevant statutes 

 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Page 3 of 19 
 

 
 
Since 1972, state law made it possible for Local Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCOs) to 
expand their memberships by adding two representatives of independent special districts. 
Today, just over half of all LAFCOs have commissioners representing special districts. LAFCO 
commissioners are appointed as follows: 

 
• Two County Supervisors: Each county’s board of supervisors appoints two of its 

members to serve on LAFCO. The county supervisors also select a third supervisor as 
an alternate. 

• Two City Councilmembers: In counties with two or more cities, there is a “city selection 
committee” composed of the cities’ mayors. The city selection committee appoints two 
elected city officials (city council members or mayors) and one alternate to serve on 
LAFCO. 

• Two Special District Board Members: In 30 counties, the LAFCOs also have special 
district members. An “independent special district selection committee” composed of 
the presiding officers of each independent district appoints two district board members 
and one alternate to serve on LAFCO. 

• One Public Member: The six (or four) appointed LAFCO commissioners choose the 
seventh (or fifth) commissioner, a public member, and one alternate. Professors, civic 
activists, and former elected officials often serve as public members on LAFCOs. 

 
Who Generally Pays for LAFCO Operations? 
Originally, state law required the county governments to pay for LAFCOs. With the passage of 
AB 2838 (Hertzberg, 2000), the Legislature required cities and independent special districts to 
share the counties’ fiscal burden. Each sector (county, city, district) typically pays one-third of a 
LAFCO’s budget. Where there is no independent special district representation on the LAFCO, 
the county and cities split the funding responsibility. Statutory formulas allocate the cities’ 
default share among the cities and the independent special districts’ share among the districts 
based on each agency’s annual revenue. However, local officials can negotiate alternative 
formulas. 

 
State law allows a LAFCO to charge fees to recover its costs of reviewing boundary changes 
and other actions. Most LAFCOs require the proponents to pay these fees when they apply for 
the boundary change, regardless of whether the applicants are voters, property owners, or local 
agencies. 

 
Do Special Districts, Cities, and Counties Always Need to Split Costs Equally? 
No. Some LAFCOs have special membership formulas. Three counties, Alpine, Mariposa, and 
Trinity have no incorporated cities, so their LAFCOs consist of three county supervisors and two 
public members. The three supervisors appoint the other two commissioners and one alternate. 

 
Some counties, such as Sierra County, have only one incorporated city. Their LAFCOs have 
two county supervisors, one city council member, and two public members. The three elected 
officials appoint the two members of the public and one alternate. 



 

Page 4 of 19 
 

 
 
For reasons relating to local politics, geography, and population, some LAFCOs have unique 
membership/funding formulas. For example, in Butte County, special districts collectively pay 10 
percent of the LAFCO budget, in Sonoma County they pay 20 percent of the budget, and in San Diego 
County they pay two-sevenths.   
 
In Santa Clara County, LAFCO splits costs between the cities, county, and special districts 
evenly. However, the special district portion is divided based upon an alternative formula. Santa 
Clara Valley Water District pays 50 percent of the special district share and is guaranteed one of 
the two special district seats on the LAFCO. The remaining districts split the other 50 percent of 
the special district share based upon budget size and elect the second district representative. 

 
For a detailed breakdown of each LAFCO’s representation and funding formulas, please see the 
attached document. 

 
What are the Benefits of Representation? 
LAFCOs impact special district governance and operations whether special districts have 
representation on LAFCO or not. When determining whether to acquire representation on LAFCO, 
special districts may consider the following: 
 
• LAFCO is one of the very few regional forums where special districts can sit as equals in 

decision making with their peers from cities and the county. 
• Districts have a direct voice in policy development and decisions governing boundary 

changes, consolidations, annexations, formations, dissolutions, service extensions, power 
activation, and other actions of the LAFCO. 

• Districts participate in the preparation and approval and Spheres of Influence and Municipal 
Service Reviews, which are typically conducted on all special districts every five years. 

• Districts’ perspective and expertise are included in a commission that has oversight over the 
very existence and growth of special districts. 

• Demonstrating that special districts can take responsibility at the local-level and collaborate 
effectively with their local government peers through LAFCO fortifies the reputation of 
districts and protects against, forced consolidations and other mandates from the State. 

 
Are There Any Additional Considerations? 
The process to be seated on LAFCO is specified in Government Code §§ 56332 and 56332.5. 
 
Formerly, the process to be seated on LAFCO required that independent special districts within the 
county must initiate the process through a resolution. There was a one-year period for a majority of 
the independent special districts in the county to adopt the resolution. If a majority of district boards 
approved the resolution, the LAFCO would have convened an independent special district 
selection committee to select the two voting commissioners and one alternate. 
 
However, CSDA and CALAFCO co-sponsored legislation, AB 979 (Lackey) of 2017 simplified this 
bureaucratic process by allowing special districts to simply vote on LAFCO representation using an 
existing statutory process (Government Code § 56332). 
 
Now, special districts can participate on LAFCO simply by a vote of a quorum of what’s called the 
“independent special districts selection committee”. If special districts in a county do not yet have 
representation on LAFCO, then this committee has likely never convened. It consists of the 
presiding officer (board president or chair) of each independent special district in the county. If a  



 

Page 5 of 19 
 

 
 
special district’s presiding officer is unable to participate, the district may appoint an alternate 
representative from its board.  
 
A vote to determine special district representation on LAFCO is conducted by the LAFCO 
executive officer at an in-person meeting or by mail-ballot. Such a vote can be called by  
one of two methods: 
 

1. Upon written request to the LAFCO executive officer by one or more members of the 
above-referenced independent special districts selection committee representing 10 percent 
or more of the assessed value of taxable property within the county, as shown on the last 
equalized county assessment roll; or 

2. Upon adoption of a resolution by the LAFCO proposing representation of special districts 
upon the commission. 

 
Importantly, a vote on LAFCO representation is also an opportunity to appoint the special district 
representative for the Countywide Redevelopment Agency Oversight Board. The first such 
appointment must occur prior to July 15, 2018. Should the post remain unfilled by July 15th, the 
Governor may appoint any individual to that position. (Health and Safety Code § 34179)   
   
Where Should We Start? 
If you are interested in learning more about special district representation on LAFCO, you should 
start by reaching out to the Executive Officer of your county’s LAFCO. You can find a 
roster for all 58 LAFCOs at www.calafco.org. You can also speak with your local CSDA public 
affairs field coordinator who can connect you with other special district leaders in your county who 
may be interested in working with you. Find your public affairs field coordinator at www.csda.net. 

http://www.calafco.org/
http://www.csda.net/


 

Page 6 of 19 
 

Local Agency Formation Commissions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Are you 
seated on 

LAFCo? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LAFCos with 
Special District 
representation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Govern with your peers – Claim your seat on LAFCo 



 

Page 7 of 19 
 

APPORTIONMENT OF LAFCO NET OPERATING EXPENSES BETWEEN GENERAL MEMBERSHIP CLASSES AND 
BETWEEN AGENCIES WITHIN EACH MEMBERSHIP CLASS1

 
 

 
 County Cities2

 Districts3
 Govt. Code § 

County, City & Special District 
Representation [Alameda, Calaveras, 
Contra Costa, El Dorado, Humboldt, Lake, 
Mendocino, Nevada, Placer, Riverside, 
San Luis Obispo, San Mateo, Santa Cruz, 
Santa Barbara, Shasta, Sutter, Ventura] 
Except the Following: 

 
 
 
 

33⅓% 

 

 

33⅓% 
Individual apportionments in 
proportion to each city’s total 

revenues 

 
33⅓% 

Individual 
apportionments in 
proportion to each 

district’s total revenues 

 
 
 
 

56381(b)(1)(A) 

Butte 45% 45% 10% 56381(b)(4) 
 
 

Kern 

 

 
 

33⅓% 

 

 
 

33⅓% 

33⅓% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to operating 

revenues 

56381(b)(1) 
(C),(E) 

 

Los Angeles 
 

38.462% Los Angeles: 15.385% 
All Others: 23.077% 

 

23.077% 56326; 56381; 
56381.6 

Mono 50% Mammoth Lakes: 50% 0 56381(b)(4) 
 

Monterey 
 

33⅓% 
 

33⅓% 
33⅓% 

Hospital District: 25% 
All Others: 75% 

 

56381(b)(1) 
(C)-(F) 

 
 

Orange 

 
 

33⅓% 

33⅓% 
Individual apportionments 

based on population and area 
in sq. miles 

33⅓% 
Individual 

apportionments based 
on alternative formula 

 
56381(b)(1) 

(B),(C) 

 

 
 

San Diego 

 

 
 

2/7 

San Diego: 1/7 
All Others: 2/7 

Individual apportionments in 
proportion to general 

revenues 

 

 
 

2/7 

 
 

56328; 56381; 
56381.6 

Sonoma 40 % 40% 20% 56381(b)(4) 
 

San Bernardino 
 

33⅓% 
 

33⅓% 
 
 

 

33⅓% 
See Note #4 

56381(b)(1) 
(C)-(F) 



 

Page 8 of 19 
 

 

 County Cities2
 Districts3

 Govt. Code § 
 

 
 
 
 

Sacramento 

 

 
 
 
 

33⅓% 

 
 

 
33⅓% 

Sacramento: 50% 
All Others 50% 

33⅓% 
SMUD: 50% 

All Others: 50% 
Individual 

apportionments 
except SMUD based 
on five yr. average of 

total revenues 

 
 
 
 
56326.5; 56381; 

56381.6 

 

Santa Clara 
 

33⅓% San Jose: 16.7% 
All Others: 16.7% 

 

33⅓% 
Santa Clara 
Valley Water 
District pays 

largest portion 

56327; 56381; 
56381.6 

County & City Representation (No 
Districts) [Amador, Del Norte, Glenn, 
Lassen, Madera, Merced, Modoc, 
Plumas, Stanislaus, Sierra, Yuba] 
Except the Following: 

 

 

50% 
 

50% 
Individual apportionments in 
proportion to total revenues 

 

 
 

- 

 

 
 

56381(b)(2) 

 

Colusa Based on % population of the cities 
and unincorporated area 

 

- 
 

56381(b)(4)  

 
 

Kings 

 

 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to population 

 

 
 

- 

 
 

56381(b)(1)(B), 
(2) 

 
 
 
 

Napa 

 
 
 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual apportionments in 

proportion to population 
(60%) and general tax 

revenues (40%) 

 
 
 
 

- 

 
 

 
56381(b)(1)(B), 

(2) 

 

 
 

San Joaquin 

 

 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to population 

 

 
 

- 

 
 

56381(b)(1)(B), 
(2) 



 

Page 9 of 19 
 

 

 County Cities2
 Districts3

 Govt. Code § 
 

 
 

Solano 

 

 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to general 

revenues 

 

 
 

- 

 
 

56381(b)(1)(B), 
(2) 

 

Tulare Based on % population of the cities and 
unincorporated area 

 

- 
 

56381(b)(4) 
 
 

 
Tuolumne 

Apportionments for the County and the 
(one) city based on the Local 

Transportation Fund per capita 
percentage. The City of Sonora currently 

pays 8.1% and the County pays the 
balance. 

 
 

 
- 

 
 

 
56381(b)(4) 

 

 
 

Yolo 

 

 
 

50% 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to general 

revenues 

 

 
 

- 

 
 

56381(b)(1)(B), 
(2) 

 
County & Special District 
Representation (No Cities) 
[Trinity] 

 

 
 

50% 

 

 
 

- 

50% 
Individual 

apportionments in 
proportion to total 

revenues 

 

 
 

56381(b)(3) 

County Representation Only (No 
Special Districts or Cities) 
[Alpine] 

 
100% 

 
- 

 
- 

 
56381(b)(3) 

San Francisco 100% County/City - 56381(b)(4) 



 

Page 10 of 20 
 

 
1 Table does not include information for the following counties: Fresno, Imperial, Inyo, Marin, Mariposa, San 

Benito, Siskiyou and Tehama. 
2 Except for the alternative methods (exceptions) noted in the table, the cities’ share is apportioned in proportion 

to each city’s total revenues, as reported in the most recent edition of the Cities Annual Report published by the 
Controller, as a percentage of the combined city revenues within a county pursuant to Section 56381(b)(1)(B) of 
the Govt. Code. 

3 Except for the alternative methods (exceptions) noted in the table, the independent special districts’ share is 
apportioned in proportion to each district’s total revenues, as reported in the most recent edition of the Special Districts 
Annual Report published by the Controller, as a percentage of the combined total district revenues within a county 
pursuant to Section 56381(b)(1)(C) and (E) of the Govt. Code. 

4 San Bernardino County special districts alternative funding formula (Adopted by Special District Vote July 2002; 
Amended by Special District Vote March 2, 2010): 

1. Healthcare (Hospital) Districts shall be limited to payment of $1,500 regardless of Total Revenue. 
2. Those districts with Total Revenue of more than $50,000,000 shall pay $30,000. 
3. Those districts with Total Revenue between $20,000,000 and $50,000,000 shall pay $20,000. 
4. Those districts with Total Revenue between $5,000,000 and $20,000,000 shall pay $10,000. 
5. Those districts with Total Revenue between $2,000,000 and $5,000,000 shall contribute an amount not to 

exceed $5,000. 
6. Those districts with Total Revenue of less than $2,000,000 shall be apportioned an amount to be determined by 

the ratio of each district's Total Revenue as compared to the Total Revenues whose share does not exceed 
$5,000 



 

Page 11 of 20 
 

GOVERNMENT CODE – (GOV) 
CHAPTER 2. Formation of Commission and Selection of Commissioners [56325 - 56337] 
(Chapter 2 added by Stats. 1985, Ch. 541, Sec. 3.) 

 
56325. 
There is hereby continued in existence in each county a local agency formation commission. Except as 
otherwise provided in this chapter, the commission shall consist of members appointed as follows: 
(a) Two appointed by the board of supervisors from their own membership. The board of supervisors shall 
appoint a third supervisor who shall be an alternate member of the commission. The alternate member 
may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who disqualifies 
himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. 
If the office of a regular county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the former regular county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county 
member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) Two appointed by the cities in the county, each of whom shall be a mayor or council member, 
appointed by the city selection committee. The city selection committee shall also appoint one alternate 
member who shall also be a mayor or council member and shall be appointed and serve pursuant to 
Section 56335. The city selection committee is encouraged to appoint members to fairly represent the 
diversity of the cities in the county, with respect to population and geography. 
(c) Two presiding officers or members of legislative bodies of independent special districts appointed by 
the independent special district selection committee pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special 
district selection committee shall also appoint a presiding officer or member of the legislative body of an 
independent special district as an alternate member who shall be appointed and serve pursuant to 
Section 56332. The independent special district selection committee is encouraged to make 
appointments that fairly represent the diversity of the independent special districts in the county, with 
respect to population and geography. 
(d) One representing the general public appointed by the other members of the commission. The other 
members of the commission may also appoint one alternate member who shall serve pursuant to Section 
56331. Appointment of the public member and alternate public member shall be subject to the affirmative 
vote of at least one of the members appointed by each of the other appointing authorities. Whenever a 
vacancy occurs in the public member or alternate public member position, the commission shall cause a 
notice of vacancy to be posted as provided in Section 56158. A copy of this notice shall be sent to the 
clerk or secretary of the legislative body of each local agency within the county. Final appointment to fill 
the vacancy may not be made for at least 21 days after the posting of the notice. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 2. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56325.1. 
While serving on the commission, all commission members shall exercise their independent judgment on 
behalf of the interests of residents, property owners, and the public as a whole in furthering the purposes 
of this division. Any member appointed on behalf of local governments shall represent the interests of the 
public as a whole and not solely the interests of the appointing authority. This section does not require the 
abstention of any member on any matter, nor does it create a right of action in any person. 
(Added by Stats. 2000, Ch. 761, Sec. 57. Effective January 1, 2001.) 

 
56326. 
In Los Angeles County, the commission shall consist of nine members, appointed as follows: 
(a) Two appointed by the board of supervisors from its own membership. The board of supervisors shall 
also appoint a third supervisor who shall be an alternate member of the commission. The alternate 
member may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. 
If the office of the regular county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the former regular county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county 
member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) One appointed by the board of supervisors, who shall not be a member of the board of supervisors but 
who shall be a resident of the San Fernando Valley Statistical Area, as defined in subdivision (c) of 
Section 11093. The board of supervisors shall also appoint an alternate member who shall not be a 



 

Page 12 of 20 
 

member of the board of supervisors but who is a resident of the San Fernando Valley Statistical Area. 
The alternate member may serve and vote in place of the member appointed pursuant to this subdivision 
if that member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the 
commission. 
If the office of the regular member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of 
the former regular member until the appointment and qualification of a regular member to fill the vacancy. 
(c) Two appointed by the cities in the county, each of whom shall be a mayor or council member, 
appointed by the city selection committee. The city selection committee shall also appoint one alternate 
member who shall also be a mayor or council member and shall be appointed and serve pursuant to 
Section 56335. The city selection committee is encouraged to appoint members to fairly represent the 
diversity of the cities in the county, with respect to population and geography. 
(d) One appointed by the presiding officer of the legislative body of a city in the county having a 
population in excess of 30 percent of the total population of the county who is a member of the legislative 
body of the city. The presiding officer of the legislative body shall also appoint an alternate member who 
is a member of the legislative body. The alternate member may serve and vote in place of the member 
appointed pursuant to this subdivision if the member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from 
participating in a meeting of the commission. 
If the office of the regular member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of 
the former regular member until the appointment and qualification of a regular member to fill the vacancy. 
(e) Two presiding officers or members of legislative bodies of independent special districts appointed by 
the independent special district selection committee pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special 
district selection committee shall also appoint one alternate member who shall be a presiding officer or 
member of the legislative body of an independent special district and shall be appointed and serve 
pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special district selection committee is encouraged to appoint 
members to fairly represent the diversity of the independent special districts in the county, with respect to 
population and geography. 
(f) One representing the general public appointed by the other members of the commission. The other 
members of the commission may also appoint one alternate member who shall serve pursuant to Section 
56331. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 3. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56326.5. 
In Sacramento County, the commission shall consist of seven members, appointed as follows: 
(a) Two appointed by the board of supervisors from their own membership. The board of supervisors shall 
appoint a third supervisor who shall serve as an alternate member of the commission. The alternate 
member may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular 
county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular 
county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) One appointed by the City of Sacramento who is a member of the city council, appointed by the mayor 
and confirmed by the city council. The mayor shall also appoint, subject to confirmation by the council, an 
alternate member who is a member of the city council. The alternate member may serve and vote in place 
of the regular city member if the city member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from participating 
in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular city member becomes vacant, the alternate 
member may serve and vote in place of the former regular city member until the appointment and 
qualification of a regular city member to fill the vacancy. 
(c) One appointed by the cities in the county, who is a mayor or council member appointed by the city 
selection committee. The city selection committee shall also appoint one alternate member who shall also 
be a mayor or council member and shall be appointed and serve pursuant to Section 56335. The city 
selection committee is encouraged to appoint members to fairly represent the diversity of the cities in the 
county, with respect to population and geography. 
(d) Two presiding officers or members of legislative bodies of independent special districts appointed by 
the independent special district selection committee pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special 
district selection committee shall also appoint one alternate member who shall be a presiding officer or 
member of the legislative body of an independent special district and shall be appointed and serve 
pursuant to Section 56332. The independent special district selection committee is encouraged to appoint 



 

Page 13 of 20 
 

members to fairly represent the diversity of the independent special districts in the county, with respect to 
population and geography. 
(e) One representing the general public, appointed by the other six members of the commission. The 
commission may also appoint an alternate public member who may serve and vote in the place of the 
regular public member if the regular public member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from 
participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular public member becomes vacant, 
the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular public member until the 
appointment and qualification of a regular public member to fill the vacancy. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 4. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56327. 
In Santa Clara County, the commission shall consist of five members, appointed as follows: 
(a) Two appointed by the board of supervisors from their own membership. The board of supervisors shall 
appoint a third supervisor who shall serve as an alternate member of the commission. The alternate 
member may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular 
county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular 
county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) One appointed by the city in the county having the largest population, who is a member of the 
legislative body of the city, appointed by the city council. The city council shall also appoint an alternate 
member who is a member of the legislative body of the city. The alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the regular city member if the city member is absent or disqualifies himself or herself from 
participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular city member becomes vacant, the 
alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular city member until the appointment 
and qualification of a regular city member to fill the vacancy. 
(c) One appointed by the cities in the county, who is a mayor or council member appointed by the city 
selection committee. The city selection committee shall also appoint one alternate member who shall also 
be a mayor or council member and shall be appointed and serve pursuant to Section 56335. The city 
selection committee is encouraged to appoint members to fairly represent the diversity of the cities in the 
county, with respect to population and geography. 
(d) One representing the general public, appointed by the other four, or, if the commission is enlarged 
pursuant to Section 56327.3, the other six, members of the commission. This member shall not be a 
resident of a city which is already represented on the commission. The commission may also appoint an 
alternate public member, who shall not be a resident of a city represented on the commission, and who 
may serve and vote in the place of the regular public member if the regular public member is absent or 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular 
public member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular 
public member until the appointment and qualification of a regular public member to fill the vacancy. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 5. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56327.3. 
In Santa Clara County, the commission shall be enlarged by two members if, pursuant to the provisions of 
Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 56821), the commission orders representation of special districts 
upon the commission. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 6. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56328. 
(a) In San Diego County, the commission, which consists of seven members, augmented pursuant to 
Section 56332, shall be additionally augmented by the appointment of an eighth member and that 
member shall, notwithstanding subdivision (b) of Section 56325, be a member of the legislative body of 
the city in the county having the largest population, appointed by the legislative body of that city. 
(b) The legislative body of the city shall appoint an alternate member at the same time and in the same 
manner as it appoints the regular member appointed pursuant to subdivision (a). If the regular city 
member is absent from a commission meeting, or disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a 
meeting, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the regular city member for that meeting. If 
the office of the regular city member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place 



 

Page 14 of 20 
 

of the former regular city member until the appointment and qualification of a regular city member to fill 
the vacancy. 
(Amended by Stats. 2000, Ch. 761, Sec. 61. Effective January 1, 2001.) 

 
56328.5. 
(a) In Kern County, the commission, which consists of seven members, augmented pursuant to Section 
56332, shall be additionally augmented by the appointment of an eighth member and a ninth member. 
(b) The eighth member shall, notwithstanding subdivision (b) of Section 56325, be a member of the 
legislative body of the city in the county having the largest population, appointed by the legislative body of 
that city. 
The legislative body of the city shall appoint an alternate member at the same time and in the same 
manner as it appoints the eighth regular member. If the regular city member is absent from a commission 
meeting, or disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting, the alternate member may serve 
and vote in place of the regular city member for that meeting. If the office of the regular city member 
becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place of the former regular city member 
until the appointment and qualification of a regular city member to fill the vacancy. 
(c) The ninth member shall represent the general public, but shall not be a member of the governing body 
of any local agency. The ninth member shall be appointed by the four members of the commission 
appointed by the county supervisors and the independent special district selection committee. Those 
commission members may also appoint an alternate public member, who is not a member of the 
governing body of any local agency, who may serve and vote in the place of the regular public member 
appointed pursuant to this subdivision if that regular public member is absent or disqualifies himself or 
herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. If the office of the regular public member 
appointed pursuant to this subdivision becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of that former regular public member until the appointment and qualification of a regular public 
member pursuant to this subdivision to fill the vacancy. 
(Added by Stats. 2005, Ch. 559, Sec. 1. Effective January 1, 2006.) 

 
56329. 
If there is no city in the county, the commission shall consist of five members, appointed as follows which 
may be further augmented pursuant to Sections 56332 and 56332.5: 
(a) Three appointed by the board of supervisors from their own membership. The board of supervisors 
shall appoint a fourth supervisor who is an alternate member of the commission. The alternate member 
may serve and vote in place of any supervisor on the commission who is absent or who disqualifies 
himself or herself from participating in a meeting of the commission. 
If the office of a regular county member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the former regular county member until the appointment and qualification of a regular county 
member to fill the vacancy. 
(b) Two representing the general public appointed by the other three members of the commission. 
Appointment of the public member and alternate public member shall be subject to the affirmative vote of 
at least one of the members selected by each of the other appointing authorities. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 114, Sec. 7. Effective January 1, 2016.) 

 
56331. 
When appointing a public member pursuant to Sections 56325, 56326, 56326.5, 56327, 56328, 56328.5,   
and 56329, the commission may also appoint one alternate public member who may serve and vote in 
place of a regular public member who is absent or who disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a 
meeting of the commission. The public member and the alternate public member shall be residents of the 
county of the appointing commission. 
If the office of a regular public member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place 
of the former regular public member until the appointment and qualification of a regular public member to fill 
the vacancy. 
No person appointed as a public member or alternate public member pursuant to this chapter shall be an 
officer or employee of the county or any city or district with territory in the county, provided, however, that 
any officer or employee serving on January 1, 1994, may complete the term for which he or she was 
appointed. 
(Amended by Stats. 2016, Ch. 165, Sec. 3. (AB 2910) Effective January 1, 2017.) 

javascript:submitCodesValues('56331.','6.3.2.2','2016','165','3',%20'id_6cd0f7ac-bbf3-11e6-bdd8-d5db002bdb48')


 

Page 15 of 20 
 

56331.3. 
If two or more members are absent or disqualify themselves from participating in a meeting of the 
commission, any alternate member who is authorized to serve and vote in the place of a member shall 
only have one vote. 
(Added by Stats. 1987, Ch. 1327, Sec. 4.) 

 
56332.   
(a) The independent special district selection committee shall consist of the presiding officer of the 
legislative body of each independent special district. However, if the presiding officer of an independent 
special district is unable to participate in a meeting or election of the independent special district selection 
committee, the legislative body of the district may appoint one of its members as an alternate to participate 
in the selection committee in the presiding officer’s place. Those districts shall include districts located 
wholly within the county and those containing territory within the county representing 50 percent or more of 
the assessed value of taxable property of the district, as shown on the last equalized county assessment 
roll. Each member of the committee shall be entitled to one vote for each independent special district of 
which he or she is the presiding officer or his or her alternate as designated by the governing body. 
Members representing a majority of the eligible districts shall constitute a quorum. 
(b) The executive officer shall call and give written notice of all meetings of the members of the selection 
committee. A meeting shall be called and held under one of the following circumstances: 
(1) Whenever the executive officer anticipates that a vacancy will occur within the next 90 days among the 
members or alternate member representing independent special districts on the commission. 
(2) Whenever a vacancy exists among the members or alternate member representing independent 
special districts upon the commission. 
(3) Upon receipt of a written request by one or more members of the selection committee representing 
districts having 10 percent or more of the assessed value of taxable property within the county, as shown 
on the last equalized county assessment roll. 
(4) Upon the adoption of a resolution of intention pursuant to Section 56332.5. 
(5) Upon receipt of a written request by one or more members of the selection committee notifying the 
executive officer of the need to appoint a member representing independent special districts on an 
oversight board pursuant to paragraph (3) of subdivision (j) of Section 34179 of the Health and Safety 
Code. 
(c) The selection committee shall appoint two regular members and one alternate member to the 
commission. The members so appointed shall be elected or appointed members of the legislative body of 
an independent special district residing within the county but shall not be members of the legislative body 
of a city or county. If one of the regular district members is absent from a commission meeting or 
disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting, the alternate district member may serve and 
vote in place of the regular district member for that meeting. Service on the commission by a regular 
district member shall not disqualify, or be cause for disqualification of, the member from acting on 
proposals affecting the special district on whose legislative body the member serves. The special district 
selection committee may, at the time it appoints a member or alternate, provide that the member or 
alternate is disqualified from voting on proposals affecting the district on whose legislative body the 
member serves. 
(d) If the office of a regular district member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in 
place of the former regular district member until the appointment and qualification of a regular district 
member to fill the vacancy. 
(e) A majority of the independent special district selection committee may determine to conduct the 
committee’s business by mail, including holding all elections by mailed ballot, pursuant to subdivision (f). 
(f) If the independent special district selection committee has determined to conduct the committee’s 
business by mail or if the executive officer determines that a meeting of the special district selection 
committee is not feasible, the executive officer shall conduct the business of the committee by mail. 
Elections by mail shall be conducted as provided in this subdivision. 
(1) The executive officer shall prepare and deliver a call for nominations to each eligible district. The 
presiding officer, or his or her alternate as designated by the governing body, may respond in writing by 
the date specified in the call for nominations, which date shall be at least 30 days from the date on which 
the executive officer mailed the call for nominations to the eligible district. 
(2) At the end of the nominating period, if only one candidate is nominated for a vacant seat, that candidate 
shall be deemed appointed. If two or more candidates are nominated, the executive officer shall prepare 
and deliver one ballot and voting instructions to each eligible district. The ballot shall include the names of 
all nominees and the office for which each was nominated. Each presiding officer, or his or her alternate as 
designated by the governing body, shall return the ballot to the executive officer by the date specified in 

javascript:submitCodesValues('56332.','6.3.2.2','2017','203','1',%20'id_6912cd35-e530-11e7-99d3-2f570f4f10eb')


 

Page 16 of 20 
 

the voting instructions, which date shall be at least 30 days from the date on which the executive officer 
mailed the ballot to the eligible district. 
(3) The call for nominations, ballots, and voting instructions shall be delivered by certified mail to each 
eligible district. As an alternative to the delivery by certified mail, the executive officer, with prior 
concurrence of the presiding officer or his or her alternate as designated by the governing body, may 
transmit materials by electronic mail. 
(4) If the executive officer has transmitted the call for nominations or ballots by electronic mail, the 
presiding officer, or his or her alternate as designated by the governing body, may respond to the 
executive officer by electronic mail. 
(5) Each returned nomination and ballot shall be signed by the presiding officer or his or her alternate as 
designated by the governing body of the eligible district. 
(6) For an election to be valid, at least a quorum of the special districts must submit valid ballots. The 
candidate receiving the most votes shall be elected, unless another procedure has been adopted by the 
selection committee. Any nomination and ballot received by the executive officer after the date specified is 
invalid, provided, however, that if a quorum of ballots is not received by that date, the executive officer 
shall extend the date to submit ballots by 60 days and notify all districts of the extension. The executive 
officer shall announce the results of the election within seven days of the date specified. 
(7) For a vote on special district representation to be valid, at least a quorum of the special districts must 
submit valid ballots. By majority vote of those district representatives voting on the issue, the selection 
committee shall either accept or deny representation. 
(8) All election materials shall be retained by the executive officer for a period of at least six months after 
the announcement of the election results. 
(g) For purposes of this section, “executive officer” means the executive officer or designee as authorized 
by the commission. 
(Amended by Stats. 2017, Ch. 203, Sec. 1. (AB 979) Effective January 1, 2018.) 

56332.5.   
(a) If the commission does not have representation from independent special districts on or before January 
1, 2001, the commission shall initiate proceedings for representation of independent special districts upon 
the commission if either of the following occur: 
(1) Upon receipt of a written request by one or more members of the selection committee representing 
districts having 10 percent or more of the assessed value of taxable property within the county, as shown 
on the last equalized county assessment roll. 
(2) Upon adoption of a resolution by the commission proposing representation of special districts upon the 
commission. 
(b) The commission, at its next regular meeting, shall adopt a resolution of intention. The resolution of 
intention shall state whether the proceedings are initiated by the commission or by an independent special 
district or districts, in which case, the names of those districts shall be set forth. The commission shall 
order the executive officer to call and give notice of a meeting of the independent special district selection 
committee to be held within 15 days after the adoption of the resolution in order to determine whether 
independent special districts shall accept representation on the commission and appoint independent 
special district representation pursuant to Section 56332. 
(Amended by Stats. 2017, Ch. 203, Sec. 2. (AB 979) Effective January 1, 2018.) 

56333.  
When a commission is enlarged to seven members as provided in Section 56332, the public members 
appointed pursuant to Sections 56325 and 56329 shall thereafter be appointed by members of the 
commission representing cities, counties, and special districts. Those appointments shall be made at the 
times and in the manner provided in Section 56334. 
(Amended by Stats. 2001, Ch. 388, Sec. 6. Effective January 1, 2002.) 

 
56334. 
The term of office of each member shall be four years and until the appointment and qualification of his or 
her successor. Upon enlargement of the commission by two members, as provided in Section 56332, the 
new members first appointed to represent independent special districts shall classify themselves by lot so 
that the expiration date of the term of office of one new member coincides with the existing member who 
holds the office represented by the original two-year term on the commission and the term of office of the 
other new member coincides with the existing member who holds the office represented by the original 

javascript:submitCodesValues('56332.5.','6.3.2.2','2017','203','2',%20'id_7e7b25f7-e530-11e7-99d3-2f570f4f10eb')


 

Page 17 of 20 
 

four-year term on the commission. The body which originally appointed a member whose term has expired 
shall appoint his or her successor for a full term of four years. Any member may be removed at any time 
and without cause by the body appointing that member. The expiration date of the term of office of each 
member shall be the first Monday in May in the year in which the term of the member expires, unless 
procedures adopted by the commission specify an alternate date to apply uniformly to all members. 
However, the length of a term of office shall not be extended more than once. Any vacancy in the 
membership of the commission shall be filled for the unexpired term by appointment by the body which 
originally appointed the member whose office has become vacant. 
The chairperson of the commission shall be selected by the members of the commission. 
Commission members and alternates shall be reimbursed for the actual amount of their reasonable and 
necessary expenses incurred in attending meetings and in performing the duties of their office. The 
commission may authorize payment of a per diem to commission members and alternates for each day 
while they are in attendance at meetings of the commission. 
(Amended by Stats. 2002, Ch. 664, Sec. 121. Effective January 1, 2003.) 

 
56335. 
In each county containing two or more cities, regular and alternate city members to the commission shall 
be appointed by the city selection committee organized in the county pursuant to and in the manner 
provided in Article 11 (commencing with Section 50270) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 1. Regular 
members of the commission shall be appointed by the city selection committee pursuant to Sections 
56325, 56326, and 56327. 
The city selection committee shall appoint one alternate member to the commission in the same manner 
as it appoints a regular member. If one of the regular city members is absent from a commission meeting, 
or disqualifies himself or herself from participating in a meeting, the alternate member may serve and vote 
in place of that regular city member for that meeting. 
Except in the case of a member appointed pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 56326 or subdivision (b) 
of Section 56327, a city selection committee, may, at the time it appoints a member or alternate, provide 
that the member or alternate is disqualified from voting on proposals affecting the city which the member 
or alternate represents. 
If the office of a regular city member becomes vacant, the alternate member may serve and vote in place 
of the former regular city member until the appointment and qualification of a regular city member to fill 
the vacancy. 
(Amended by Stats. 1986, Ch. 86, Sec. 2.) 

 
56336. 
Each commission may adopt regulations with respect to disqualification of members or alternates from 
participating in the review of a proposal. In the absence, however, of those regulations, Section 56332 or 
56335 shall apply. The representation by a member or alternate of a city or district shall not disqualify, or 
be cause for disqualification of, the member or alternate from acting on a proposal affecting the city or the 
district, and any regulation providing for the disqualification of a city or district representative for that 
reason is null and void. 
(Amended by Stats. 1986, Ch. 86, Sec. 3.) 

 
56337. 
A city, county, or district officer may serve as a member of the commission while holding office as a city, 
county, or district officer. If a member who is a city, county, or district officer ceases to be an officer of a 
city, county, or district during his or her term, his or her membership on the commission shall be 
considered vacant. 
(Amended by Stats. 2004, Ch. 355, Sec. 4.5. Effective January 1, 2005.) 
 
Health and Safety Code (HSC) 
CHAPTER 4. Oversight Boards [34179 - 34181] 
 (Chapter 4 added by Stats. 2011, 1st Ex. Sess., Ch. 5, Sec. 7.) 
 
34179. 
   
(a) Each successor agency shall have an oversight board composed of seven members. The members 
shall elect one of their members as the chairperson and shall report the name of the chairperson and 
other members to the Department of Finance on or before May 1, 2012. Members shall be selected as 
follows: 

javascript:submitCodesValues('34179.','26.6.4','2015','325','11',%20'id_07c4f699-62fb-11e5-a6d6-9e5edb639af6')


 

Page 18 of 20 
 

(1) One member appointed by the county board of supervisors. 
(2) One member appointed by the mayor for the city that formed the redevelopment agency. 
(3) (A) One member appointed by the largest special district, by property tax share, with territory in the 
territorial jurisdiction of the former redevelopment agency, which is of the type of special district that is 
eligible to receive property tax revenues pursuant to Section 34188. 
(B)  On or after the effective date of this subparagraph, the county auditor-controller may determine 
which is the largest special district for purposes of this section. 
(4) One member appointed by the county superintendent of education to represent schools if the 
superintendent is elected. If the county superintendent of education is appointed, then the appointment 
made pursuant to this paragraph shall be made by the county board of education. 
(5) One member appointed by the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges to represent 
community college districts in the county. 
(6) One member of the public appointed by the county board of supervisors. 
(7) One member representing the employees of the former redevelopment agency appointed by the 
mayor or chair of the board of supervisors, as the case may be, from the recognized employee 
organization representing the largest number of former redevelopment agency employees employed by 
the successor agency at that time. In the case where city or county employees performed administrative 
duties of the former redevelopment agency, the appointment shall be made from the recognized 
employee organization representing those employees. If a recognized employee organization does not 
exist for either the employees of the former redevelopment agency or the city or county employees 
performing administrative duties of the former redevelopment agency, the appointment shall be made 
from among the employees of the successor agency. In voting to approve a contract as an enforceable 
obligation, a member appointed pursuant to this paragraph shall not be deemed to be interested in the 
contract by virtue of being an employee of the successor agency or community for purposes of Section 
1090 of the Government Code. 
(8) If the county or a joint powers agency formed the redevelopment agency, then the largest city by 
acreage in the territorial jurisdiction of the former redevelopment agency may select one member. If 
there are no cities with territory in a project area of the redevelopment agency, the county 
superintendent of education may appoint an additional member to represent the public. 
(9) If there are no special districts of the type that are eligible to receive property tax pursuant to Section 
34188, within the territorial jurisdiction of the former redevelopment agency, then the county may 
appoint one member to represent the public. 
(10) If a redevelopment agency was formed by an entity that is both a charter city and a county, the 
oversight board shall be composed of seven members selected as follows: three members appointed by 
the mayor of the city, if that appointment is subject to confirmation by the county board of supervisors, 
one member appointed by the largest special district, by property tax share, with territory in the territorial 
jurisdiction of the former redevelopment agency, which is the type of special district that is eligible to 
receive property tax revenues pursuant to Section 34188, one member appointed by the county 
superintendent of education to represent schools, one member appointed by the Chancellor of the 
California Community Colleges to represent community college districts, and one member representing 
employees of the former redevelopment agency appointed by the mayor of the city if that appointment is 
subject to confirmation by the county board of supervisors, to represent the largest number of former 
redevelopment agency employees employed by the successor agency at that time. 
(11) Each appointing authority identified in this subdivision may, but is not required to, appoint alternate 
representatives to serve on the oversight board as may be necessary to attend any meeting of the 
oversight board in the event that the appointing authority’s primary representative is unable to attend 
any meeting for any reason. If an alternate representative attends any meeting in place of the primary 
representative, the alternate representative shall have the same participatory and voting rights as all 
other attending members of the oversight board. 
(b) The Governor may appoint individuals to fill any oversight board member position described in 
subdivision (a) that has not been filled by May 15, 2012, or any member position that remains vacant for 
more than 60 days. 
(c) The oversight board may direct the staff of the successor agency to perform work in furtherance of 
the oversight board’s and the successor agency’s duties and responsibilities under this part. The 
successor agency shall pay for all of the costs of meetings of the oversight board and may include such 
costs in its administrative budget. Oversight board members shall serve without compensation or 
reimbursement for expenses. 
(d) Oversight board members are protected by the immunities applicable to public entities and public 
employees governed by Part 1 (commencing with Section 810) and Part 2 (commencing with Section 
814) of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code. 



 

Page 19 of 20 
 

(e) A majority of the total membership of the oversight board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. A majority vote of the total membership of the oversight board is required for 
the oversight board to take action. The oversight board shall be deemed to be a local entity for purposes 
of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the California Public Records Act, and the Political Reform Act of 1974. All 
actions taken by the oversight board shall be adopted by resolution. 
(f) All notices required by law for proposed oversight board actions shall also be posted on the 
successor agency’s Internet Web site or the oversight board’s Internet Web site. 
(g) Each member of an oversight board shall serve at the pleasure of the entity that appointed such 
member. 
(h) (1) The department may review an oversight board action taken pursuant to this part. Written notice 
and information about all actions taken by an oversight board shall be provided to the department as an 
approved resolution by electronic means and in a manner of the department’s choosing. Without 
abrogating the department’s authority to review all matters related to the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule pursuant to Section 34177, oversight boards are not required to submit the following 
oversight board actions for department approval: 
(A) Meeting minutes and agendas. 
(B) Administrative budgets. 
(C) Changes in oversight board members, or the selection of an oversight board chair or vice chair. 
(D) Transfers of governmental property pursuant to an approved long-range property management plan. 
(E) Transfers of property to be retained by the sponsoring entity for future development pursuant to an 
approved long-range property management plan. 
(2) An oversight board action submitted in a manner specified by the department shall become effective 
five business days after submission, unless the department requests a review of the action. Each 
oversight board shall designate an official to whom the department may make those requests and who 
shall provide the department with the telephone number and e-mail contact information for the purpose 
of communicating with the department pursuant to this subdivision. Except as otherwise provided in this 
part, in the event that the department requests a review of a given oversight board action, it shall have 
40 days from the date of its request to approve the oversight board action or return it to the oversight 
board for reconsideration and the oversight board action shall not be effective until approved by the 
department. In the event that the department returns the oversight board action to the oversight board 
for reconsideration, the oversight board shall resubmit the modified action for department approval and 
the modified oversight board action shall not become effective until approved by the department. If the 
department reviews a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule, the department may eliminate or 
modify any item on that schedule prior to its approval. The county auditor-controller shall reflect the 
actions of the department in determining the amount of property tax revenues to allocate to the 
successor agency. The department shall provide notice to the successor agency and the county auditor-
controller as to the reasons for its actions. To the extent that an oversight board continues to dispute a 
determination with the department, one or more future Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules may 
reflect any resolution of that dispute. The department may also agree to an amendment to a Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule to reflect a resolution of a disputed item; however, this shall not affect a 
past allocation of property tax or create a liability for any affected taxing entity. 
(i) Oversight boards shall have fiduciary responsibilities to holders of enforceable obligations and the 
taxing entities that benefit from distributions of property tax and other revenues pursuant to Section 
34188. Further, the provisions of Division 4 (commencing with Section 1000) of the Government Code 
shall apply to oversight boards. Notwithstanding Section 1099 of the Government Code, or any other 
law, any individual may simultaneously be appointed to up to five oversight boards and may hold an 
office in a city, county, city and county, special district, school district, or community college district. 
(j) Except as specified in subdivision (q), commencing on and after July 1, 2018, in each county where 
more than one oversight board was created by operation of the act adding this part, there shall be only 
one oversight board, which shall be staffed by the county auditor-controller, by another county entity 
selected by the county auditor-controller, or by a city within the county that the county auditor-controller 
may select after consulting with the department. Pursuant to Section 34183, the county auditor-
controller may recover directly from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, and distribute to the 
appropriate city or county entity, reimbursement for all costs incurred by it or by the city or county 
pursuant to this subdivision, which shall include any associated startup costs. However, if only one 
successor agency exists within the county, the county auditor-controller may designate the successor 
agency to staff the oversight board. The oversight board is appointed as follows: 
(1) One member may be appointed by the county board of supervisors. 
(2) One member may be appointed by the city selection committee established pursuant to Section 
50270 of the Government Code. In a city and county, the mayor may appoint one member. 



 

Page 20 of 20 
 

(3) One member may be appointed by the independent special district selection committee established 
pursuant to Section 56332 of the Government Code, for the types of special districts that are eligible to 
receive property tax revenues pursuant to Section 34188. 
(4) One member may be appointed by the county superintendent of education to represent schools if 
the superintendent is elected. If the county superintendent of education is appointed, then the 
appointment made pursuant to this paragraph shall be made by the county board of education. 
(5) One member may be appointed by the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges to represent 
community college districts in the county. 
(6) One member of the public may be appointed by the county board of supervisors. 
(7) One member may be appointed by the recognized employee organization representing the largest 
number of successor agency employees in the county. 
(k) The Governor may appoint individuals to fill any oversight board member position described in 
subdivision (j) that has not been filled by July 15, 2018, or any member position that remains vacant for 
more than 60 days. 
(l) Commencing on and after July 1, 2018, in each county where only one oversight board was created 
by operation of the act adding this part, then there will be no change to the composition of that oversight 
board as a result of the operation of subdivision (j). 
(m) Any oversight board for a given successor agency, with the exception of countywide oversight 
boards, shall cease to exist when the successor agency has been formally dissolved pursuant to 
Section 34187. A county oversight board shall cease to exist when all successor agencies subject to its 
oversight have been formally dissolved pursuant to Section 34187. 
(n) An oversight board may direct a successor agency to provide additional legal or financial advice than 
what was given by agency staff. 
(o) An oversight board is authorized to contract with the county or other public or private agencies for 
administrative support. 
(p) On matters within the purview of the oversight board, decisions made by the oversight board 
supersede those made by the successor agency or the staff of the successor agency. 
(q) (1) Commencing on and after July 1, 2018, in each county where more than 40 oversight boards 
were created by operation of the act adding this part, there shall be five oversight boards, which shall 
each be staffed in the same manner as specified in subdivision (j). The membership of each oversight 
board shall be as specified in paragraphs (1) through (7), inclusive, of subdivision (j). 
(2) The oversight boards shall be numbered one through five, and their respective jurisdictions shall 
encompass the territory located within the respective borders of the first through fifth county board of 
supervisors districts, as those borders existed on July 1, 2018. Except as specified in paragraph (3), 
each oversight board shall have jurisdiction over each successor agency located within its borders. 
(3) If a successor agency has territory located within more than one county board of supervisors’ district, 
the county board of supervisors shall, no later than July 15, 2018, determine which oversight board shall 
have jurisdiction over that successor agency. The county board of supervisors or their designee shall 
report this information to the successor agency and the department by the aforementioned date. 
(4) The successor agency to the former redevelopment agency created by a county where more than 40 
oversight boards were created by operation of the act adding this part, shall be under the jurisdiction of 
the oversight board with the fewest successor agencies under its jurisdiction. 
(Amended by Stats. 2015, Ch. 325, Sec. 11. (SB 107) Effective September 22, 2015.) 
 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  JUNE 23, 2020 
TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  ELECTING & APPOINTING OFFICERS OF THE BOARD 

__________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
District Legal Counsel advised the District’s Board of Directors at its May 20, 2019 meeting that many sections of 
the former 2010 bylaws were unnecessarily detailed, overly complicated and potentially created exposure for 
its Staff as well as its Trustees based on a myriad of sections as they had been prepared in this document. 
 
At its May 20, 2019 meeting, the Board of Directors acknowledged these deficiencies and directed Legal 
Counsel to prepare a draft revision of the bylaws for review by the Board. 
 
At its July 22, 2019 meeting, the Board of Directors reviewed the amended bylaws as prepared by legal staff 
and ultimately approved the revised set of bylaws.   Per Water Code section 35302, following the BVWD Board’s 
approval, the revised bylaws were sent to the Alpine County Board of Director’s who approved the revised 
bylaws by resolution at its August 6, 2019 meeting.  
 
Pursuant to Article IV of the revised bylaws, elected officers shall be chosen by the Board from among the five 
(5) members of the Board and shall consist of a President and a Vice-President.  Section 2 goes on to discuss 
the terms of elected officers adding: 
 

 Officers shall be elected by the Board at its first meeting in a new calendar year  
 Shall serve for one (1) year, said term to commence upon election 
 All elected officers shall be eligible to serve successive terms.  
 Officers shall continue to serve in their capacity as an officer until their successor is elected. 

Article V of the by-laws further conveys that the Board may appoint such other officers as it deems necessary. 
Currently, in addition to the General Manager which serves as an appointed officer, Director Brown serves as 
the appointed Secretary and Director Boyle serves as the appointed Treasurer to the Board.  However, the 
revised bylaws amended the previous section regarding appointments and now clearly states that neither the 
Secretary nor the General Manager may be a Director.  The Treasurer meanwhile may be a Director of the 
Board and may hold this appointment until the Board either chooses a new Treasurer or chooses not to have 
an acting Treasurer. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
ACTION: 
 

1. Board should hold a vote for President and Vice President for the term expiring at the “first meeting in 
a new calendar year.” 

2. Board should appoint the Office Manager as the Secretary to the Board. 
3. Board should discuss and consider retaining Director Boyle as Treasurer to the Board. 

 
Attachments: 
- BVWD Revised By-Laws as Approved July 22, 2019 



 

 
 
1063903‐1 

 

 
 

BYLAWS 
 

OF THE 
 

BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted July  __, 2019



 

1 
 
1063903‐1 

ARTICLE I 
GENERAL 

 

Section 1.  Name. 

This water sanitary district shall be known as the BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
(BVWD or District). 

Section 2.  District Office. 

The District Office shall be established by Resolution and may be changed from time to 
time by Resolution. 

 

ARTICLE II 
PURPOSE 

 
 The purpose of the BVWD is to provide services to the residents of Bear Valley 
consistent with the Division 13 of the California Water Code.   
 
 

ARTICLE III 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 Section 1.  Number.  
 

The governing body of BVWD shall consist of five (5) elected Directors, each of whom 
shall serve a term of four (4) years.  Such terms of office to be established on a staggered basis.  
During elections every two (2) years, either two (2) or three (3) Directors are elected for the next 
four (4) years. 

 
Section 2.  Qualifications.  
 
In accordance with Water Code section 34700, each Director shall be one of the 

following: 
 
(a) A holder of title to land within the BVWD. 
(b) The legal representative of a holder of title to land within BVWD in accordance 

with Water Code section 34030. 
(c) A representative designated by a holder of title to land within BVWD, if the 

holder has filed with BVWD written evidence of that designation. 
  



 

2 
 
1063903‐1 

 Section 3.  Responsibility. 
 
 The Board of Directors shall govern the BVWD and establish policies for the operation 
of the District.  The Directors shall carry out their duties as set forth in law, these bylaws, and 
other policies of BVWD honestly and faithfully. 
 
 Section 4.  Compensation. 
 
 Members of the Board of Directors shall receive compensation for each day’s attendance 
at meeting of the Board or for each day’s service rendered as a director by request of the Board 
in an amount established by resolution of the Board of Directions, but in no case may the amount 
exceed the amount set forth in Water Code section 34741.  Nor shall the total compensation to 
any Director exceed the total of six days in any calendar month, together with any expenses 
authorized by the Board.    Compensation for all other officers who are not members of the 
Board of Directors shall be established by the Board. 
 
 Section 5.  Vacancies. 
 
 Vacancies on the Board shall be filled in accordance with Government Code Section 
1780.   
 

Section 6.  Resignation. 
 
 A director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, to the President, 
or to the Secretary of the Board.  Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt 
of such notice or at any later time specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the 
acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
OFFICERS 

 
 Section 1.  Elected Officers. 
 
 The elected officers shall be chosen by the Board from among the five (5) members of 
the Board and shall consist of a President and a Vice-President. 
 
 Section 2.  Terms of Elected Officer. 
 
 Elected Officers of the Board shall be elected by the Board at its first meeting in a new 
calendar year and shall serve for one (1) year, said term to commence upon election.  All elected 
officers shall be eligible to serve successive terms.  Officers shall continue to serve in their 
capacity as an officer until their successor is elected. 
 
  



 

3 
 
1063903‐1 

 Section 3.  Duties of Elected Officers. 
 

A. President. 
 

1. Shall preside at all meetings of the board and such other meetings approved 
by the Board, and have the authority to call for short recesses during meetings 
unless a majority of the Directors by vote oppose a recess. 

2. Shall serve as official spokesperson for the Board. 
3. Shall appoint such committees and other working groups as prescribed by the 

Board. 
4. Shall designate Directors or others to represent the Board at various meetings, 

hearings, and conferences. 
5. Shall perform such other duties as necessary to carry out the work of the 

Board. 
6. Shall perform such duties as prescribed by law. 

 
B. Vice-President. 

 
1. Shall serve in the absence of the President.  

 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
 APPOINTED OFFICERS 
 

Section 1.  Appointed Officers. 
 

A. The appointed officers of the District shall be a General Manager and a Secretary 
who may be the same person, but none of whom shall be a Director.  The duties 
of the appointed officers shall be as specified in law, and as directed by the Board. 
The Board may also appoint a Treasurer in accordance with.  

 
B. Pursuant to Water Code Section 34711, the District Board of Directors may 

appoint a District Treasurer, who shall be responsible for the deposit and 
withdrawal of funds of the District. 

   
C. The Board may appoint such other officers as it deems necessary. 
 
Section 2.  General Manager Duties.  
 
The General Manager is employed by the board to run the day-to-day business of the 
BVWD. 
 
Duties of the General Manager (Manager) include, but are not limited to: 
 



 

4 
 
1063903‐1 

A. Appraise and evaluate the effects of the Board policies and the manner of their 
execution, and the efficiency of BVWD personnel in terms of services rendered to 
the people of the District. 

B. Provide leadership to staff in identifying district needs, establishing priorities and 
determining the objectives, which will achieve the established goals of the 
District.  

C. Encourage and assist staff in the performance of their duties and encourage their 
professional growth.  

D. Ensure evaluation of personnel under his/her direction. 

E. Provide financial oversight of the District and Alpine County pursuant to funds on 
deposit at that agency.  

F. Lead the District management team in the preparation of an annual budget, 
control of expenditures, inventory control, program planning, changing priorities 
and public relations.  

G. Perform the function of the District’s Public Information Officer. 

H. Dispatch the contractor hired for operations on all wastewater problems in 
BVWD that require fieldwork.  The Manager will respond only if the situation is 
too complicated for the contractor hired for operations to handle. 

I. Keep the Board informed of all communications affecting the District. 

J. Establish regular office hours and ensure that there is at least one person in the 
office during those hours. 

K. Such other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Board. 

 Section 3.  Secretary Duties. 

A. The Secretary shall attend Board meetings and prepare the minutes of the Board 
meetings which shall record the aye and no votes taken by the members of the 
Board for the passage of all ordinances, resolutions, or motions. 

B. The Secretary shall prepare the agenda for the Board meetings, post agendas, 
public notices and proposed action documents as required by the Board and 
government regulations.  

C. The Secretary shall keep a record of all Board actions, including financial 
transactions. 

D. The Secretary is responsible for keeping the Ordinances and all changes. 

E. The Secretary shall maintain and file with the County Clerk and the Secretary of 
State the filings required under Government Code section 53050 for the Roster of 



 

5 
 
1063903‐1 

Public Agencies. 

Section 4.  Treasurer Duties. 

A. If a Treasurer is appointed by the Board of Directors, they shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Board and be responsible for those responsibilities set forth in 
Water Code section 34711 and any other as determined by the Board.       

 
  

ARTICLE VI 
 MEETINGS 
 

Section 1.  Regular and Special Meetings. 
 

A. The Board shall hold a regular meeting on dates and times as established by the 
Board from time to time by resolution.  All regular meeting shall be held at the 
District Office.  Such meetings may be altered as to date, time and place, as 
provided for in a Resolution adopted by the Board. 

 
B. Special meetings may be called by the President or by a majority of Directors. 

 
C. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 
D. All motions made at Board meetings shall require a second to the motion prior to 

the Directors voting. 
 
E. Directors may attend any regular and special meeting telephonically as provided 

in the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 
 
Section 2.  Quorum. 

 
The Board shall be empowered to conduct the business of the District whenever there is a 

quorum of Directors at a properly noticed meeting.  Three Directors shall constitute a Quorum.   
 

Section 3.  Voting. 
 

A. The vote of a majority of the Directors present at any meeting attended by a 
Quorum shall be necessary to pass any motion, adopt any resolution, or make any 
determination.   

 
B. Voting shall be by voice, show of hands, or roll call vote. 
 
C. Should a Director vote “Abstain” on a motion, the vote shall be considered a non-

vote and not counted as an affirmative or negative vote. 
  
  



 

6 
 
1063903‐1 

Section 4.  Notice of Regular and Special Meetings. 
 

A. Notices of all regular and special meetings shall be pursuant to the Ralph M. 
Brown Act.   

 
B. Notices of regular and special meetings.  In the case of special meetings, the 

notice, written or by telephone, shall specify the specific nature of the business to 
be transacted. 

 
 
 ARTICLE VII 
 ELECTIONS 
 

Section 1.  Procedure of Voting. 
 
            All District elections shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures set  
forth in Water Code Section 35100 et. seq.   

 
Section 2.  Manner of Voting. 

 
 The manner of voting in all District elections shall be as set forth in Water Code section 
35003.   

 
Section 3.  Voting in Person or by Proxy. 
 
Every eligible voter may vote either in person or proxy in accordance with Water Code 

sections 35004-35006. 
 
 

 ARTICLE VIII 
 PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 
 
 Rosenberg’s Rules of Order, current edition and all future editions or such other authority 
as may be subsequently adopted by resolution of the Board is to apply to all questions of 
procedure and parliamentary law not specified in these Bylaws or otherwise by law. 
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 PENALTIES 
 
    The penalty for any single violation of these bylaws shall not exceed two hundred dollars 
($200.00). 
  



 

7 
 
1063903‐1 

 ARTICLE X 
 AMENDMENTS 
 

The Bylaws may be repealed or amended, or new Bylaws by either of the following 
methods: 

 
(a) By four-fifths (4/5ths) vote of the total number of Directors as set forth in Article 

3 Section 1 of these bylaws and approval of the Board of Supervisors of Alpine County, or 
 
(b) By two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of the total vote of the District in writing or cast by 

ballot at a District election. 
 
 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  JUNE 23, 2020 
TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  FY 2020 - 21 PRELMINARY BUDGET 
__________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION: 

Accompanying this memorandum is a preliminary budget proposal for FY 2020-21, reflecting a comparison to 
the estimated actual previous fiscal cycle (FY 19-20) as well as a projected budget forecasting out three (3) 
future fiscal cycles.  
 
This preliminary budget proposal discusses Year 5 of the current 5-year NPDES cycle (Order R5-2016-0045-02) 
and related expenses which expires August 2021 as well as Years 1 – 3 and related expenses of the anticipated 
renewal of the District’s NPDES permit for the term 2021 - 2026. 
 
Below is a summary of highlights of the preliminary budget proposal: 
 
Revenue 
 
Residential Revenue  
 
Residential revenue is generally a fixed source of income due to the District’s flat rate billing structure and the 
current rate of construction at approximately only (1) new home per year adding generally little to no increase 
in year-over-year residential revenue.  As of this writing, the District has received no applications for new 
residential connections to the network nor is aware of any pending applications.    
 
With the Board’s adoption of the FY 19-20 mid-cycle 6.2 % inflation-based sewer service rate increase which 
became effective January 1, 2020 and increased the monthly flat rate residential bill from $90.37 to $96.35, 
the estimated FY 20 - 21 residential revenue realizes the full 12 months of the CPI index increase and is projected 
to be $625,000 for FY 20-21.   
 
Commercial Revenue 
 
Commercial revenue is flow based.  With the Board’s adoption of the FY 19 – 20 mid-cycle 6.2 % sewer service 
rate increase which also became effective January 1, 2020, commercial customers are now charged $0.068 
per gallon of water (previously $0.064)  metered at the commercial location and sent to the District for 
treatment and disposal.  As billable flow is tied to water use and water use can vary depending on the 
seasonal economy of many of the District’s commercial customers, commercial revenue to the District tends 
to ebb and flow as the Bear Valley economy changes.   
 
Since for the majority of the District’s commercial customers invoicing for the current budget cycle is based 
on water use in the previous fiscal cycle, due to the statewide shelter in place (SIP) order which began in 
March 2020 and therefore directly impacts the billing cycle for FY 20-21, this preliminary budget contemplates 
a reduction of nearly – 20 % or – 410,217 fewer gallons from commercial sources when compared to the 
previous fiscal cycle.   
 
In fact, to illustrate the magnitude of the impact of the SIP order for the metered commercial customers 
specifically in the Bear Valley village, commercial flows fell – 267 % in March 2020 and – 214 % in April 2020.  
Consequently, commercial revenues are projected to fall nearly -13 % or - $19,206 from the estimated previous 
fiscal year bolstered only by the District’s minimum monthly billing for all commercial customers 
($85.81/month).   
 



 
 
 
 
As reported in last year’s budget presentation, in addition to the termination of services by the USFS at the east 
end of Lake Alpine,  two (2) of the District’s commercial customers, including Alpine County’s Community 
Center (aka Perry Walther Building) and the Base Camp Lodge, suffered significant structural damage during 
the 2019 winter leading each building to be red tagged by the Alpine Country Building Department and 
immediately disrupting billable wastewater flows.  The Perry Walther Building returned to active use late this 
past winter while the Base Camp Lodge is still undergoing extensive remodeling. Consequently, this preliminary 
budget proposal contemplates only minimum monthly billing for both accounts in FY 20-21 due to little or no 
water use but anticipates both to return to normal operation for FY 21-22 and beyond restoring approximately 
+ $12,000 in commercial revenues as reflected in the 3 year projection included in the preliminary budget.   
 
In summary, due to the opportunity to realize the full twelve (12) month impact of the 6.2 % inflation based 
sewer service rate increase for both residential and commercial customers combined with modest increased 
water use by certain commercial customers particularly in during the fall 2019 effectively offsetting to a limited 
extent the reduced usage by other commercial customers following the SIP, this preliminary  budget projects 
total service rate revenue for FY 20-21 to be $775,000 or only – 0.52 % less than the estimated actual revenue 
projected for the previous fiscal cycle. 
 
Expenses 
 
Operating expenses for fiscal year 2020 - 21 are expected to increase approximately 3.29 % to $646,643 over 
the previous year’s estimated actual budget.  This modest increase is largely confined to three specific areas 
including an increase in regulatory fees as well as further expansion of the District’s collection system 
maintenance program and a measurable decrease in insurance premiums. 
 
Below is a summary of the most notable expense areas that impact this preliminary budget projection for FY 
20-21: 
 

 Salaries, Wages and Benefits:  Salaries, wages and benefits area projected to increase +3.65 % for FY 
20-21 when compared to the approved budget for this expense area in in FY 19-20.  The majority of 
the District’s staff have reached Step 5 in their respective 5 % wage steps and are now enjoying only 
modest annual COLA wage increases of 2.5 %.  The District continues to see long term, seasonal staff 
slowly reduce their seasonal (summer) working hours downward each summer (e.g. 40 hours per week 
to 32 hours per week, 32 hours to 24) leading to less significant increases to the aggregate year-over-
year budget and providing a soft landing for the District as these employees near retirement. 
 
At the same time, this summer the District will be expanding its collection system maintenance 
program by adding approximately six (6) additional weeks of maintenance time to this crew’s 
schedule, including the full month of October and the latter half of June (weather permitting).  The 
addition of nearly 6 weeks of hydro-jetting and CCTV work as part of the District’s Sewer System 
Management Plan (SSMP) will permit the District to ideally clean and survey up to an additional 24 - 
36 pipe segments or potentially nearly 11,000 more linear feet than the previous year. These two 
seasonal, part time employees will continue to dedicate approximately 16 hours per week now for up 
to18 weeks or an additional 288 man hours for an added fiscal impact of + 1.9 % or + $6261.  
 

 Regulatory Fees: Permit and dam fees have increased incrementally year-over-year for many years.  
Both the Department of Dams (DOD) and the State Water Quality Control Board (SWQCB) have 
notified public water agencies who own dams or have waste discharge permits to continue to 
anticipate substantially higher fees for FY 20 - 21, including 17 % and 9 % increases respectively for the 
upcoming fiscal cycle.  As a result, the District is forecasting an increase of approximately + 10.18 % or 
$4580 for taxes, fees, licenses and assessments for FY20-21. 
 

 Insurance: The District’s current combined insurance premiums total $22,802.  Staff worked diligently 
this year to pursue potential discounts on the District’s worker’s compensation and package policy 
which includes property, commercial crime, general liability, commercial excess liability, public 
officials and management liability as well as business auto coverage.  Proposals from two leading  



 
 
 
 
insurers in the water industry, including the District’s current carrier California Association of Mutual 
Water Companies (administered by Allied Public Risk) and Glatfelter Public Practice who formerly 
provided coverage for the District most recently in FY 12 – 13 were received.  Glatfelter’s proposal 
provided for nearly a – 51 % discount over the current term premium and included equivalent 
coverage limits.  Cal Mutuals, informed they were now competing for our business, provided a 
proposal with a nearly – 62 % discount or - $6419 less than the current term policy premium presuming 
we kept our worker’s compensation policy with them ($5952 annual premium) for FY 20 -21.  The 
District’s package policy for FY 20 – 21 will fall from $16,804 to $10,385 with an aggregate reduction for 
this expense line in the FY 20 – 21 preliminary budget of – 19.56 %.   

 
 
Capital Projects 
 
As the Board discussed at its March 2020 meeting, Regional Board staff provided an early affirmative response 
to an initial query of them regarding proposed changes to the District’s next NPDES permit it would like 
included.  Yet, with this positive reception, the Regional Board strongly encouraged the District to submit its 
Report of Waste Discharge (ROWD), technically due in February 2021, in June 2020 to allow Regional Board 
staff ample time to evaluate the proposed permit changes and present them to the Water Board for approval.   
 
To this end, District staff engaged Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. to support it in preparing the ROWD 
together with an Antidegradation Analysis and an evaluation of the District’s salinity minimization efforts as 
required in the District’s current NPDES Order No. R5-2016-0045-02.  When the District Board approved the FY 
19-20 final budget in July 2019 it at the same time approved a 5-Year Cap Ex budget which included up to 
$37,000 to cover permit renewal costs in FY 20-21.  However, with the acceleration of the preparation of ROWD 
per the Regional Board’s recommendation in FY 19 – 20 instead of FY 20 - 21, the District has committed $26,649 
to date on this effort.  This unbudgeted expenditure adds substantially to an already swollen approved cap 
ex budget for FY 19 – 20 ($189,053) largely related to the approved treatment lagoon upgrade project. 
 
In light of the magnitude of the fiscal commitment of resources to prepare and submit the ROWD in the current 
fiscal cycle, combined with the uncertainty of additional potential costs to respond to questions or concerns 
from the regional board in advance of the preparation of a “tentative” order during FY 20 – 21, the preliminary 
budget contemplates an additional $10,000 for permit related capital expenditure costs over the upcoming 
fiscal cycle. 
 
In addition, the preliminary budget proposes the purchase of the Vanguard 360 Pathogen Defense System to 
help reduce the District’s collection system maintenance team’s exposure to bacteria, viruses and other 
pathogens in the sewer system.  The Vanguard system works by disinfecting the hydrojetting hose as well as 
the CCTV line, both culprits behind the transfer of bacteria and viruses from the sewer to the operator, as they 
come out of the collection line and manhole and before they come into contact with the operator.  While 
the novel coronavirus is clearly a concern and motivation behind this proposal, collection workers are clearly 
the point of highest exposure for the District both to COVID-19 as well as other unmitigated diseases including 
Hepatitis, gonorrhea, Candida Auris (a yeast fungal infection), Acinetobacter, Enterobacteriaceae (CRE), C. 
diff, MRSA and others.  The cost of the unit including installation is estimated at $11,000. 
 
In summary, capital expenditures for FY 20 - 21 are proposed to be conservative at $21,000 and specifically 
recognizes the fact that the cost of preparation of the ROWD originally budgeted for the proposed fiscal cycle 
have been largely already consumed in the previous cycle.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

FY 20-21 net income is anticipated to be $34,144.  The conservative budgeting approach employed by staff 
over the past few years seems to consistently provide for above net income revenue year over year and staff 
believes FY 20-21 to continue this trend suggesting that this number is likely to be higher than projected.  
 
FY 20-21 net cash flow is expected to be $75,950.  With the exception of FY 19 -20 and the large cash outlay 
for the treatment lagoon upgrade project, this cash flow estimate is similar if not higher to previous cycle 
positive cash flow estimates. 
 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that the Board vote to approve the preliminary FY 20-21 budget and 3-Year 
forecasted projection as presented. 
 
ACTION: 
 
1. Motion to Accept the preliminary FY 20-21 budget proposal and 3-Year forecast projected budget as 
presented  
 
Attachments: 
 
 - FY 2020-21 Budget & 3-Year Budget Forecast Projection 
 - 5 Year+ Cap Ex Budget 
 - BVWD Notice: Sewer Service Charges – Increase Effective January 1, 2020 
 - Stantec Proposal for NPDES Permit Renewal Services – Dated March 18, 2020 
 - Owen Equipment Vanguard 360 Pathogen Defense System Proposal – Dated May 12, 2020 
 - Vanguard 360 Pathogen Defense System, CDC and other related information 
  
 



Bear Valley Water District
Financial Year 2020-21 + 3 Year Budget Forecast

BUDGET % DIFF BUDGET % DIFF BUDGET % DIFF BUDGET % DIFF BUDGET % DIFF
FY 19 - 20 PREV YR FY 20 - 21 PREV YR FY 21 - 22 PREV YR FY 22 - 23 PREV YR FY 23 - 24 PREV YR

(ACTUAL - EST)

REVENUES
    Residential 609,807 625,000 625,000 0.00% 625,000 0.00% 625,000 0.00%
    Commercial 169,209 150,000 162,000 7.41% 162,000 0.00% 162,000 0.00%

                               Sutbtotal Operating Revenue 779,016 775,000 -0.52% 787,000 1.52% 787,000 0.00% 787,000 0.00%

EXPENSES
    Salaries and Benefits 349,202 373,863 382,674 391,246 399,838

 Director Expenses - Meetings, Elections, Training 1,369 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Operator Education, Training & Certifications 239 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
Gas, Diesel, Oil & Filters 3,034 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,000
Insurance 19,130 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000
Memberships & Conferences 6,350 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500
Office Expenses & Supplies 9,078 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Field Expenses & Supplies 23,463 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
Grooming, Snow Removal & Vehicle Storage 2,636 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500
General Engineering & Consulting 315 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
General Legal & Accounting 15,515 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Equipment Rental 467 600 600 600 600
Repairs & Maintenance 71,231 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
Laboratory Fees 11,022 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Regulatory Reporting & Compliance Projects 6,330 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000
Taxes, Fees, Licenses & Assessments 40,420 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000
Utilities 65,386 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000

                              Subtotal Operating Expenses 625,187 646,463 3.29% 655,274 1.34% 663,846 1.29% 671,938 1.20%

                              Net Operational Income 153,829 128,537 131,726 123,154 115,062

OTHER REVENUE
      Interest Income - LAIF 6,890 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500
      Late Fees, Penalties & Interest 5,781 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
      Expense Reimbursements  - USFS 6,685 7,608 4,500 4,500 4,500
      Expense Reimbursements - Concessionnairre 2,740 8,642 4,500 4,500 4,500

  Connection Fees (Incl Application & Inspection Fees) 0 0 0 0 0

                             Sutbtotal Other Revenue 22,095 24,749 17,500 17,500 17,500

OTHER EXPENSES

  Loan Interest 15,646 12,318 9,683 8,749 6,822
      Depreciation 110,019 106,825 100,596 91,868 84,653

                            Sutbtotal Other Expenses 125,665 119,143 110,279 100,617 91,475

                            Net Other Income (103,570) (94,394) (92,779) (83,117) (73,975)

NET INCOME 50,259 34,144 38,947 40,037 41,087

NON-CASH EXPENDITURES (included in net income)

         Depreciation 110,019 106,825 100,596 91,868 84,653

                           Sutbtotal Non-Cash Expenses 110,019 106,825 100,596 91,868 84,653

CASH EXPENDITURES (Not Included in net income)
         Capital Improvements / Replacements (214,126) (21,000) (60,000) (50,000) (22,000)
         Loan Payments - Principal (40,692) (44,019) (41,960) (47,589) (49,515)

                           Sutbtotal Addl Cash Expenses (254,818) (65,019) (101,960) (97,589) (71,515)

NET CASH FLOW (94,540) 75,950 37,583 34,316 54,225

Debt/Coverage Ratio - Loan Covenants - 1.25 or Greater 3.939 3.202 3.326 2.772 2.539



5 Year+ Capital Expenditure Budget FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 23-24 FY 24-25 FY 25-26 FY 26-27

Collections

Main Pump Station

       Grinder Replacement 60,000

LABR Pump Station

         Grinder Replacement 50,000

         Generator Replacement 50,000

Cleaning & CCTV

       Vanguard Pathogen Defense System 11,000

        330' Push Cam 12,000

Vehicles

    New Truck - General Operations / Improve Jetter Towing Capacity 60,000

    New Snowmobile 10,000

Intangible Assets - Regulatory Compliance, Permits

NPDES Permit Renewal & Project Mgt 10,000 25,000

Priority Pollutant Testing - Once in the Permit Term 10,000

Totals $21,000.00 $60,000.00 $50,000.00 $22,000.00 $25,000.00 $50,000.00 $70,000.00



Bear Valley Water District ▪ 441 Creekside Drive ▪ P.O. Box 5027 ▪ Bear Valley, CA 95223 ▪ Phone: (209) 753 -2112 

 

 

NOTICE: SEWER SERVICE CHARGES  

WILL INCREASE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2020 
 

November 15, 2019 

 

On October 21, 2019, the Bear Valley Water District (“District”) Board of Directors approved an 
increase to the current sewer service charges (“New Sewer Charges”) to account for inflation 
beginning 2016 to date.   

This increase was authorized by the 2014 District Proposition 218 Rate Increase which allows the 
District to make inflationary adjustments for up to five (5) years beginning 2016.    

Below are the District’s New Sewer Charges which will become effective on January 1, 2020.   

The District strongly encourages all rate payers who have established auto-payment through their 
own financial institutions to review their payment details and amend the payment amount to meet 
the new rate as noted below.   

For customers who have established auto payment directly with the District, no additional action 
will be required.  The District will debit your payment account at the new rate beginning January 1, 
2020.  

If you have any questions, please contact the District office at 209.753.2112, Monday – Friday  
9AM – 5PM. 
 
Jeff Gouveia 
General Manager 
Jeff.Gouveia@bvwd.ca.gov  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

New Sewer Service Rates Effective January 1, 2020: 

Residential 

Single family dwellings and condominiums are charged a flat monthly rate and billed quarterly. 

Residential Rate (per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU)          Monthly              Quarterly 

Single family, multi-family              $96.35                  $289.05 

 

Non-Residential Rates 

Users other than residential users shall be charged their actual water usage at a cost per gallon or 
the commercial minimum monthly charge, whichever is greater.   

Commercial Rate (per gallon)                                                             Rate           Minimum Monthly 

Retail / Commercial / Restaurant / Hotel / Resort           $0.068                   $85.81 



Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
3875 Atherton Road, Rocklin CA  95765-3716 

 

 
  

 

March 18, 2020 

Attention: Jeff Gouveia, General Manager 
Bear Valley Water District 
441 Creekside Drive, P.O Box 5027 
Bear Valley, CA 95223 

Dear Jeff, 

Reference: Proposal for NPDES Permit Renewal Services 

The Bear Valley Water District (District) has a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permit (Order No. R5-2016-0045-02 as amended by Order No. R5-2017-0041 and Order No. R5-2019-
0078) adopted by the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Board) for their 
Wastewater Treatment Facility’s (WWTF’s) discharge into Bloods Creek. The District’s NPDES permit 
expires on July 31, 2021 and the District must file a Report of Waste Discharge (ROWD) by February 1, 
2021. In response to the District’s request for permitting assistance, we are pleased to offer this proposal to 
provide assistance during the District’s NPDES permit renewal process. Tasks to be implemented by 
Stantec and the estimated budget are summarized in the following Scope of Services. This Scope deals 
with renewing Order R5-2016-0045-02 and does not address the renewal of the District’s land permit. 
Stantec understands that the District will perform much of the work for the ROWD themselves.  

Task 1. Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan 

With their ROWD submittal, the District must also submit a summary of the effectiveness of their Salinity 
Evaluation and Minimization Plan. Stantec will review the District’s current Salinity Evaluation and 
Minimization Plan and analyze the District’s water quality data. Additionally, the District will receive a Notice 
to Comply (NTC) with new salinity requirements from the Regional Board as a result of the CV-SALTS 
initiative completed in 2019. Stantec will review the NTC and assess whether any changes to the current 
Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan are necessary for compliance. Stantec will prepare a draft 
summary of the findings for District comments. Stantec will prepare a final report incorporating the District’s 
comments for submittal to the Regional Board.  

Estimated Budget: $4,000 

Task 2. Antidegradation Analysis 

Currently, the District is only permitted to discharge to Bloods Creek from January 1 to June 31 under 
“emergency” conditions. The District desires to remove the “emergency” language from the forthcoming 
new Order and extend the permitted seasonal discharge through July. For the Regional Board to consider 
the change, the District must submit an antidegradation analysis demonstrating compliance with state and 
federal antidegradation requirements. Stantec will perform the antidegradation analysis and prepare a draft 
report for the District’s comments. Stantec will prepare a final report incorporating the District’s comments 
for submittal to the Regional Board. 

Estimated Budget: $8,000 



March 18, 2020 
Jeff Gouveia, General Manager 
Page 2 of 3  

Reference: Proposal for NPDES Permit Renewal Services 

 
 

 

Task 3. Project Facilitation and Management 

Stantec will provide project facilitation and management to oversee the project’s progress and complete 
tasks such as discussing permitting issues as they arise with the Regional Board and/or District, scheduling 
updates, billing, report coordination, etc. Stantec’s Project Manager will manage the scope and budget for 
the project through cost control and reporting system. 

Estimated Budget: $3,000 

Task 4. As-Needed Permitting Services 

Stantec will provide additional services related to renewal of the District’s Order as requested by the 
District. These services will be provided on a time and materials basis in an amount not to exceed the 
estimated budget for this task. It is anticipated that the District will receive a letter from the Regional Board 
detailing the results of the Regional Board’s mid-permit review and items to consider when submitting the 
ROWD. As-needed services may include (but are not limited to) assisting with the following items: 

• Completing the ROWD, 

• Addressing any items detailed in the mid-permit review letter from the Regional Board, 

• Meeting with the Regional Board to discuss the mid-permit review letter (if recommended by the 
Regional Board), 

• Complying with the NTC with salinity requirements if additional services are needed, and  

• Addressing any changes to the dilution/mixing zone (if recommended by the Regional Board). 

Budget allocated for Task 4 will be utilized upon receiving authorization from the District. 

Estimated Budget: $10,000 

Task 5. Contingency 

An estimate of contingency funds potentially needed for a project of this nature has been included for the 
District’s consideration. Since it is not known what issues the Regional Board and/or District might have 
with the renewed Order at this time, this contingency estimated budget is included for any unforeseen 
circumstances. None of the Task 5 budget will be used without advanced written authorization from the 
District. 

Estimated Budget: $5,000 

  



March 18, 2020 
Jeff Gouveia, General Manager 
Page 3 of 3  

Reference: Proposal for NPDES Permit Renewal Services 

 
 

 

Summary/Schedule 

Stantec proposes to complete the tasks described in this proposal on a time and materials basis following 
the rate schedule (included in Attachment A) in an amount not to exceed $30,000 (including the 
contingency budget). Subject to final review and execution by Stantec and Bear Valley Water District, the 
attached Standard Terms and Conditions will govern the scope of work summarized herein (see 
Attachment B).  

Stantec proposes to complete Task 1 and Task 2 by June 30, 2020. This will allow time to identify any 
additional tasks to be completed, or additional information that should be summarized for inclusion with the 
final ROWD, which is due to be submitted to the Regional Water Board by February 1, 2021. 

 

Regards, 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 

 
Vijay Sundaram, PhD, PE   
Regional Practice Leader- Wastewater 
Phone: (916) 773-8100  
vijay.sundaram@stantec.com 

 



\\us0300-ppfss01\workgroup\1895\active\901050\master\doc\RATE TABLES\2020 Rate Tables\Table 3 2020 Rate .doc 

SCHEDULE OF BILLING RATES – 2020 

Billing 
Level 

Hourly 
Rate Description 

3 

4 

5 

$108 

$113 

$128 

Junior Level position 
 Independently carries out assignments of limited scope using standard procedures, methods and

techniques
 Assists senior staff in carrying out more advanced procedures
 Completed work is reviewed for feasibility and soundness of judgment
 Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program or equivalent
 Generally, one to three years’ experience

6 

7 

8 

$132 

$143 

$149 

Fully Qualified Professional Position 
 Carries out assignments requiring general familiarity within a broad field of the respective profession
 Makes decisions by using a combination of standard methods and techniques
 Actively participates in planning to ensure the achievement of objectives
 Works independently to interpret information and resolve difficulties
 Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
 Generally, three to six years’ experience

9 

10 

11 

$159 

$165 

$176 

First Level Supervisor or first complete Level of Specialization 
 Provides applied professional knowledge and initiative in planning and coordinating work programs
 Adapts established guidelines as necessary to address unusual issues
 Decisions accepted as technically accurate, however may on occasion be reviewed for soundness of

judgment
 Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
 Generally, five to nine years’ experience

12 

13 

14 

$185 

$193 

$209 

Highly Specialized Technical Professional or Supervisor of groups of professionals 
 Provides multi-discipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of expertise
 Participates in short and long range planning to ensure the achievement of objectives
 Makes responsible decisions on all matters, including policy recommendations, work methods, and

financial controls associated with large expenditures
 Reviews and evaluates technical work
 Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
 Generally, ten to fifteen years’ experience with extensive, broad experience

15 

16 

17 

$219 

$234 

$242 

Senior Level Consultant or Management 
 Recognized as an authority in a specific field with qualifications of significant value
 Provides multi-discipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of expertise
 Independently conceives programs and problems for investigation
 Participates in discussions to ensure the achievement of program and/or project objectives
 Makes responsible decisions on expenditures, including large sums or implementation of major

programs and/or projects
 Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
 Generally, more than twelve years’ experience with extensive experience

T-3 2020

ATTACHMENT A



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TERMS AND CONDITIONS Page 1 of 2 

Professional Services Terms and Conditions on StanNet Forms> Company Forms>Risk Management> Standard Form Agreements 

The following Terms and Conditions are attached to and form part of a proposal for services to be performed by Consultant and together, 
when the Client authorizes Consultant to proceed with the services, constitute the Agreement.  Consultant means the Stantec entity 
issuing the Proposal. 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:  Consultant shall render the services described in the Proposal (hereinafter called the “Services”) to the Client. 

DESCRIPTION OF CLIENT:  The Client confirms and agrees that the Client has authority to enter into this Agreement on its own behalf 
and on behalf of all parties related to the Client who may have an interest in the Project. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  No terms, conditions, understandings, or agreements purporting to modify or vary these Terms and 
Conditions shall be binding unless hereafter made in writing and signed by the Client and Consultant.  In the event of any conflict between 
the Proposal and these Terms and Conditions, these Terms and Conditions shall take precedence.  This Agreement supercedes all 
previous agreements, arrangements or understandings between the parties whether written or oral in connection with or incidental to the 
Project. 

COMPENSATION:  Payment is due to Consultant upon receipt of invoice.  Failure to make any payment when due is a material breach 
of this Agreement and will entitle Consultant, at its option, to suspend or terminate this Agreement and the provision of the Services.  
Interest will accrue on accounts overdue by 30 days at the lesser of 1.5 percent per month (18 percent per annum) or the maximum legal 
rate of interest. Unless otherwise noted, the fees in this agreement do not include any value added, sales, or other taxes that may be 
applied by Government on fees for services. Such taxes will be added to all invoices as required. 

NOTICES:  Each party shall designate a representative who is authorized to act on behalf of that party. All notices, consents, and 
approvals required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be given to the representatives of each party. 

TERMINATION:  Either party may terminate the Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days notice in writing. If either party breaches 
the Agreement and fails to remedy such breach within seven (7) days of notice to do so by the non-defaulting party, the non-defaulting 
party may immediately terminate the Agreement. Non-payment by the Client of Consultant’s invoices within 30 days of Consultant 
rendering same is agreed to constitute a material breach and, upon written notice as prescribed above, the duties, obligations and 
responsibilities of Consultant are terminated. On termination by either party, the Client shall forthwith pay Consultant all fees and charges 
for the Services provided to the effective date of termination. 

ENVIRONMENTAL:  Except as specifically described in this Agreement, Consultant’s field investigation, laboratory testing and 
engineering recommendations will not address or evaluate pollution of soil or pollution of groundwater. 

PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY:  In performing the Services, Consultant will provide and exercise the standard of care, skill and 
diligence required by customarily accepted professional practices normally provided in the performance of the Services at the time and 
the location in which the Services were performed. 

INDEMNITY:  The Client releases Consultant from any liability and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Consultant harmless from any 
and all claims, damages, losses, and/or expenses, direct and indirect, or consequential damages, including but not limited to attorney’s 
fees and charges and court and arbitration costs, arising out of, or claimed to arise out of, the performance of the Services, excepting 
liability arising from the sole negligence of Consultant. 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY:  It is agreed that the total amount of all claims the Client may have against Consultant under this Agreement, 
including but not limited to claims for negligence, negligent misrepresentation and/or breach of contract, shall be strictly limited to the 
lesser of professional fees paid to Consultant for the Services or $50,000.00.  No claim may be brought against Consultant more than two 
(2) years after the cause of action arose.  As the Client’s sole and exclusive remedy under this Agreement any claim, demand or suit shall 
be directed and/or asserted only against Consultant and not against any of Consultant’s employees, officers or directors.

Consultant’s liability with respect to any claims arising out of this Agreement shall be absolutely limited to direct damages arising out of 
the Services and Consultant shall bear no liability whatsoever for any consequential loss, injury or damage incurred by the Client, including 
but not limited to claims for loss of use, loss of profits and/or loss of markets. 

Liability of Consultant shall be further limited to such sum as it would be just and equitable for Consultant to pay having regard to the 
extent of its responsibility for the loss or damage suffered and on the assumptions that all other consultants and all contractors and sub-
contractors shall have provided contractual undertakings on terms no less onerous than those set out in this Agreement to the Client in 
respect of the carrying out of their obligations and have paid to the Client such proportion of the loss and damage which it would be just 
and equitable for them to pay having regard to the extent of their responsibility. 

DOCUMENTS:  All of the documents prepared by or on behalf of Consultant in connection with the Project are instruments of service for 
the execution of the Project.  Consultant retains the property and copyright in these documents, whether the Project is executed or not. 
These documents may not be used for any other purpose without the prior written consent of Consultant.  In the event Consultant’s 
documents are subsequently reused or modified in any material respect without the prior consent of Consultant, the Client agrees to 
defend, hold harmless and indemnify Consultant from any claims advanced on account of said reuse or modification. 

Any document produced by Consultant in relation to the Services is intended for the sole use of Client. The documents may not be relied 
upon by any other party without the express written consent of Consultant, which may be withheld at Consultant’s discretion. Any such 
consent will provide no greater rights to the third party than those held by the Client under the contract, and will only be authorized pursuant 
to the conditions of Consultant’s standard form reliance letter. 

Consultant cannot guarantee the authenticity, integrity or completeness of data files supplied in electronic format (“Electronic Files”). Client 
shall release, indemnify and hold Consultant, its officers, employees, Consultant’s and agents harmless from any claims or damages 
arising from the use of Electronic Files.  Electronic files will not contain stamps or seals, remain the property of Consultant, are not to be 

ATTACHMENT B



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TERMS AND CONDITIONS Page 2 of 2 

Professional Services Terms and Conditions on StanNet Forms> Company Forms>Risk Management> Standard Form Agreements 

 

used for any purpose other than that for which they were transmitted, and are not to be retransmitted to a third party without Consultant’s 
written consent. 

FIELD SERVICES:  Consultant shall not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for 
safety precautions and programs in connection with work on the Project, and shall not be responsible for any contractor’s failure to carry 
out the work in accordance with the contract documents.  Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, 
subcontractor, any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the work in connection with the Project. Consultant 
shall not be the prime contractor or similar under any occupational health and safety legislation. 

GOVERNING LAW/COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  The Agreement shall be governed, construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the jurisdiction in which the majority of the Services are performed. Consultant shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, 
continue to provide equal employment opportunity to all qualified persons, and to recruit, hire, train, promote and compensate persons in 
all jobs without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability or national origin or any other basis prohibited by applicable laws. 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION:  If requested in writing by either the Client or Consultant, the Client and Consultant shall attempt to resolve any 
dispute between them arising out of or in connection with this Agreement by entering into structured non-binding negotiations with the 
assistance of a mediator on a without prejudice basis.  The mediator shall be appointed by agreement of the parties.  The Parties agree 
that any actions under this Agreement will be brought in the appropriate court in the jurisdiction of the Governing Law, or elsewhere by 
mutual agreement. Nothing herein however prevents Consultant from any exercising statutory lien rights or remedies in accordance with 
legislation where the project site is located. 

ASSIGNMENT:  The Client shall not, without the prior written consent of Consultant, assign the benefit or in any way transfer the 
obligations under these Terms and Conditions or any part hereof. 

SEVERABILITY:  If any term, condition or covenant of the Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or 
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall be binding on the Client and Consultant. 

CONTRA PROFERENTEM: The parties agree that in the event this Agreement is subject to interpretation or construction by a third party, 
such third party shall not construe this Agreement or any part of it against either party as the drafter of this Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
CLIENT: Jeff Gouveia, General Manager  STANTEC: Vijay Sundaram, Senior Principal 
 Print Name and Title 

  
  Print Name and Title 

Signature   Signature  

 

 

















 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  JUNE 23, 2020, 2020 
TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  MANAGER’S REPORT 

__________________________________________________________________ 

1. Water Balance - Update 

a. Influent Flows & Effluent Transfers 

a. Effluent in Storage, Current Storage Capacity & Land / Surface Disposal Update 

2. Permit Compliance & Monitoring & Reporting Programs (MRPs) - Update 

a. WDR MRP - Land Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Status Matrix – All Monthly and Annual Reporting Submitted On-Time 

ii. 1st Tri-Annual Groundwater Monitoring – Performed June 10-11 

iii. 2019 Treatment Pond Upgrade Project - Update 

b. NPDES MRP – Surface Water Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Status Matrix – All Monthly and Annual Reporting Submitted On-Time 

ii. NPDES Self-Monitoring Report Review – Sept 2019 – Jan 2020, Feb 2020 – April 2020 – No Violations 

Identified 

iii. NPDES 2021- 2025 Permit Renewal - Update 

i. Mid-Term Permit Review, ROWD Reminder, Approval of Updated Mixing Zone Study 

a. Reasonable Potential Analysis (RPA) 

ii. Stantec Proposal for NPDES Permit Renewal Services  

iii. Weber, Ghio & Associates 1 in 100 Year Water Balance – 2020 Update 

a. Inflow & Inundation (I&I) Update  

iv. Report of Waste Discharge – Due February 1, 2021 – Submitted June 2020 

a. Cover Letter 

b. Anti-degradation Analysis 

c. Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan 

d. SWRCB Form 200, EPA Forms 1, 2A & 2S 

e. Maps & Schematics 

3. Other 

a. DSOD Inundation Map & Emergency Action Plan (EAP) – Update 

i. DSOD April 1, 2020 Letter – Inundation Maps APPROVED 

ii. EAP in Process – Tentative Draft Submittal to Office of Emergency Services (OES) Q3 

b. CPUC / PGE Self Generation Incentive Program (SGIP) & Tesla Commercial Energy Storage 

c. USFS Lake Alpine Commercial Account Vault Toilet Installation - Update 

d. COVID-19 – Safety, Finance, Legislation, Water Board Memo, Policies @ Other Agencies 

























































 
 
June 19, 2020 
 
Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 
11020 Sun Center Drive #200 
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 
 
Attn: James Marshall, P.E., Supervising Engineer 

 

Reference: Bear Valley Water District Report of Waste Discharge 
 

Dear Mr. Marshall, 

As requested by the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Water Board) 
in its April 28, 2020 letter to the District entitled “Report of Waste Discharge Reminder for Renewal 
of NPDES Permit CA0085146 and Approval of Updated Mixing Zone/Dilution Study Report,” the 
Bear Valley Water District (District) is providing the attached Report of Waste Discharge (ROWD) 
and supporting information for renewal of Waste Discharge Requirements Order No. R5-2016-0045-
02 (as amended by Order No. R5-2017-0041 and Order No. R5-2019-0078), NPDES No. CA0085146 
(Order), permitting the District’s Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) discharge of treated 
wastewater (termed “effluent”) to Bloods Creek. 

Per the request, this ROWD consists of one document containing the following items, in the 
following order: 

• Antidegradation Analysis 
• Summary of Effectiveness of the District Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan 
• United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Form 1 
• State Water Resources Control Board Form 200 
• EPA Form 2A, with attachments 
• EPA Form 2S, with attachments 

The District respectfully requests that the Regional Water Board consider the following revisions to 
the current Order for inclusion in the renewed Order: 

1. Changing the Potential Frequency and Timing of when Effluent Discharges May Occur 
 
The current Order describes effluent discharges to Bloods Creek as “necessary to maintain 
design conditions in the storage/polishing reservoir in emergency situations during severe 
wet weather periods and during snowmelt season.”  The District believes it is consistent with 
maximum benefit to the people of the State to eliminate the emergency language and 
similar references to emergency situations and severe wet weather from the renewed 
Order. The current Order also prohibits effluent discharge to Bloods Creek from July 1 
through December 31. The District believes it is consistent with maximum benefit to the 
people of the State to modify the discharge prohibition period to be between August 1 
and December 31. This ROWD informational package includes an Antidegradation 



June 19, 2020 
Page 2 of 4  

Reference: Bear Valley Water District Report of Waste Discharge 

 
Analysis discussing why these two amendments (changing the potential frequency and 
timing of effluent discharge) are believed to be appropriate based on recent changes in 
Bear Valley precipitation patterns, California’s water resources, and salinity accumulation 
in California’s water resources.  
 

2. Eliminating Composite Influent Monitoring when Discharge is Not Occurring  
 
Current Order Table E-2, footnote 3, requires one 24-hour composite influent sample each 
month during the effluent discharge season, regardless of whether effluent discharge is or 
is not occurring. The District requests that Table E-2, footnote 3 in the renewed Order read, 
“Monitoring only required in months when a discharge to Bloods Creek occurs.” Year-
round monthly monitoring of influent quality will continue to occur under Order No. 5-01-
208. 
 

3. Eliminating Effluent Monitoring when Discharge is Not Occurring 
 
The current Order requires effluent monitoring even when effluent discharges to Bloods 
Creek are not occurring (e.g., current Order Table E-6, footnote 1 and footnote 4). The 
District has provided these data in 2017, 2018, 2019, and 2020, and believes further data 
adds little to the overall relevant database. The District discharges only when it believes it 
is both necessary for long-term effluent management and appropriate considering real-
time Bloods Creek conditions. Effluent quality when these discharge criteria are not met 
may be different from when these criteria are met. Thus, under the current Order, the 
District may be spending public money on effluent monitoring that does not represent 
information relevant to actual effluent discharge events. Accordingly, the District requests 
that the renewed Order not require effluent monitoring when effluent discharges to Bloods 
Creek are not occurring.  
 

4. Eliminating the lbs/day Effluent Limitations Not Based on a Total Maximum Daily Load 
(TMDL) 
 
Since the lbs/day effluent limitations are based directly on flow (which is regulated) and 
concentration (which is also regulated), the District believes lbs/day effluent limitations are 
redundant and therefore should be removed from the renewed Order. The district believes 
this request is consistent with current Regional Water Board permitting practices. 
 

5. Scheduling Priority Pollutant Monitoring 
 
The Regional Water Board’s April 28, 2020 letter states that the Reasonable Potential 
Analysis (RPA) “is conducted using effluent and receiving water data collected over the 
last three years.” The District is requesting guidance on the timing of the priority pollutant 
monitoring during the five-year permit term considering that 1) under the current Order, 
priority pollutant monitoring was conducted in the first snowmelt season in which the 
District discharged, and in the renewed Order this monitoring could be as early as Year 1 



June 19, 2020 
Page 3 of 4  

Reference: Bear Valley Water District Report of Waste Discharge 

 
and potentially further than three years from when the RPA may be conducted for future 
renewal, 2) the next renewal application is forecast to be due at the end of Year 4 (i.e., 
the next renewal application is forecast to be due one year in advance of permit 
expiration), and 3) the District does not discharge to Bloods Creek every snowmelt season.  
 

6. Regarding pH 
 
With the District’s pond treatment process (i.e., equivalent secondary treatment) and 
polishing/storage reservoir, effluent pH swings are a natural process. The District believes 
the current 6.0/9.0 instantaneous minimum/maximum effluent limitations are appropriate 
to the District’s facilities. The District also believes the 6.5 to 8.5 receiving water limitations 
on pH are also appropriate. The more restrictive of the two limitations (typically that is the 
6.0 effluent limitation) is what controls District discharge operations. Accordingly, the 
District monitors effluent discharge pH continuously and automatically stops discharge 
and recirculates effluent at pH 6.1 to avoid an instantaneous 5.9 reading during discharge 
(from pH meter drive, decay of pine needles, or pollen blown into the reservoir near the 
effluent outlet). Under this control strategy, compliance with current Order pH limitations 
has been excellent. There have been no violations of either effluent limitations or receiving 
water limitations for pH during the current Order term. 
 
Table 1 below shows the range of pH from March 2017 through June 2019 during snowmelt 
season measured at three locations – 1) effluent pH, 2) ambient Bloods Creek pH 
measured 50 feet upstream of the effluent discharge location (RSW-001), and 3) Bloods 
Creek pH 200 feet downstream of the effluent discharge location (RSW-002). The pH range 
of effluent discharged to Bloods Creek from March 2017 through June 2019 reflected a 
natural variability similar to that of Bloods Creek.  

 

Table 1 Minimum and Maximum Effluent pH, RSW-001 pH, and RSW-002 pH 
Measured from March 2017 through June 2019 

 Effluent pH RSW-001 pH [1] RSW-002 pH [2] 

Minimum 6.00 6.58 6.64 

Maximum 8.99 8.89 8.18 

 
[1] RSW-001 is measured 50 ft upstream of the effluent discharge location. 
[2] RSW-002 is measured 200 ft downstream of the effluent discharge location. 

 

 

 



June 19, 2020 
Page 4 of 4  

Reference: Bear Valley Water District Report of Waste Discharge 

 
Table 2 below shows the RSW-001 pH and average effluent pH measured on the days when 
the maximum and minimum RSW-002 pH values were measured when discharge was 
occurring from March 2017 through June 2019. The effluent discharge under actual field 
conditions has buffered (lowered) Bloods Creek high pH values and has not caused Bloods 
Creek pH at RSW-002 to fall below the 6.5 water quality objective. 

 

Table 2 RSW-001 pH and Effluent pH Measured on the days when the Minimum 
and Maximum RSW-002 pH Values were Measured 

Date RSW-002 pH RSW-001 pH Average Effluent pH 

May 22, 2019 6.64 6.79 6.26 

March 15, 2017 8.18 8.70 6.49 

April 5, 2017 8.18 8.74 6.20 

 
 
Any change in effluent limitations and/or receiving water limitations may require 
potentially material modifications of District facilities and/or operations. Consequently, the 
District requests that the Regional Water Board contact the District prior to the release of 
a tentative Order to discuss pH related issues if changes in pH limitations are being 
considered for the renewed Order. 
 

Feel free to contact me with any questions you might have regarding this submittal, or if you 
require additional information. The District appreciates the efforts you and your staff have made 
to accommodate previous amendments as well as your efforts to work closely with the District to 
renew the Order. 

Sincerely, 

Bear Valley Water District 

 

Jeff Gouveia, District Manager  

Attachment: Bear Valley Water District Report of Waste Discharge 

CC: Kelly McGartland, Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  
REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 19, 2020



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 
 

 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 

DOCUMENTS .................................................................................................................................. 3 
ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS ............................................................................................................ 3 
SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF SALINITY EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN .............13 

FORMS .......................................................................................................................................... 30 
U.S. EPA FORM 1 ............................................................................................................................. 30 
CALIFORNIA FORM 200.......................................................................................................................35 

Supplement to Form 200. ...................................................................................................... 40 
U.S. EPA FORM 2A .......................................................................................................................... 41 
U.S. EPA FORM 2S ........................................................................................................................ 72 

Supplement to Form 2S ....................................................................................................... 95 

MAP AND SCHEMATIC ................................................................................................................ 96 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 1 Topographic Map ............................................................................................................. 97 
Figure 2 Process Flow Diagram ...................................................................................................... 98 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

 

   

 
 
 
ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 



 

 

Bear Valley Water District 
Antidegradation Analysis 

 

June 11, 2020  

 

Prepared for: 
 
Bear Valley Water District 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 

 

Table of Contents 

1.0 INTRODUCTION & PURPOSE ...................................................................................... 1 

2.0 RESOLUTION NO. 68-16 AND 40 CFR SECTION 131.12 ............................................ 1 

3.0 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS ......................................................................................... 1 

4.0 EFFLUENT DISCHARGE IMPACTS ON BLOODS CREEK .......................................... 4 

5.0 ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS .................................................................................. 5 

6.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION ................................................................................... 6 

 

LIST OF TABLES 
Table 1  Average Water Quality in Bloods Creek from March 2017 to June 2019 When 

Effluent Discharge was Occurring (a) ............................................................................ 5 

  



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 

 

 
 
 

v:\1840\active\184031289\report\antidegradation\bvwd_antidegradation_analysis_20200611.docx  1 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION & PURPOSE 

The Bear Valley Water District (District) has a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permit Order No. R5-2016-0045-02 (as amended by Order No. R5-2017-0041 and Order No. R5-2019-
0078) adopted by the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Water Board) for 
the District’s Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) discharge of treated wastewater (termed “effluent”) 
to Bloods Creek. The District’s current Order expires on July 31, 2021 and the District must file a Report 
of Waste Discharge (ROWD) by February 1, 2021 in order for the Regional Water Board to consider 
renewing this permit (i.e., adopting a new Order). The District seeks renewal of the permit, with proposed 
amendments believed to be important and causing no significant adverse impact on the environment as 
documented in this Antidegradation Analysis being provided with the ROWD for the new Order.  

2.0 RESOLUTION NO. 68-16 AND 40 CFR SECTION 131.12 

The California State Water Resources Control Board Resolution No 86-16 (also referred to as the 
“Antidegradation Policy”) and 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 131.12 discuss when 
degradation of water quality is appropriate considering a wide range of factors. The critical essence of 
these regulations is believed to be captured by the Resolution No 68-16 requirement that discharges “into 
the waters of the State shall be so regulated as to achieve highest water quality consistent with maximum 
benefit to the people of the State and shall be controlled so as to promote the peace, health, safety, and 
welfare of the people of the State”. Specific concepts common to both requirements include: 

1. Any change in the existing quality of water must be consistent with the maximum benefit to the 
people. 

2. The change must not unreasonably affect current or anticipated beneficial uses of the water. 

3. The water quality must comply with the prescribed policies. 

4. No pollution or nuisance will occur. 

3.0 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

The current Order describes effluent discharges to Bloods Creek as “necessary to maintain design 
conditions in the storage/polishing reservoir in emergency situations during severe wet weather periods 
and during snowmelt season.” Additionally, Prohibition III.E in the current Order prohibits discharge 
between July 1 and December 31.  

The District seeks to incorporate the following two amendments into the new Order:  



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 

 

 
 
 

v:\1840\active\184031289\report\antidegradation\bvwd_antidegradation_analysis_20200611.docx  2 
 

1. Removal of the “emergency” language and similar references to emergency situations and severe 
wet weather from the foregoing language in the current Order, and   

2. Modification of the discharge prohibition period to be between August 1 and December 31 instead 
of between July 1 and December 31.  

Specifically relevant to these two proposed amendments are the interrelated material facts that the 
District has witnessed significant changes to the climate directly at its treatment facilities at 7,200 feet 
elevation over the past five years and the District’s aerial survey of its storage reservoir in 2014, which 
revealed the storage capacity was approximately 30% smaller than previously understood. Increasingly, 
rain (not snow) is falling during winter months in the alpine environment, which, when coupled with 
reduced storage capacity, has dramatically changed the District’s water balance and how the District 
manages the facility to avoid uncontrolled discharges from its storage reservoir. 

The District seeks inclusion of these two amendments in the new Order for several reasons. As proposed, 
these amendments represent a minor refinement of the current Order and current District actions that are 
known to have no significant adverse impacts on the environment based on several years of qualitative 
and quantitative evaluations of Bloods Creek during actual effluent discharge conditions. The effluent 
limitations, which are designed to be protective of the beneficial uses of Bloods Creek, are not proposed 
to be changed. The water quality based effluent limitations contained in the Order have resulted in the 
District implementing best practicable treatment or control (BPTC) of the discharge to ensure no pollution 
or nuisance will occur and the highest water quality that is consistent with the maximum benefit to the 
people of the State will be maintained.  

2.1  REMOVAL OF EMERGENCY LANGUAGE 

The District seeks to remove the “emergency” language because the District believes effluent discharges 
to Bloods Creek should be permitted as necessary under existing effluent water quality and dilution 
requirements to maximize benefit to the people of the State for the reasons listed below. If the 
“emergency” language is removed, the District does not necessarily plan to discharge to Bloods Creek 
every discharge season, but only as conditions warrant. For example, as a result of mid-winter drought 
like conditions in the current water year, the District elected to not discharge this spring 2020. 

1. Critical Loss of Water Resources from the State and Concentration of Salt – The realistic 
alternative to discharging effluent to Bloods Creek is application to forest lands. With land 
application, the effluent either evaporates during application, evapotranspirates from vegetation, 
or infiltrates into the soil and eventually the groundwater. Evaporation and evapotranspiration are 
a loss of pure water from California to the atmosphere. Salts associated with the lost water 
remain on the land, largely in the water that infiltrates to groundwater. Thus, the salinity of the 
effluent that infiltrates to groundwater, and eventually the Stanislaus River watershed, is 
increased. While these water loss and salt concentration phenomena occur with all effluent land 
application projects, in the District’s specific situation the adverse effects of water loss and salt 
concentration are not offset by any material benefit (e.g., creating habitat or recreational activities, 
freeing a higher quality water supply for other beneficial uses, etc.). When the effluent is 
alternatively discharged to Bloods Creek, the salt is kept with its associated water and allows for 



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 

 

 
 
 

v:\1840\active\184031289\report\antidegradation\bvwd_antidegradation_analysis_20200611.docx  3 
 

direct accountability through the NPDES monitoring and reporting program.  Maximizing the 
freshwater resources of California and minimizing needless accumulation of salt in those 
resources are consistent with maximum benefit to the people of the State.  

2. Excessive Tree Mortality – Land application to forest lands causes unnaturally high soil 
moisture conditions during the summer months when the forest soil normally would drain and 
aerate. The District has noted substantial loss of trees in its land application areas. The District 
seeks to minimize this adverse impact on the land environment as long as the alternatives do not 
adversely impact the aquatic environment. After several years of effluent discharge to Bloods 
Creek, the data indicates that the current effluent discharge with 20:1 dilution does not cause 
significant adverse impacts on the aquatic environment, the specifics of which are discussed later 
in this analysis.  

3. Excessive Energy Use – Evaporation and evapotranspiration of effluent via land application both 
require more energy than discharging to Bloods Creek. Land application involves two stage 
pumping of effluent from both high horsepower electric pumps and rented diesel pumps to 
isolated sites and pressurizing the effluent for sprinkler application to forest lands. Energy is used 
and the fuel-fired pumps create some (though limited) air and noise pollution. Both evaporation 
and evapotranspiration of effluent cost more than discharging effluent to Bloods Creek. The 
District has borne this added cost (which varies from year to year), but realizes that it is a public 
expense that results in more damage (i.e., loss of water, concentration of salt, forest damage, 
energy use, and air/noise pollution) than good (reduced minor seasonal degradation of Bloods 
Creek water quality, as discussed below). 

4. Tenuous Land Use Agreement – The United States Forest Service (USFS) has indicated that 
they plan to no longer issue special use permits (SUP) for effluent land disposal. The USFS has 
directed the District to apply for a short-term use permit but advised the District to investigate 
alternatives to land application of effluent on federal lands. Alternatives under consideration 
include discharging more effluent to Bloods Creek with 20:1 dilution to reduce forest land impacts 
and needs and/or purchasing forest land from the Federal government through the Townsite Act. 
While the cost of the federal land is currently unknown, it is expected to be substantial. 

2.2   MODIFICATION OF THE DISCHARGE PROHIBITION PERIOD 

The District also requests that the discharge prohibition period in the new Order be modified to August 1 
through December 31. This request is based on recent experience that under heavy snowfall conditions:  

1. Land application may be unrealistic in July (e.g., in July 2017, the District continued to receive, 
treat, and ultimately store water that could not be applied to saturated land still holding some 
snow nor could it be discharged to a snowmelt swollen Bloods Creek under the current permit 
prohibition).  

2. Snowmelt flows in Bloods Creek would allow effluent discharge well into July with all of the 
aforementioned benefits of creek discharge versus land application being achieved. In the 
absence of a discharge solution in July when these unique set of conditions arise, the likelihood 



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 

 

 
 
 

v:\1840\active\184031289\report\antidegradation\bvwd_antidegradation_analysis_20200611.docx  4 
 

increases that the District will carryover stored water from one water year to the next. This could 
prevent the District from achieving the available storage capacity necessary by November 15, as 
required by the District’s Waste Discharge Requirement Order No. 5-01-208 for effluent land 
application.  

3. The District must have a plan to maximize its service capacity to the existing service boundary 
and subdivided lots. As the facilities are currently operated, the in-District potential needs for 
service are believed to be greater than the current effluent disposal capacity available. Since no 
additional disposal lands are readily available to the District and the fact that some land use 
permits may not be reviewed, the requested amendments are believed to help address the 
District’s sewer service obligations to ensure safe and reliable service for its customers.  

4.0 EFFLUENT DISCHARGE IMPACTS ON BLOODS CREEK  

The current Order requires the District to quantitatively monitor Bloods Creek water quality at two places 
when effluent discharges are occurring: 1) 50 ft upstream of the effluent discharge point (RSW-001) and 
2) 200 ft downstream of the effluent discharge point (RSW-002). Additionally, the current Order’s 
receiving water limitations prohibit the effluent discharge from causing more qualitative adverse 
conditions in Bloods Creek, such as deposits of settled solids or nuisance biostimulation. Results from 
quantitative monitoring of effluent discharge impacts on Bloods Creek water quality are summarized from 
the California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS) in Table 1.  

Table 1 shows 1) the average of results for all days where there were data for each monitoring location, 
2) the differences between the two monitoring locations, and 3) the receiving water limitation from the 
current Order (if applicable). As shown, the effluent discharge shows no overall tendency to adversely 
impact Bloods Creek dissolved oxygen (DO), total hardness, temperature, or pH. However, effluent 
contains more salinity and turbidity than snowmelt. Therefore, the effluent discharge has caused 
degradation, but not pollution, with regards to these water quality parameters. Specifically, over the past 
several seasons of effluent discharge to Bloods Creek, the effluent discharge has on average increased 
Bloods Creek electrical conductivity (EC), an indicator of water salinity, from an ambient 34.6 umhos/cm 
to a downstream value of 42.6 umhos/cm with the most restrictive water quality objective being 700 
umhos/cm. The effluent discharge has increased Bloods Creek turbidity on average from an ambient 0.57 
NTU to a downstream value of 0.74 NTU. The current Order contains a downstream limitation of 2 NTU 
when the ambient turbidity is less than 1 NTU. Although there is a slight increase of EC and turbidity in 
Bloods Creek caused by the effluent discharge, the extent of degradation caused by the discharge is well 
below the water quality limitations.  

While collecting RSW-001 and RSW-002 Bloods Creek water quality data, District staff also observe 
Bloods Creek for any signs of the effluent discharge causing nuisance or aesthetic impacts on the creek 
(e.g., biostimulation, sediments, film, etc.). No impacts of these types have been observed to date.  

 



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 

 

 
 
 

v:\1840\active\184031289\report\antidegradation\bvwd_antidegradation_analysis_20200611.docx  5 
 

Table 1  Average Water Quality in Bloods Creek from March 2017 to June 2019 
When Effluent Discharge was Occurring (a) 

Water Quality Parameter 

Average(b) 

Difference % Difference 

Receiving 
Water 

Limitation 
in Current 

Order 
RSW-001 RSW-002 

DO (mg/L) 9.8 9.7 -0.1 -1% 7.0 (min) 

EC (umhos/cm) 34.6 42.6 8.0 23%   

Turbidity (NTU) 0.57 0.74 0.18 31% 2 

Total Hardness (mg/L as CaCO3) 10.9 12.1 1.3 12%   

Temperature (degree F) 37.1 37.1 0.0 0% 5 degree 
difference 

pH 7.3 7.2 -0.1 -2% 6.5 – 8.5 

(a) Source: CIWQS. 
(b) Average of 33 days between March 2017 and June 2019, except for total hardness, which only has to be 
monitored once a month and is the average of 8 days. 

5.0 ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 

The requirements for an antidegradation analysis are set forth primarily in State Water Resources Control 
Board Resolution 68-16 (discussed in Section 2.0). The District’s proposed amendments would increase 
the frequency and duration of degradation of Bloods Creek water quality with respect to EC and turbidity 
as noted in Table 1, but not the magnitude of degradation to any significant extent. The current discharge 
does not cause readily observable biostimulation in Bloods Creek and certainly does not cause nuisance 
biostimulation. Therefore, under the proposed amendments, the degradation reported (and postulated), 
herein: 

1. Would occur without the District declaring an “emergency”. Discharges would occur when 
appropriate to maximize benefit to the people of the State, which may be more frequent than 
“emergency” conditions. 

2. Would occur in some July months, particularly when late snowmelt occurs. 

In all cases, the degradation should not be materially different from what has been observed to date 
because effluent water quality, Bloods Creek snowmelt season water quality, and effluent dilution 
requirements are not expected to change materially. Maximum biostimulation occurs concurrent with 
maximum sunlight and water temperature. Maximum sunlight is determined by proximity to the summer 
solstice and shading provided by deciduous riparian vegetation. The District’s effluent discharge location 
is in a meadow of a coniferous (not deciduous) forest. Thus, the issue of sunlight is related almost entirely 



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 

 

 
 
 

v:\1840\active\184031289\report\antidegradation\bvwd_antidegradation_analysis_20200611.docx  6 
 

to proximity to the summer solstice. Therefore, the maximum period for biostimulation risk is around June 
21, not July. In theory, July creek temperature should be warmer, but in practice the District’s effluent 
discharge is driven by snowmelt season, and snowmelt temperature in Bloods Creek is around 37°F, as 
shown in Table 1. Warmer Bloods Creek temperatures will occur, but not during the snowmelt period 
when the District makes its effluent discharges.  

With biostimulation and creek aesthetics not appearing to be issues based on real world experience and 
logic, the balance/tradeoffs for the two proposed amendments from an antidegradation perspective 
appear to be:  

Benefits of not amending the Order: 

• Reduced frequency and seasonal duration of degradation of Bloods Creek EC and turbidity.  

Benefits of amending the Order: 

• More water resources in California, 

• Less concentration of salt on the Stanislaus River watershed, 

• Less energy consumption, 

• Reduced environmental impacts on forest ecology, air quality, and noise levels, and 

• Reduced public expense. 

To the District, it appears by inspection that the greater benefit to the people of the State results from the 
District’s proposed amendments. The unforeseen risk to the people posed by the proposed amendments 
is believed to be minor based on the following: 

1. Factual results from effluent discharges made over several snowmelt seasons, 

2. The District’s on-going monitoring during each effluent discharge period, 

3. The District’s effluent storage reservoir serving as an effluent equalization process (i.e., effluent 
water quality “spikes” or “upsets” cannot occur through either the District’s pond treatment 
process or the subsequent storage reservoir volume), and 

4. If there is any perceived problem with the effluent discharge to Bloods Creek, then the discharge 
can be stopped, and the effluent stored in the reservoir until the problem is addressed. 

6.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 

The District is requesting two amendments in the new Order that require antidegradation analysis. The 
discharge undergoes BPTC and the effluent limitations are designed to protect the beneficial uses of 
Bloods Creek. The amendments do not change physical or chemical conditions in Bloods Creek with 



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS 

 

 
 
 

v:\1840\active\184031289\report\antidegradation\bvwd_antidegradation_analysis_20200611.docx  7 
 

regards to water quality and/or risk of nuisance conditions, but they do change the frequency and/or 
timing of when effluent discharges may occur. Timing is potentially important with regards to 
biostimulation risk, but not in this particular situation where the primary driver is snowmelt season and the 
discharge location is a meadow in a coniferous forest. Frequency is also potentially important, but not in 
this particular situation because the increase in frequency is seasonal from snowmelt period to snowmelt 
period with substantial blocks of time existing between snowmelt/effluent discharge periods. In other 
words, the chances for some form of cumulative impact from long-term, continuous effluent discharge is 
not an issue in this specific situation involving an increase in limited, seasonal effluent discharges.  

The benefits of not amending the new Order versus the benefits of amending the new Order have been 
identified and qualified. The District believes the benefits of amending the Order are of maximum benefit 
to the people of the State. 



 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

 

   

 
 
 
SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF SALINITY EVALUATION AND 
MINIMIZATION PLAN 



 

 

Summary of Effectiveness of the 
Bear Valley Water District Salinity 
Evaluation and Minimization Plan 

 

June 8, 2020  

 

Prepared for: 
 
Bear Valley Water District 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 



SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SALINITY 
EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 

Introduction, Purpose, & Scope  
      

mk v:\1840\active\184031289\report\salinity_evaluation\bvwd_salinity_eval_20200608.docx i 
 

Table of Contents 

1.0 INTRODUCTION, PURPOSE, & SCOPE ....................................................................... 1 

2.0 SALINITY EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN .................................................. 1 

3.0 EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND APPLICABLE WATER QUALITY 
OBJECTIVES ................................................................................................................. 2 

4.0 CV-SALTS ..................................................................................................................... 2 

5.0 SALINITY EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN EFFECTIVENESS .................... 4 

6.0 CONCLUSION ............................................................................................................... 6 

 

LIST OF TABLES 
Table 1 Salinity Water Quality Objectives/Criteria ..................................................................... 2 
Table 2  Recent EC of the Potable Water Supply and the Wastewater Effluent ......................... 4 
Table 3  Recent TDS Concentrations of the Potable Water Supply and the Wastewater 

Effluent ........................................................................................................................ 5 
Table 4  Recent Chloride Concentrations of the Wastewater Effluent ........................................ 5 
Table 5  Recent Sulfate Concentrations of the Potable Water Supply and the 

Wastewater Effluent ..................................................................................................... 5 
Table 6  Maximum Measured Effluent Concentrations Compared to Most Stringent 

Water Quality Objective/Criteria ................................................................................... 6 

  

LIST OF APPENDICES 
APPENDIX A      BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SALINITY EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION 
PLAN……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….A.1 



SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SALINITY 
EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 

Introduction, Purpose, & Scope  
      

mk v:\1840\active\184031289\report\salinity_evaluation\bvwd_salinity_eval_20200608.docx 1 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION, PURPOSE, & SCOPE  

The Bear Valley Water District (District) has a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permit Order No. R5-2016-0045-02 (as amended by Order No. R5-2017-0041 and Order No. R5-2019-
0078) adopted by the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Water Board) for 
the District’s Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) discharge of treated wastewater (termed “effluent”) 
to Bloods Creek. The WWTF, which produces secondary disinfected effluent through biological treatment 
and chlorine disinfection, receives wastewater from approximately 650 residential and commercial 
equivalent dwelling units within the Bear Valley area. The WWTF has a design capacity of 0.5 million 
gallons per day (mgd) and is permitted to discharge up to 1.0 mgd as a monthly average and up to 2.5 
mgd as a daily maximum from January 1 through June 30 with a minimum 20:1 (creek:effluent) dilution. 

The District’s NPDES permit expires on July 31, 2021 and the District must file a Report of Waste 
Discharge (ROWD) by February 1, 2021. Along with the submittal of the ROWD, Special Provision 
VI.C.3.a. of the Order requires a summary of the effectiveness of the District’s Salinity Evaluation and 
Minimization Plan. 

This summary includes a brief description of the District’s current Salinity Evaluation and Minimization 
Plan and compares the WWTF effluent water quality to the current applicable water quality objectives. A 
description of the Central Valley Salinity Alternatives for Long Term Sustainability (CV-SALTS) initiative, 
which is anticipated to be fully approved this year (2020) is also included, along with a discussion of the 
District’s compliance with the CV-SALTS initiative.  

2.0 SALINITY EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 

The District’s Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan (Salinity Plan) was prepared by Weber, Ghio & 
Associates, Inc. in October 2012 to fulfill a requirement included in the District’s previous NPDES permit 
(Order No. R5-2011-0053). The 2012 Salinity Plan is included in Appendix A. The Salinity Plan assessed 
the District’s salinity sources, which include the potable water supply, residential water uses, commercial 
water uses, and the wastewater collection and treatment processes. After comparing the WWTF’s effluent 
water quality to the applicable salinity water quality objectives, it was determined that the District was 
capable of complying with applicable salinity water quality objectives because the effluent salinity 
concentrations were significantly lower than the objectives. The Salinity Plan concluded that the reduction 
in effluent salinity that could be realized through treatment process modifications, such as reverse 
osmosis, did not justify the associated high capital and operational costs. Instead, the Salinity Plan 
recommended that District salinity control efforts focus on public outreach and source control. As a 
source control effort, the District has added a message to its website emphasizing to District customers 
the difference between the wastewater utility and a landfill, and what types of wastes belong in each. 



SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SALINITY 
EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 

Effluent Limitations and Applicable Water Quality Objectives  
      

mk v:\1840\active\184031289\report\salinity_evaluation\bvwd_salinity_eval_20200608.docx 2 
 

3.0 EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND APPLICABLE WATER QUALITY 
OBJECTIVES 

The current Order does not contain effluent limitations for salinity. The Fact Sheet details the other 
sources for water quality objectives/criteria for indicators of salinity, including electrical conductivity (EC), 
total dissolved solids (TDS), chloride, and sulfate. Other sources discussed in the Fact Sheet include the 
Secondary Maximum Contaminant Levels (SMCLs) established by the State of California and the US 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) National Ambient Water Quality Criteria (NAWQC). Table 1 
shows applicable salinity water quality objectives/criteria discussed in the Fact Sheet.  

Table 1 Salinity Water Quality Objectives/Criteria 

Parameter SMCL [1] US EPA NAWQC 

EC (umhos/cm) 900-1600-2200 - 

TDS (mg/L) 500-1000-1500 - 

Chloride (mg/L) 250-500-600 
860 (1-hour) 

230 (4-day) 

Sulfate (mg/L) 250-500-600 - 

[1] The three SMCL values shown are recommended, upper, and short term SMCLs. 

4.0  CV-SALTS 

In an effort to control salt accumulation in residual irrigation water, mitigate adverse impacts on 
agricultural lands, and ultimately stabilize salinity (and possibly reverse it to some extent), the Regional 
Water Board developed the CV-SALTS initiative. The objective of the initiative was to develop a salinity 
(and nitrate) control plan based on input from all stakeholders (e.g., agriculture, cities, industries, 
environmentalists, economists, etc.). The initiative resulted in recommendations that the Regional Water 
Board’s “Basin Plan” be amended to specify how control of salinity (and nitrate) was to be accomplished. 
The CV-SALTS proposed Basin Plan amendments were adopted by the Regional Water Board on 31 
May 2018 and forwarded to the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) for approval. 
The State Water Board approved the Basin Plan amendments on 16 October 2019 and forwarded them 
on to the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) for 
approval. The OAL approved the amendments on 15 January 2020, which becomes the effective date for 
the Basin Plan amendments and policies identified therein, except for those aspects needing EPA 
approval, which is pending at this time. Under the amendments, the District will receive a Notice to 
Comply with the amendments from the Regional Water Board. Though the District has not yet received its 



SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SALINITY 
EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 

CV-SALTS  
      

mk v:\1840\active\184031289\report\salinity_evaluation\bvwd_salinity_eval_20200608.docx 3 
 

Notice to Comply, the District is committed to following CV-SALTS guidelines and associated Basin Plan 
amendments, as discussed below.  

Key aspects of the Basin Plan amendments relative to regulation of salinity that are believed to be 
relevant to the District and the District’s response to those regulations are presented below. 

• The Salt Control Program (SCP) will be implemented in three phases (Phases I, II, and III), with 
each phase expected to take from 10 to 15 years (i.e., 30 to 45 years total, according to the Basin 
Plan).  

• The SCP will be reviewed in its entirety prior to implementing Phase II, but no later than 15 years 
after the effective date, which is 15 January 2020. 

• The District will receive a Notice to Comply from the Regional Water Board within one year of the 
effective date of the amendments (i.e., within one year of 15 January 2020). 

• The District will decide whether it will comply with either the Conservative Salinity Permitting 
Approach or the Alternative Salinity Permitting Approach (as shown in Figure S-1 from the Basin 
Plan amendments). The District will have six months after receiving the Notice to Comply to 
submit a Notice of Intent of its selected approach to the Regional Water Board. 

• It is likely the District will decide to pursue the Conservative Salinity Permitting Approach because 
the salinity of the District’s effluent is significantly lower than the water quality objectives being 
proposed by the Basin Plan amendments. As discussed further in Section 5.0, the District’s 
recorded measurements of effluent EC have averaged 105 umhos/cm since 2016. 

• Phase 1 Conservative Salinity Permitting Approach salinity WQOs for Municipal (MUN) and 
Agricultural (AGR) beneficial uses are established at 900 umhos/cm and 700 umhos/cm, 
respectively, for both surface waters and groundwaters. The District currently complies with these 
requirements. 

• A Drought and Conservation Policy will address short-term salinity exceedances caused by 
factors beyond District control.  

• Under the Conservative Salinity Permitting Approach, the District is expected to achieve the 
following items: 

o Comply with the existing regulatory structure (the District currently complies, including the 
Antidegradation Policy). 

o Focus on source control to limit salinity impacts to the extent feasible (ongoing efforts are 
included in the District’s current Salinity Plan). 



SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SALINITY 
EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 

Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan Effectiveness  
      

mk v:\1840\active\184031289\report\salinity_evaluation\bvwd_salinity_eval_20200608.docx 4 
 

o Use as little salinity assimilative capacity as feasible in surface waters and groundwaters 
(the District creates salinity assimilative capacity via its effluent discharge to Bloods 
Creek).  

o Need little to no time schedules to achieve compliance with proposed salinity WQOs (the 
District is in compliance at this time). 

In summary, the CV-SALTS Basin Plan amendments are expected to change some aspects of the 
District’s Order but may not change District wastewater utility operations materially. For the District, key 
themes coming out of the Basin Plan amendments are thought to be 1) continued salinity source control, 
and 2) continued compliance with the State’s Antidegradation Policy. 

5.0 SALINITY EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 
EFFECTIVENESS 

The California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS) contains the District’s self-reported water quality 
data for the required monitoring locations and constituents. The Lake Alpine Water Company Water 
Quality Reports contain the potable water supply water quality data. Since the District is required to 
monitor for EC once per week when discharging effluent to Bloods Creek, there are significantly more 
data available for EC than for TDS, chloride, and sulfate which are only required to be tested once per the 
permit term. Tables 2 through 5 show the effluent water quality for EC, TDS, chloride, and sulfate, 
respectively, in comparison to the potable water supply (if available).  

Table 2  Recent EC of the Potable Water Supply and the Wastewater Effluent 

Calendar Year 
Potable Water 

Supply EC 
(umhos/cm) [1] 

Wastewater Effluent EC (umhos/cm) [2] 

Average Maximum 

2016 37 100 100 

2017 32 120 230 

2018 45 100 124 

2019 27 82 161 

2016 – 2019 Average/Maximum [3] 35 105 230 
[1] Obtained from the Lake Alpine Water Company Water Quality Reports. Each water sample was taken in August of 
each year. 
[2] Obtained from the California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS). CIWQS had 1 EC datum point in May 
2016, 35 EC data points in March through June 2017, 14 EC data points in April and May of 2018, and 18 EC data 
points in May and June of 2019. 
[3] The potable water supply and the average wastewater effluent EC columns show the average EC measured 
between 2016 and 2019. The maximum wastewater effluent EC column shows the maximum EC measured between 
2016 and 2019.  



SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SALINITY 
EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 

Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan Effectiveness  
      

mk v:\1840\active\184031289\report\salinity_evaluation\bvwd_salinity_eval_20200608.docx 5 
 

Table 3  Recent TDS Concentrations of the Potable Water Supply and the 
Wastewater Effluent 

Calendar Year Potable Water Supply TDS 
(mg/L) [1] 

Wastewater Effluent TDS 
(mg/L) [2] 

2016 53 80 

2017 35 110 

2018 42 - 

2019 51 - 

2016 – 2019 Average 45 95 
[1] Obtained from the Lake Alpine Water Company Water Quality Reports. Each water sample was taken in August of 
each year.  
[2] Obtained from CIWQS. Measured in May 2016 and March 2017. 
 
 
Table 4  Recent Chloride Concentrations of the Wastewater Effluent 

Calendar Year  Wastewater Effluent Chloride (mg/L) [1] 

2016 11 

2017 16 

2016 – 2017 Average 14 
   [1] Obtained from CIWQS. Measured in May 2016 and March 2017. 

 
 
Table 5  Recent Sulfate Concentrations of the Potable Water Supply and the 

Wastewater Effluent 

Calendar Year Potable Water Supply Sulfate 
(mg/L) [1] 

Wastewater Effluent Sulfate 
(mg/L) [2] 

2016 - 3.1 

2017 - 3.2 

2018 - - 

2019 0.52 - 

2016 – 2019 Average 0.52 3.2 
[1] Obtained from the Lake Alpine Water Company Water Quality Reports. Sulfate was not reported in these annual 
reports until 2019. The water sample was taken in August 2019. 
[2] Obtained from CIWQS. Measured in May 2016 and March 2017. 
 
 
 
As expected, there is an increase in salinity from the potable water supply to the wastewater effluent 
caused largely by residential/commercial uses. However, comparing the most stringent water quality 



SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SALINITY 
EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 

Conclusion  
      

mk v:\1840\active\184031289\report\salinity_evaluation\bvwd_salinity_eval_20200608.docx 6 
 

objectives to the maximum measured effluent concentrations of the respective parameters shows that the 
effluent from the WWTF is well within compliance, as shown in Table 6.   

 
Table 6  Maximum Measured Effluent Concentrations Compared to Most Stringent 

Water Quality Objective/Criteria 

Parameter  Maximum Measured Effluent 
Concentration since May 2016 [1] 

Most Stringent Water Quality 
Objective/Criteria 

EC (umhos/cm) 230 700 [2] 

TDS (mg/L) 110 500 [3] 

Chloride (mg/L) 16 230 [4] 

Sulfate (mg/L) 3.2 250 [5] 
[1] Obtained from CIWQS. 
[2] The CV-SALTS WQO. 
[3] The TDS SMCL. 
[4] The US EPA NAWQC. 
[5] The sulfate SMCL. 

6.0 CONCLUSION 

The District has a Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan that assessed the District’s salinity sources 
and compared the District’s effluent salinity to the applicable water quality objectives. The District 
continues to monitor its salinity trends. The District’s effluent salinity parameters are significantly lower 
than the most stringent water quality objectives/criteria. The District intends to comply with the applicable 
water quality objectives and the CV-SALTS Basin Plan amendments.  

 



SUMMARY OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SALINITY 
EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 

 

 

  A.1 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

SALINITY EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 
October 2012 

 

 

 



 
 
 

BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
	
	
	

SALINITY EVALUATION 
AND 

MINIMIZATION PLAN 
 
 

OCTOBER 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
 

Weber, Ghio & Associates, Inc. 
P.O. Box 251 

San Andreas, CA  95249 
(209) 754-1824 



 

Contents 
SALINITY EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN .................................................... 1 

1.0   INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................. 1 
1.1 Effluent Limitations and Applicable Water Quality Objectives ............................ 1 

2.0  SALINITY SOURCES ........................................................................................... 2 
2.1  Potable Water Supply ....................................................................................... 3 
2.2  Residential Uses ............................................................................................... 3 
2.3  Commercial and Industrial Water Use ............................................................... 3 
2.4  Wastewater Collection and Treatment .............................................................. 4 

3.0  POTENTIAL METHODS TO REDUCE SALINITY AND ANTICIPATED                                       
LOAD REDUCTIONS .................................................................................................. 4 
4.0  MONITORING PLAN ............................................................................................ 4 
5.0  SALINITY MINIMIZATION GOALS AND SCHEDULE .......................................... 5 
6.0  CONCLUSION ...................................................................................................... 5 

 



1 
 

SALINITY EVALUATION AND MINIMIZATION PLAN 
 

1.0   INTRODUCTION 
 
On August 4, 2011 the California Regional Water Board, Central Valley Region 
(Regional Water Board) adopted Order No. R5-2011-0053 (NPDES Permit No. 
CA0085146) Waste Discharge Requirements for the Bear Valley Water District.  Special 
Provision V1.C.3.b of the Order requires the District to “…prepare a salinity evaluation 
and minimization plan to address sources of salinity from the Facility.”  This report has 
been prepared to fulfill the requirements of this section of the Order. 
 
The wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) receives wastewater from approximately 535 
residential (133 year round residents) and 17 commercial connections within the Bear 
Valley Water District.  WWTP influent is comprised primarily of domestic and 
commercial wastewater with no real industrial sources.  The WWTP produces 
secondary disinfected effluent, with an existing design capacity of 0.5 million gallons per 
day (Mgal/day) and a permitted capacity of up to 0.1 Mgal/day, both on an average dry 
weather flow (ADWF) basis.  The effluent can be discharged to Bloods Creek from 
January 1 through June 30 under conditions 1) storage reservoir (polishing pond) has 
less than 35 MG of unused effluent storage capacity and 2) providing a minimum of 
20:1 dilution.  Secondary effluent is applied to the District’s Designated Land Disposal 
Area (DLDA) to the extent feasible, but primarily from May 1 through October 31 
dependent upon snow melt and weather conditions.  Effluent that in real-time cannot be 
discharged to Bloods Creek or the DLDA is stored until discharge is possible. 
 
Recent monitoring of the potable water supply has yielded an average electrical 
conductivity (EC) of 78 µmhos/cm.  The historical average wastewater effluent EC for 
the period of 1997 through 2010 is 126 µmhos/cm.  The average wastewater effluent 
EC for 2011 is 60 µmhos/cm, below the historical average EC of 126 µmhos/cm. 
 

1.1 Effluent Limitations and Applicable Water Quality Objectives 
 
The Order does not contain a final effluent limitation for annual average electrical 
conductivity (EC) or total dissolved solids (TDS).  The Water Quality Control Plan (Basin 
Plan) for the California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Valley Region 
includes established and adopted numeric and narrative water quality objectives with 
respect to salinity.  In addition, State Water Board Resolution 68-16, the “Anti-
degradation Policy,” requires 1) the quality of individual waters of the state be 
addressed in the permitting of waste discharges, and 2) high quality water should be 
preserved to the maximum benefit of the people of the state. 
  



2 
 

 
 
Numeric drinking water supply objectives on total dissolved solids (TDS) and EC have 
been adopted in the form of Secondary Maximum Contaminant Levels (SMCLs) based 
on duration of discharge to protect municipal and domestic water supply beneficial uses.  
These SMCLs consist of “Recommended,” “Upper,” and “Short-term” contaminant 
ranges.  Narrative limitations for the protection of agricultural beneficial uses have also 
been established.  These limitations should take the specific area, including climate and 
topography, and cropping patterns into account, and thus vary from area to area.  
Generally, numeric agricultural water quality objectives (WQOs) established by the 
Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) that limit detrimental impacts to the most 
sensitive crops are applied as discharge limitations.  A listing of these water quality 
objectives, effluent limitations, and the average concentration of the effluent is 
presented in Table 1. 
 

Table 1 
Comparison of Effluent Limitations, Applicable Water Quality Objectives, and 

Effluent Quality, Bear Valley Water District WWTP 
Parameter Final Effluent 

Limitation Secondary MCL (a) Agriculture 
WQO Effluent (b) 

Electrical Conductivity (µmhos/cm) --- 900-1600-2200 700 126 
TDS (mg/L) --- 500-1000-1500 450 140 
(a) Recommended –Upper-Short term. 
(b) Average of polishing pond data 1997-2010. 
 
The average WWTP effluent EC of 126 μmhos/cm (based on 1997 through 2010 
monitoring) and 2011 testing result of 60 μmhos/cm are less than the agricultural water 
quality objective of 700 μmhos/cm, established in the Basin Plan.  Based on the long-
term effluent average, the District WWTP is currently capable of complying with all 
applicable salinity water quality objectives.  However, increased water conservation in 
the community, including future State mandated reclamation and water conservation 
requirements, may inhibit compliance with the final effluent limitation in the future. 
 

2.0  SALINITY SOURCES 
 
The Bear Valley Water District WWTP influent wastewater is derived from residential 
and commercial uses of water.  Thus, the salinity of the influent reflects the salinity of 
the potable water supply, additions from domestic and commercial uses of water, and 
any salinity contributed to (or diluted in) the collection system through infiltration and 
inflow.  Additional inputs of salinity can occur during the wastewater treatment process, 
including increases in salinity concentration resulting from evaporation.  Potential 
salinity sources associated with each of these components are discussed in this 
section. 
  



3 
 

 

2.1  Potable Water Supply 
 
The potable water within the District’s service area is provided by the Lake Alpine Water 
Company using low salinity surface water from springs and snow melt into Bear Lake.  
The treatment of this surface water includes microfiltration and disinfection which add 
salinity to the water.  The average salinity of the treated potable water supply based on 
2011 testing is 78 μmhos/cm, which is a low salinity water supply. 
 

2.2  Residential Uses 
 
The residential use of water contributes salinity to the wastewater within the District’s 
service area primarily by the addition of soluble compounds to the water from 
excrement and cleaning products (e.g. detergents, soaps, cleansers, disinfectants, etc.).  
Generally, water softeners are large contributors of salinity to wastewater, but their use 
in the District’s service area is unlikely based on the low hardness of the surface water 
supply (16 mg/L).  Water quality data collected to date does not suggest significant 
numbers of water softeners in the community.  The District may consider passing an 
ordinance banning the use of water softeners in new construction to prevent ill-informed 
homeowners from installing the devices when no material benefit will be realized.  
Swimming pools and hot tubs contribute salinity through maintenance activities and 
concentrate the salinity through evaporation.  Other sources of salinity include the 
contribution of food particles through dishwashing and garbage disposals. 
 
Although water conservation does not contribute salinity to the wastewater on a mass 
basis, it does increase the concentration of salts in the wastewater.  As water 
conservation technology continues to be implemented within residential development 
and existing homes (e.g. there are already dual flush toilets on the market, a lower flush 
volume for liquid wastes and a higher flush volume for solid wastes), the wastewater 
salt concentration can be expected to continually increase (counter to the intent of the 
Order). 
 

2.3  Commercial and Industrial Water Use 
 
Commercial sources of salinity are somewhat similar to those from residential use of 
water.  However, the salinity varies with type of business.  Potential sources of salinity 
that are somewhat different than residential use include cooling water blow down, car 
washes, photo processing wastes, and healthcare facilities.  There are no significant 
industrial wastewater discharges to the District’s collection system. 
  



4 
 

 

2.4  Wastewater Collection and Treatment 
 
Generally, salinity inputs from wastewater collection are attributed to infiltration and 
inflow (I&I).  Infiltration of shallow groundwater, particularly in areas with substantial 
irrigated agriculture, can contribute salinity to the wastewater stream.  Bear Valley is not 
surrounded by irrigated agricultural lands, and I/I does not appear to cause significant 
increases in wastewater salinity. 
 
At the WWTP, salt containing chemicals, e.g., chlorine, are used to treat the 
wastewater.  During treatment, incidental evaporation of water occurs, which increases 
the salt concentration of the effluent. 
 

3.0  POTENTIAL METHODS TO REDUCE SALINITY AND ANTICIPATED                   
LOAD REDUCTIONS 
 
The use of water in the District’s service area historically contributes a very low amount 
of salinity, approximately 48 μmhos/cm of EC, including contributions from the treatment 
process.  Therefore, additional reductions in salinity are unlikely.  Additional methods 
available to reduce the salinity of the District’s effluent are limited.  There is no source of 
lower salinity potable water.  Public outreach and education efforts could be conducted 
to inform the citizens and businesses served by the District about salinity, and practices 
that could be employed to reduce effluent salinity.  Including information with the utility 
bill would be a relatively simple and inexpensive method of education.  The potential 
load reduction from these efforts will vary depending on public action, but is anticipated 
to be minimal. 
 
Thus, any significant further reduction in effluent salinity will likely require modifications 
in treatment processes.  The current chlorination/dechlorination system could be 
replaced with ultraviolet light disinfection, which could potentially reduce effluent salinity 
by approximately 50 mg/L.  Reverse osmosis (RO) could remove salinity from the 
effluent, but at a very high cost.  The brine stream created by RO would probably need 
to be shipped to the Bay Area for discharge to the ocean.  Based on the cost of these 
potential treatment process modifications, District salinity reduction efforts will focus on 
source control rather than on advanced treatment processes. 
 

4.0  MONITORING PLAN 
 
The District currently monitors the WWTP effluent for EC twice a year (no discharge to 
Bloods Creek) and twice per week (during discharge to Bloods Creek) and for TDS 
monthly.  The WWTP influent is monitored for EC monthly and the water supply is 
monitored by EC and TDS annually.  Monitoring influent salinity using EC is problematic 
due to high levels of volatile (organic) dissolved solids, and monitoring the effluent is 
sufficient for determining salinity contributions.  The continued implementation of this 



5 
 

ongoing salinity monitoring program should provide adequate data to quantify the 
effectiveness of any District-implemented salinity minimization efforts. 
 

5.0  SALINITY MINIMIZATION GOALS AND SCHEDULE 
 
The District is currently in compliance with water quality objectives for salinity.  The 
District will conduct its salinity minimization plan for the purpose of continuing to meet 
the objectives.  The primary methods for further achieving salinity minimization include 
the consideration of implementing a public outreach program as well as continued 
monitoring.  It should be noted that future water conservation programs will likely 
increase the salinity of the wastewater, and the District may not be capable of meeting 
these limitations if major accomplishments of “in home” water conservation are realized.  
If this occurs it is suggested that the order be reopened to recognize the salt 
concentration effect of water conservation. 
 

6.0  CONCLUSION 
 
The current increases in wastewater resource salinity from 1) use of potable water, and 
2) the subsequent treatment of the wastewater produced in the Bear Valley Water 
District are below Regional Water Board objectives, which allow for an increase in 
effluent EC of 500 μmhos/cm over source water.  The District has implemented a 
salinity monitoring program to track salinity trends and to determine if additional 
measures are necessary to further reduce effluent salinity.  In addition, the necessity of 
a public education program will be explored, and implemented, if it is determined that 
the program could result in a measurable reduction in the salinity footprint of the 
community. 
 



 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

 

   

 
 

FORMS 
 
 
 

U.S. EPA FORM 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

Form 
1 

NPDES 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Application for NPDES Permit to Discharge Wastewater 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
SECTION 1. ACTIVITIES REQUIRING AN NPDES PERMIT (40 CFR 122.21(f) and (f)(1)) 

Ac
tiv

iti
es

 R
eq

ui
rin

g 
an

 N
PD

ES
 P

er
m

it 

1.1 Applicants Not Required to Submit Form 1 

1.1.1 Is the facility a new or existing publicly owned 
treatment works? 
If yes, STOP. Do NOT complete No 
Form 1. Complete Form 2A. 

1.1.2 Is the facility a new or existing treatment works 
treating domestic sewage? 
If yes, STOP. Do NOT No 
complete Form 1. Complete 
Form 2S. 

1.2 Applicants Required to Submit Form 1 
1.2.1 Is the facility a concentrated animal feeding 

operation or a concentrated aquatic animal 
production facility? 

Yes Complete Form 1 No 
and Form 2B. 

1.2.2 Is the facility an existing manufacturing, 
commercial, mining, or silvicultural facility that is 
currently discharging process wastewater? 

Yes Complete Form No 
1 and Form 2C. 

1.2.3 Is the facility a new manufacturing, commercial, 
mining, or silvicultural facility that has not yet 
commenced to discharge? 

Yes Complete Form 1 No 
and Form 2D. 

1.2.4 Is the facility a new or existing manufacturing, 
commercial, mining, or silvicultural facility that 
discharges only nonprocess wastewater? 

Yes Complete Form No 
1 and Form 2E. 

1.2.5 Is the facility a new or existing facility whose 
discharge is composed entirely of stormwater 
associated with industrial activity or whose 
discharge is composed of both stormwater and 
non-stormwater? 

Yes Complete Form 1 No 
and Form 2F 
unless exempted by 
40 CFR 
122.26(b)(14)(x) or 
(b)(15). 

SECTION 2. NAME, MAILING ADDRESS, AND LOCATION (40 CFR 122.21(f)(2)) 

Na
m

e, 
Ma

ilin
g 

Ad
dr

es
s, 

an
d 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

2.1 Facility Name 

2.2 EPA Identification Number 

2.3 Facility Contact 
Name (first and last) Title Phone number 

Email address 

2.4 Facility Mailing Address 
Street or P.O. box 

City or town State ZIP code 

EPA Form 3510-1 (revised 3-19) Page 1 

✔ ✔

✔ ✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

Na
m

e, 
Ma

ilin
g 

Ad
dr

es
s,

an
d 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

Co
nt

in
ue

d 2.5 Facility Location 
Street, route number, or other specific identifier 

County name County code (if known) 

City or town State ZIP code 

SECTION 3. SIC AND NAICS CODES (40 CFR 122.21(f)(3)) 

SI
C 

an
d 

NA
IC

S 
Co

de
s 

3.1 SIC Code(s) Description (optional) 

3.2 NAICS Code(s) Description (optional) 

SECTION 4. OPERATOR INFORMATION (40 CFR 122.21(f)(4)) 

Op
er

at
or

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

4.1 Name of Operator 

4.2 Is the name you listed in Item 4.1 also the owner? 

Yes No 
4.3 Operator Status 

Public—federal Public—state Other public (specify)_______________ 
Private Other (specify) _______________ 

4.4 Phone Number of Operator 

Op
er

at
or

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Co
nt

in
ue

d 

4.5 Operator Address 
Street or P.O. Box 

City or town State ZIP code 

Email address of operator 

SECTION 5. INDIAN LAND (40 CFR 122.21(f)(5)) 

In
di

an
La

nd 5.1 Is the facility located on Indian Land? 

Yes No 

EPA Form 3510-1 (revised 3-19) Page 2 

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

SECTION 6. EXISTING ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS (40 CFR 122.21(f)(6)) 

Ex
ist

in
g 

En
vir

on
m

en
ta

l
Pe

rm
its

 

6.1 Existing Environmental Permits (check all that apply and print or type the corresponding permit number for each) 
NPDES (discharges to surface 
water) 
_______________________ 

RCRA (hazardous wastes) 

____________________________ 

UIC (underground injection of 
fluids) 
________________________ 

PSD (air emissions) 
________________________ 

Nonattainment program (CAA) 
___________________________ 

NESHAPs (CAA) 
_______________________ 

Ocean dumping (MPRSA) 
________________________ 

Dredge or fill (CWA Section 404) 
____________________________ 

Other (specify) 
_________________________ 

SECTION 7. MAP (40 CFR 122.21(f)(7)) 

Ma
p 

7.1 Have you attached a topographic map containing all required information to this application? (See instructions for 
specific requirements.) 

Yes No CAFO—Not Applicable (See requirements in Form 2B.) 

SECTION 8. NATURE OF BUSINESS (40 CFR 122.21(f)(8)) 

Na
tu

re
 o

f B
us

in
es

s 

8.1 Describe the nature of your business. 

SECTION 9. COOLING WATER INTAKE STRUCTURES (40 CFR 122.21(f)(9)) 

Co
ol

in
g 

W
at

er
In

ta
ke

 S
tru

ct
ur

es
 

9.1 Does your facility use cooling water? 

Yes No SKIP to Item 10.1. 
9.2 Identify the source of cooling water. (Note that facilities that use a cooling water intake structure as described at 

40 CFR 125, Subparts I and J may have additional application requirements at 40 CFR 122.21(r). Consult with your 
NPDES permitting authority to determine what specific information needs to be submitted and when.) 

SECTION 10. VARIANCE REQUESTS (40 CFR 122.21(f)(10)) 

Va
ria

nc
e R

eq
ue

st
s 

10.1 Do you intend to request or renew one or more of the variances authorized at 40 CFR 122.21(m)? (Check all that 
apply. Consult with your NPDES permitting authority to determine what information needs to be submitted and 
when.) 

Fundamentally different factors (CWA Water quality related effluent limitations (CWA Section 
Section 301(n)) 302(b)(2)) 
Non-conventional pollutants (CWA Thermal discharges (CWA Section 316(a)) 
Section 301(c) and (g)) 
Not applicable 

EPA Form 3510-1 (revised 3-19) Page 3 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔





BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 
 

  

 

 
 
 
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD - FORM 200 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Form 200 (10/97) 1 

State of California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board 

APPLICATION/REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 
GENERAL INFORMATION FORM FOR 

WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS OR NPDES PERMIT 

I. FACILITY INFORMATION

A. FACILITY:
Name

Address

City/County/State/Zip Code

Contact Person

Telephone Number Email 

B. FACILITY OWNER:
Name

Address

City/State/Zip Code

Contact Person

Telephone Number Email 

Federal Tax ID

Owner Type (Mark one):

Individual Corporation Governmental Agency Partnership 

Other: 

C. FACILITY OPERATOR (The agency or business, not the person):
Name

Address

City/State/Zip Code

Contact Person

Telephone Number     Email

Operator Type (Mark one):

Individual Corporation Governmental Agency Partnership 

Other: 

BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

441 CREEKSIDE DRIVE

BEAR VALLEY / ALPINE / CA / 95223

JEFF GOUVEIA

209.753.2112 Jeff.Gouveia@bvwd.ca.gov

BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

PO BOX 5027

BEAR VALLEY / CA / 95223

JEFF GOUVEIA

209.753.2112 Jeff.Gouveia@bvwd.ca.gov

94-6333359

SPECIAL DISTRICT

BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

PO BOX 5027

BEAR VALLEY / CA / 95223

JEFF GOUVEIA

209.753.2112 Jeff.Gouveia@bvwd.ca.gov

SPECIAL DISTRICT

✔

✔



Form 200 (10/97) 2 

D. OWNER OF THE LAND
Name

Address

City/State/Zip Code

Contact Person

Telephone Number Email 

Owner Type (Mark one):

Individual Corporation Governmental Agency Partnership 

Other: 

E. ADDRESS WHERE LEGAL NOTICE MAY BE SERVED
Address

City/State/Zip Code

Contact Person

Telephone Number         Email

F. BILLING ADDRESS
Address

City/State/Zip Code

Contact Person

Telephone Number Email 

II. TYPE OF DISCHARGE

Check Type of Discharge(s) Described in this Application: 
Waste Discharge to Land  Waste Discharge to Surface Water 

Check all that apply: 
Animal or Aquacultural Wastewater Land Treatment Unit 

Animal Waste Solids  Landfill (see instructions) 

Biosolids/Residual Mining 

Cooling Water  Storm Water 

Domestic/ Municipal Wastewater Surface Impoundment 
Treatment and Disposal 

Dredge Material Disposal Waste Pile 

Hazardous Waste (see instructions) Wastewater Reclamation 

Industrial Process Wastewater Other, please describe 

C. BRUCE ORVIS, TBH PARTNERS, AND USFS (SEE SUPPLEMENT TO FORM 200)

✔

441 CREEKSIDE DRIVE

BEAR VALLEY / CA / 95223

JEFF GOUVEIA

209.753.2112 Jeff.Gouveia@bvwd.ca.gov

PO BOX 5027

BEAR VALLEY / CA / 95223

JEFF GOUVEIA

209.753.2112 Jeff.Gouveia@bvwd.ca.gov

✔

✔



Form 200 (10/97) 3 

III. LOCATION OF THE FACILITY 

Describe the physical location of the facility: 

1. Assessor’s Parcel Number(s) 

Facility: 

Discharge Point: 

2. Latitude 

Facility: 

Discharge Point: 

3. Longitude 

Facility: 

Discharge Point: 

IV. REASON FOR FILING 

Check all that apply: 
New Discharge or Facility 

Change in Design or Operation 

Change in Quantity/Type of Discharge 

Changes in Ownership/Operator (see instructions) 

Waste Discharge Requirements Update or NPDES Permit Reissuance 

Other: 

V. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) 

Name of Lead Agency 
Has a public agency determined that the proposed project is exempt from CEQA? 

Yes  No 

If yes, state the basis for the exemption and the name of the agency supplying the 
exemption on the line below: 

Has a “Notice of Determination” been filed under CEQA? 
Yes  No 

If Yes, enclose a copy of the CEQA document, Environmental Impact Report (EIR), or 
Negative Declaration. If No, identify the expected type of CEQA document and 
expected date of completion. 
Expected CEQA Documents:  EIR  Negative Declaration 

Expected CEQA Completion Date: 

SEC. 18-19, T7N, R18E

SEC. 18, T7N, R18E

38° 27' 14.5" N

38° 27' 25" N

120° 02' 11.5" W

120° 02' 13" W

 N/A - EXISTING FACILITY & DISCHARGE

✔





BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 
 

  

 
 
 
 
Supplement to Form 200 

 
I. Facility Information, D. Owner of the Land: 

 
APN: 005-010-009, 005-010-019, and 005-010-012 

 
C. Bruce Orvis 
9601 State Route #4 
Farmington, CA 95230 
(209) 246-3691 

 
TBH Partners 
Charles J. Toeniskoetter 
1980 The Alameda, Suite 20 
San Jose, CA 95126 
(408) 246-3691 

 
United States Forest Service 
Stanislaus National Forest 
19777 Greenley Road 
Sonora, CA 95370 
(209) 532-3671 

 
United States Forest Service 
Stanislaus National Forest 
Calaveras Ranger District 
P.O. Box 500 
Hathaway Pines, CA 95233 
(209) 795-1381 



 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

 

   

 
 
 
U.S. EPA FORM 2A 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

1.1 Facility name 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier)       Same as mailing address 

City or town State ZIP code 

1.2 Is this application for a facility that has yet to commence discharge? 
Yes See instructions on data submission No 

requirements for new dischargers. 

1.3 Is applicant different from entity listed under Item 1.1 above? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 1.4. 

Applicant name 

Applicant address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

1.4 Is the applicant the facility’s owner, operator, or both? (Check only one response.) 
Owner Operator Both 

1.5 To which entity should the NPDES permitting authority send correspondence? (Check only one response.) 
Facility and applicant Facility Applicant (they are one and the same) 

1.6 Indicate below any existing environmental permits. (Check all that apply and print or type the corresponding permit 
number for each.) 

NPDES (discharges to surface 
water) 
_________________________ 

RCRA (hazardous waste) 

_________________________ 

UIC (underground injection 
control) 
_______________________ 

PSD (air emissions) 

_________________________ 

Nonattainment program (CAA) 

_________________________ 

NESHAPs (CAA) 

_______________________ 
Ocean dumping (MPRSA) 

_________________________ 

Dredge or fill (CWA Section 
404) 
_________________________ 

Other (specify) 

_______________________ 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 1 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

1.7 Provide the collection system information requested below for the treatment works. 

(indicate percentage) 
_____ % separate sanitary sewer 
_____ % combined storm and sanitary sewer 

Unknown 

Own Maintain 
Own Maintain 
Own Maintain 

_____ % separate sanitary sewer 
_____ % combined storm and sanitary sewer 

Unknown 

Own Maintain 
Own Maintain 
Own Maintain 

_____ % separate sanitary sewer 
_____ % combined storm and sanitary sewer 

Unknown 

Own Maintain 
Own Maintain 
Own Maintain 

_____ % separate sanitary sewer 
_____ % combined storm and sanitary sewer 

Unknown 

Own Maintain 
Own Maintain 
Own Maintain 

Total percentage of each type of 
sewer line (in miles) % % 

1.8 Is the treatment works located in Indian Country? 
Yes No 

1.9 Does the facility discharge to a receiving water that flows through Indian Country? 
Yes No 

1.10 Provide design and actual flow rates in the designated spaces. 
mgd 

mgd mgd mgd 

mgd mgd mgd 

1.11 Provide the total number of effluent discharge points to waters of the United States by type. 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 2 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

0.500 (ADWF)



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

1.12 Does the POTW discharge wastewater to basins, ponds, or other surface impoundments that do not have outlets for 
discharge to waters of the United States? 

Yes No SKIP to Item 1.14. 
1.13 Provide the location of each surface impoundment and associated discharge information in the table below. 

(check one) 

gpd 
Continuous 
Intermittent 

gpd 
Continuous 
Intermittent 

gpd Continuous 
Intermittent 

1.14 Is wastewater applied to land? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 1.16. 

1.15 Provide the land application site and discharge data requested below. 

(check one) 

acres gpd Continuous 
Intermittent 

acres gpd Continuous 
Intermittent 

acres gpd Continuous 
Intermittent 

1.16 Is effluent transported to another facility for treatment prior to discharge? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 1.21. 

1.17 Describe the means by which the effluent is transported (e.g., tank truck, pipe). 

1.18 Is the effluent transported by a party other than the applicant? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 1.20. 

1.19 Provide information on the transporter below. 

Entity name Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title 

Phone number Email address 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 3 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

1.20 In the table below, indicate the name, address, contact information, NPDES number, and average daily flow rate of the 
receiving facility. 

Facility name Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title 

Phone number Email address 

NPDES number of receiving facility (if any) None Average daily flow rate mgd 

1.21 Is the wastewater disposed of in a manner other than those already mentioned in Items 1.14 through 1.21 that do not 
have outlets to waters of the United States (e.g., underground percolation, underground injection)? 

Yes No SKIP to Item 1.23. 

1.22 Provide information in the table below on these other disposal methods. 

(check one) 

acres gpd Continuous 
Intermittent 

acres gpd Continuous 
Intermittent 

acres gpd Continuous 
Intermittent 

1.23 Do you intend to request or renew one or more of the variances authorized at 40 CFR 122.21(n)? (Check all that apply. 
Consult with your NPDES permitting authority to determine what information needs to be submitted and when.) 

Discharges into marine waters (CWA Water quality related effluent limitation (CWA Section 
Section 301(h)) 302(b)(2)) 
Not applicable 

1.24 Are any operational or maintenance aspects (related to wastewater treatment and effluent quality) of the treatment works 
the responsibility of a contractor? 

Yes No SKIP to Section 2. 
1.25 Provide location and contact information for each contractor in addition to a description of the contractor's operational 

and maintenance responsibilities. 

Contractor name 
(company name) 
Mailing address 
(street or P.O. box) 
City, state, and ZIP 
code 
Contact name (first and 
last) 
Phone number 

Email address 
Operational and 
maintenance 
responsibilities of 
contractor 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 4 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

2.1 Does the treatment works have a design flow greater than or equal to 0.1 mgd? 

Yes No SKIP to Section 3. 

2.2 Provide the treatment works’ current average daily volume of inflow 
and infiltration. gpd 

Indicate the steps the facility is taking to minimize inflow and infiltration. 

2.3 Have you attached a topographic map to this application that contains all the required information? (See instructions for 
specific requirements.) 

Yes No 

2.4 Have you attached a process flow diagram or schematic to this application that contains all the required information? 
(See instructions for specific requirements.) 

Yes No 

2.5 Are improvements to the facility scheduled? 
Yes No SKIP to Section 3. 

Briefly list and describe the scheduled improvements. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

2.6 Provide scheduled or actual dates of completion for improvements. 

(from above) (list outfall 
number) (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY) 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

2.7 Have appropriate permits/clearances concerning other federal/state requirements been obtained? Briefly explain your 
response. 

Yes No None required or applicable 

Explanation: 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 5 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

3.1 Provide the following information for each outfall. (Attach additional sheets if you have more than three outfalls.) 

State 

County 

City or town 

Distance from shore ft. ft. ft. 

Depth below surface ft. ft. ft. 

Average daily flow rate mgd mgd mgd 

Latitude 

Longitude 

3.2 Do any of the outfalls described under Item 3.1 have seasonal or periodic discharges? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 3.4. 

3.3 If so, provide the following information for each applicable outfall. 

Number of times per year 
discharge occurs 
Average duration of each 
discharge (specify units) 
Average flow of each mgd mgd mgd discharge 
Months in which discharge 
occurs 

3.4 Are any of the outfalls listed under Item 3.1 equipped with a diffuser? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 3.6. 

3.5 Briefly describe the diffuser type at each applicable outfall. 

Does the treatment works discharge or plan to discharge wastewater to waters of the United States from one or more 3.6 discharge points? 

Yes No SKIP to 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 6 

R5-2016-0045-02

0.775 

 

 

 

 

✔

001

0-1

January - June

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

3.7 Provide the receiving water and related information (if known) for each outfall. 

Receiving water name 

Name of watershed, river, 
or stream system 
U.S. Soil Conservation 
Service 14-digit watershed 
code 
Name of state 
management/river basin 
U.S. Geological Survey 
8-digit hydrologic 
cataloging unit code 
Critical low flow (acute) cfs cfs cfs 

Critical low flow (chronic) cfs cfs cfs 

Total hardness at critical 
low flow 

mg/L of 
CaCO3 

mg/L of 
CaCO3 

mg/L of 
CaCO3 

3.8 Provide the following information describing the treatment provided for discharges from each outfall. 

(check all that 
apply per outfall) 

Primary 
Equivalent to 
secondary 
Secondary 
Advanced 
Other (specify) 
__________________ 

Primary 
Equivalent to 
secondary 
Secondary 
Advanced 
Other (specify) 
___________________ 

Primary 
Equivalent to 
secondary 
Secondary 
Advanced 
Other (specify) 
_________________ 

BOD5 or CBOD5 % % % 

TSS % % % 

Phosphorus 
Not applicable 

% 
Not applicable 

% 
Not applicable 

% 

Nitrogen 
Not applicable 

% 
Not applicable 

% 
Not applicable 

% 
Other (specify) 

______________________ 

Not applicable 

% 

Not applicable 

% 

Not applicable 

% 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 7 

R5-2016-0045-02

001

001

✔

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

3.9 Describe the type of disinfection used for the effluent from each outfall in the table below. If disinfection varies by 
season, describe below. 

Disinfection type 

Seasons used 

Dechlorination used? Not applicable 
Yes 
No 

Not applicable 
Yes 
No 

Not applicable 
Yes 
No 

3.10 Have you completed monitoring for all Table A parameters and attached the results to the application package? 
Yes No 

3.11 Have you conducted any WET tests during the 4.5 years prior to the date of the application on any of the facility’s 
discharges or on any receiving water near the discharge points? 

Yes No SKIP to Item 3.13. 
3.12 Indicate the number of acute and chronic WET tests conducted since the last permit reissuance of the facility’s 

discharges by outfall number or of the receiving water near the discharge points. 

Number of tests of discharge 
water 
Number of tests of receiving 
water 

3.13 Does the treatment works have a design flow greater than or equal to 0.1 mgd? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 3.16. 

3.14 Does the POTW use chlorine for disinfection, use chlorine elsewhere in the treatment process, or otherwise have 
reasonable potential to discharge chlorine in its effluent? 

Yes Complete Table B, including chlorine. No Complete Table B, omitting chlorine. 
3.15 Have you completed monitoring for all applicable Table B pollutants and attached the results to this application 

package? 
Yes No 

3.16 Does one or more of the following conditions apply? 
The facility has a design flow greater than or equal to 1 mgd. 
The POTW has an approved pretreatment program or is required to develop such a program. 
The NPDES permitting authority has informed the POTW that it must sample for the parameters in Table C, must 
sample other additional parameters (Table D), or submit the results of WET tests for acute or chronic toxicity for 
each of its discharge outfalls (Table E). 

Yes Complete Tables C, D, and E as No SKIP to Section 4. applicable. 
3.17 Have you completed monitoring for all applicable Table C pollutants and attached the results to this application 

package? 
Yes No 

3.18 Have you completed monitoring for all applicable Table D pollutants required by your NPDES permitting authority and 
attached the results to this application package? 

No additional sampling required by NPDES Yes permitting authority. 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 8 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

3.19 Has the POTW conducted either (1) minimum of four quarterly WET tests for one year preceding this permit application 
or (2) at least four annual WET tests in the past 4.5 years? 

No Complete tests and Table E and SKIP to Yes Item 3.26. 
3.20 Have you previously submitted the results of the above tests to your NPDES permitting authority? 

No Provide results in Table E and SKIP to Yes Item 3.26. 
3.21 Indicate the dates the data were submitted to your NPDES permitting authority and provide a summary of the results. 

(MM/DD/YYYY) 

3.22 Regardless of how you provided your WET testing data to the NPDES permitting authority, did any of the tests result in 
toxicity? 

Yes No SKIP to Item 3.26. 
3.23 Describe the cause(s) of the toxicity: 

3.24 Has the treatment works conducted a toxicity reduction evaluation? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 3.26. 

3.25 Provide details of any toxicity reduction evaluations conducted. 

3.26 Have you completed Table E for all applicable outfalls and attached the results to the application package? 
Not applicable because previously submitted Yes information to the NPDES permitting authority. 

4.1 Does the POTW receive discharges from SIUs or NSCIUs? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 4.7. 

4.2 Indicate the number of SIUs and NSCIUs that discharge to the POTW. 

4.3 Does the POTW have an approved pretreatment program? 
Yes No 

4.4 Have you submitted either of the following to the NPDES permitting authority that contains information substantially 
identical to that required in Table F: (1) a pretreatment program annual report submitted within one year of the 
application or (2) a pretreatment program? 

Yes No SKIP to Item 4.6. 
4.5 Identify the title and date of the annual report or pretreatment program referenced in Item 4.4. SKIP to Item 4.7. 

4.6 Have you completed and attached Table F to this application package? 
Yes No 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 9 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

4.7 Does the POTW receive, or has it been notified that it will receive, by truck, rail, or dedicated pipe, any wastes that are 
regulated as RCRA hazardous wastes pursuant to 40 CFR 261? 

Yes No SKIP to Item 4.9. 

4.8 If yes, provide the following information: 

(check all that apply) 

Truck Rail 
Dedicated pipe Other (specify) 

________________ 
________________ 

Truck Rail 
Dedicated pipe Other (specify) 

________________ 
________________ 

Truck Rail 
Dedicated pipe Other (specify) 

________________ 
________________ 

4.9 Does the POTW receive, or has it been notified that it will receive, wastewaters that originate from remedial activities, 
including those undertaken pursuant to CERCLA and Sections 3004(7) or 3008(h) of RCRA? 

Yes No SKIP to Section 5. 
4.10 Does the POTW receive (or expect to receive) less than 15 kilograms per month of non-acute hazardous wastes as 

specified in 40 CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e)? 
Yes SKIP to Section 5. No 

4.11 Have you reported the following information in an attachment to this application: identification and description of the 
site(s) or facility(ies) at which the wastewater originates; the identities of the wastewater’s hazardous constituents; and 
the extent of treatment, if any, the wastewater receives or will receive before entering the POTW? 

Yes No 

5.1 Does the treatment works have a combined sewer system? 
No SKIP to Section 6. Yes 

5.2 Have you attached a CSO system map to this application? (See instructions for map requirements.) 
Yes No 

5.3 Have you attached a CSO system diagram to this application? (See instructions for diagram requirements.) 
Yes No 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 10 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

5.4 For each CSO outfall, provide the following information. (Attach additional sheets as necessary.) 

City or town 

State and ZIP code 

County 

Latitude 

Longitude 

Distance from shore ft. ft. ft. 

Depth below surface ft. ft. ft. 

5.5 Did the POTW monitor any of the following items in the past year for its CSO outfalls? 

Rainfall Yes No Yes No Yes No 

CSO flow volume Yes No Yes No Yes No 
CSO pollutant 
concentrations Yes No Yes No Yes No 

Receiving water quality Yes No Yes No Yes No 

CSO frequency Yes No Yes No Yes No 

Number of storm events Yes No Yes No Yes No 

5.6 Provide the following information for each of your CSO outfalls. 

Number of CSO events in 
the past year events events events 

Average duration per 
event 

hours 
Actual or Estimated 

hours 
Actual or Estimated 

hours 
Actual or Estimated 

Average volume per event million gallons 
Actual or Estimated 

million gallons 
Actual or Estimated 

million gallons 
Actual or Estimated 

Minimum rainfall causing 
a CSO event in last year 

inches of rainfall 
Actual or Estimated 

inches of rainfall 
Actual or Estimated 

inches of rainfall 
Actual or Estimated 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 11 

R5-2016-0045-02

 

 

 

 

 

 





EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

(include units) 

Biochemical oxygen demand 
ML BOD5 or CBOD5 MDL 

(report one) 
ML Fecal coliform MDL 

Design flow rate 

pH (minimum) 

pH (maximum) 

Temperature (winter) 

Temperature (summer) 
ML Total suspended solids (TSS) MDL 

1 Sampling shall be conducted according to sufficiently sensitive test procedures (i.e., methods) approved under 40 CFR 136 for the analysis of pollutants or pollutant parameters or 
required under 40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N or O. See instructions and 40 CFR 122.21(e)(3). 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 1

R5-2016-0045-02



This page intentionally left blank. 



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

(include units) 

Ammonia (as N) ML 
MDL 

Chlorine 
(total residual, TRC)2 

ML 
MDL 

Dissolved oxygen ML 
MDL 

Nitrate/nitrite ML 
MDL 

Kjeldahl nitrogen ML 
MDL 

Oil and grease ML 
MDL 

Phosphorus ML 
MDL 

Total dissolved solids ML 
MDL 

1 Sampling shall be conducted according to sufficiently sensitive test procedures (i.e., methods) approved under 40 CFR 136 for the analysis of pollutants or pollutant parameters or 
required under 40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N or O. See instructions and 40 CFR 122.21(e)(3). 
2 Facilities that do not use chlorine for disinfection, do not use chlorine elsewhere in the treatment process, and have no reasonable potential to discharge chlorine in their effluent are not 
required to report data for chlorine. 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 15 

R5-2016-0045-02



. 

This page intentionally left blank. 



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

(include units) 

Hardness (as CaCO3) ML 
MDL 

Antimony, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Arsenic, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Beryllium, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Cadmium, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Chromium, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Copper, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Lead, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Mercury, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Nickel, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Selenium, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Silver, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Thallium, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Zinc, total recoverable ML 
MDL 

Cyanide ML 
MDL 

Total phenolic compounds ML 
MDL 

Acrolein ML 
MDL 

Acrylonitrile ML 
MDL 

Benzene ML 
MDL 

Bromoform ML 
MDL 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 17 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

(include units) 

Carbon tetrachloride ML 
MDL 

Chlorobenzene ML 
MDL 

Chlorodibromomethane ML 
MDL 

Chloroethane ML 
MDL 

2-chloroethylvinyl ether ML 
MDL 

Chloroform ML 
MDL 

Dichlorobromomethane ML 
MDL 

1,1-dichloroethane ML 
MDL 

1,2-dichloroethane ML 
MDL 

trans-1,2-dichloroethylene ML 
MDL 

1,1-dichloroethylene ML 
MDL 

1,2-dichloropropane ML 
MDL 

1,3-dichloropropylene ML 
MDL 

Ethylbenzene ML 
MDL 

Methyl bromide ML 
MDL 

Methyl chloride ML 
MDL 

Methylene chloride ML 
MDL 

1,1,2,2-tetrachloroethane ML 
MDL 

Tetrachloroethylene ML 
MDL 

Toluene ML 
MDL 

1,1,1-trichloroethane ML 
MDL 

1,1,2-trichloroethane ML 
MDL 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 18 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

(include units) 

Trichloroethylene ML 
MDL 

Vinyl chloride ML 
MDL 

p-chloro-m-cresol ML 
MDL 

2-chlorophenol ML 
MDL 

2,4-dichlorophenol ML 
MDL 

2,4-dimethylphenol ML 
MDL 

4,6-dinitro-o-cresol ML 
MDL 

2,4-dinitrophenol ML 
MDL 

2-nitrophenol ML 
MDL 

4-nitrophenol ML 
MDL 

Pentachlorophenol ML 
MDL 

Phenol ML 
MDL 

2,4,6-trichlorophenol ML 
MDL 

Acenaphthene ML 
MDL 

Acenaphthylene ML 
MDL 

Anthracene ML 
MDL 

Benzidine ML 
MDL 

Benzo(a)anthracene ML 
MDL 

Benzo(a)pyrene ML 
MDL 

3,4-benzofluoranthene ML 
MDL 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 19 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

(include units) 

Benzo(ghi)perylene ML 
MDL 

Benzo(k)fluoranthene ML 
MDL 

Bis (2-chloroethoxy) methane ML 
MDL 

Bis (2-chloroethyl) ether ML 
MDL 

Bis (2-chloroisopropyl) ether ML 
MDL 

Bis (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate ML 
MDL 

4-bromophenyl phenyl ether ML 
MDL 

Butyl benzyl phthalate ML 
MDL 

2-chloronaphthalene ML 
MDL 

4-chlorophenyl phenyl ether ML 
MDL 

Chrysene ML 
MDL 

di-n-butyl phthalate ML 
MDL 

di-n-octyl phthalate ML 
MDL 

Dibenzo(a,h)anthracene ML 
MDL 

1,2-dichlorobenzene ML 
MDL 

1,3-dichlorobenzene ML 
MDL 

1,4-dichlorobenzene ML 
MDL 

3,3-dichlorobenzidine ML 
MDL 

Diethyl phthalate ML 
MDL 

Dimethyl phthalate ML 
MDL 

2,4-dinitrotoluene ML 
MDL 

2,6-dinitrotoluene ML 
MDL 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 20 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

(include units) 

1,2-diphenylhydrazine ML 
MDL 

Fluoranthene ML 
MDL 

Fluorene ML 
MDL 

Hexachlorobenzene ML 
MDL 

Hexachlorobutadiene ML 
MDL 

Hexachlorocyclo-pentadiene ML 
MDL 

Hexachloroethane ML 
MDL 

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene ML 
MDL 

Isophorone ML 
MDL 

Naphthalene ML 
MDL 

Nitrobenzene ML 
MDL 

N-nitrosodi-n-propylamine ML 
MDL 

N-nitrosodimethylamine ML 
MDL 

N-nitrosodiphenylamine ML 
MDL 

Phenanthrene ML 
MDL 

Pyrene ML 
MDL 

1,2,4-trichlorobenzene ML 
MDL 

1 Sampling shall be conducted according to sufficiently sensitive test procedures (i.e., methods) approved under 40 CFR 136 for the analysis of pollutants or pollutant parameters or 
required under 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N or O. See instructions and 40 CFR 122.21(e)(3). 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 21 

R5-2016-0045-02



This page intentionally left blank. 



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

(list) (include units) 

No additional sampling is required by NPDES permitting authority. 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 
ML 
MDL 

1 Sampling shall be conducted according to sufficiently sensitive test procedures (i.e., methods) approved under 40 CFR 136 for the analysis of pollutants or pollutant parameters or required 
under 40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N or O. See instructions and 40 CFR 122.21(e)(3). 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 23 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔



This page intentionally left blank. 



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

The table provides response space for one whole effluent toxicity sample. Copy the table to report additional test results. 

Test species 
Age at initiation of test 
Outfall number 
Date sample collected 
Date test started 
Duration 

Test method number 
Manual title 
Edition number and year of publication 
Page number(s) 

Check one: Grab 
24-hour composite 

Grab 
24-hour composite 

Grab 
24-hour composite 

Check one: Before Disinfection 
After Disinfection 
After Dechlorination 

Before Disinfection 
After Disinfection 
After Dechlorination 

Before disinfection 
After disinfection 
After dechlorination 

Describe the point in the treatment process 
at which the sample was collected for each 
test. 

Indicate for each test whether the test was 
performed to asses acute or chronic toxicity, 
or both. (Check one response.) 

Acute 
Chronic 
Both 

Acute 
Chronic 
Both 

Acute 
Chronic 
Both 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 25 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

The table provides response space for one whole effluent toxicity sample. Copy the table to report additional test results. 

Indicate the type of test performed. (Check one 
response.) 

Static 
Static-renewal 
Flow-through 

Static 
Static-renewal 
Flow-through 

Static 
Static-renewal 
Flow-through 

Indicate the source of dilution water. (Check 
one response.) 

Laboratory water 
Receiving water 

Laboratory water 
Receiving water 

Laboratory water 
Receiving water 

If laboratory water, specify type. 
If receiving water, specify source. 

Indicate the type of dilution water. If salt 
water, specify “natural” or type of artificial 
sea salts or brine used. 

Fresh water 
Salt water (specify) 

Fresh water 
Salt water (specify) 

Fresh water 
Salt water (specify) 

Specify the percentage effluent used for all 
concentrations in the test series. 

Check the parameters tested. pH 
Salinity 
Temperature 

Ammonia 
Dissolved oxygen 

pH 
Salinity 
Temperature 

Ammonia 
Dissolved oxygen 

pH 
Salinity 
Temperature 

Ammonia 
Dissolved oxygen 

Percent survival in 100% effluent % % % 
LC50 

95% confidence interval % % % 
Control percent survival % % % 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 26 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Outfall Number Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

The table provides response space for one whole effluent toxicity sample. Copy the table to report additional test results. 

Other (describe) 

NOEC % % % 
IC25 % % % 
Control percent survival % % % 
Other (describe) 

Is reference toxicant data available? Yes No Yes No Yes No 
Was reference toxicant test within 
acceptable bounds? Yes No Yes No Yes No 
What date was reference toxicant test run 
(MM/DD/YYYY)? 
Other (describe) 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 27 

R5-2016-0045-02



This page intentionally left blank. 



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

Response space is provided for three SIUs. Copy the table to report information for additional SIUs. 

Name of SIU 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City, state, and ZIP code 

Description of all industrial processes that affect 
or contribute to the discharge. 

List the principal products and raw materials that 
affect or contribute to the SIU’s discharge. 

Indicate the average daily volume of wastewater 
discharged by the SIU. gpd gpd gpd 

How much of the average daily volume is 
attributable to process flow? gpd gpd gpd 

How much of the average daily volume is 
attributable to non-process flow? gpd gpd gpd 

Is the SIU subject to local limits? 
Yes No Yes No Yes No 

Is the SIU subject to categorical standards? 
Yes No Yes No Yes No 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 29 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

Response space is provided for three SIUs. Copy the table to report information for additional SIUs. 

Under what categories and subcategories is the 
SIU subject? 

Has the POTW experienced problems (e.g., 
upsets, pass-through interferences) in the past 4.5 
years that are attributable to the SIU? 

Yes No Yes No Yes No 

If yes, describe. 

EPA Form 3510-2A (Revised 3-19) Page 30 

R5-2016-0045-02



 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

 

   

 
 

 
U.S. EPA FORM 2S 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

Does your facility currently have an effective NPDES permit or have you been directed by your NPDES permitting authority to submit a 
full Form 2S permit application? 

Yes Complete Part 2 of application package (begins p. 7). No Complete Part 1 of application package (below).

Complete this part only if you are a “sludge-only” facility (i.e., a facility that does not currently have, and is not applying for, an NPDES 
permit for a direct discharge to a surface body of water). 

. 

1.1 Facility name 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) Same as mailing address
City or town State ZIP code 

1.2 
Public—federal Public—state Other public (specify)___________________
Private Other (specify) _________

2.1 Is applicant different from entity listed under Item 1.1 above? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 2.3 (Part 1, Section 2).

2.2 Applicant name 

Applicant address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

2.3 Is the applicant the facility’s owner, operator, or both? (Check only one response.) 
Owner Operator Both

2.4 To which entity should the NPDES permitting authority send correspondence? (Check only one response.) 
Facility and applicantFacility Applicant (they are one and the same) 

. 

3.1 Provide the total dry metric tons per the latest 365-day period of sewage sludge generated, treated, used, and 
disposed of: 

Amount generated at the facility 

Amount treated at the facility 

Amount used (i.e., received from off site) at the facility 

Amount disposed of at the facility 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 1 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

. 

4.1 Using the table below or a separate attachment, provide existing sewage sludge monitoring data for the pollutants 
for which limits in sewage sludge have been established in 40 CFR 503 for your facility’s expected use or disposal 
practices. If available, base data on three or more samples taken at least one month apart and no more than 
4.5 years old. 

Check here if you have provided a separate attachment with this information. 

(mg/kg dry weight) 
Arsenic 

Cadmium 

Chromium 

Copper 

Lead 

Mercury 

Molybdenum 

Nickel 

Selenium 

Zinc 

Other (specify) 
___________________ 
Other (specify) 
___________________ 
Other (specify) 
___________________ 
Other (specify) 
___________________ 
Other (specify) 
___________________ 
Other (specify) 
___________________ 
Other (specify) 
___________________ 
Other (specify) 
___________________ 
Other (specify) 
___________________ 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 2 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

. 

5.1 For each sewage sludge use or disposal practice, indicate the amount of sewage sludge used or disposed of, the 
applicable pathogen class and reduction alternative, and the applicable vector attraction reduction option. Attach 
additional pages, as necessary. 

(check one) (dry metric tons) 
Land application of bulk sewage 
Land application of biosolids 
(bulk) 
Land application of biosolids 
(bags) 
Surface disposal in a landfill 
Other surface disposal 
Incineration 

Not applicable 
Class A, Alternative 1 
Class A, Alternative 2 
Class A, Alternative 3 
Class A, Alternative 4 
Class A, Alternative 5 
Class A, Alternative 6 
Class B, Alternative 1 
Class B, Alternative 2 
Class B, Alternative 3 
Class B, Alternative 4 
Domestic septage, pH 
adjustment 

Not applicable 
Option 1 
Option 2 
Option 3 
Option 4 
Option 5 
Option 6 
Option 7 
Option 8 
Option 9 
Option 10 
Option 11 

5.2 For each of the use and disposal practices specified in Item 5.1, identify the treatment process(es) used at your 
facility to reduce pathogens in sewage sludge or reduce the vector attraction properties of sewage sludge. (Check 
all that apply.) 

Preliminary operations (e.g., sludge Thickening (concentration) grinding and degritting) 
Stabilization Anaerobic digestion 
Composting Conditioning 
Disinfection (e.g., beta ray irradiation, Dewatering (e.g., centrifugation, sludge drying 
gamma ray irradiation, pasteurization) beds, sludge lagoons) 
Heat drying Thermal reduction 
Methane or biogas capture and recovery Other (specify) _____________________________ 

. 

6.1 Does the sewage sludge from your facility meet the ceiling concentrations in Table 1 of 40 CFR 503.13, the 
pollutant concentrations in Table 3 of 40 CFR 503.13, Class A pathogen reduction requirements at 40 CFR 
503.32(a), and one of the vector attraction reduction requirements at 40 CFR 503.33(b)(1)–(8)?  

Yes SKIP to Part 1, Section 8 (Certification). No 

6.2 Is sewage sludge from your facility provided to another facility for treatment, distribution, use, or disposal? 
Yes No SKIP to Part 1, Section 7. 

6.3 Receiving facility name 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

6.4 Which activities does the receiving facility provide? (Check all that apply.) 
Treatment or blending Sale or give-away in bag or other container 
Land application   Surface disposal 
Incineration Other (describe) 
Composting 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 3 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

. 

Provide the following information for each site on which sewage sludge from this facility is used or disposed of. 
Check here if you have provided separate attachments with this information.

7.1 Site name or number 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) Same as mailing address
City or town State ZIP code 

County County code Not available

7.2 Site type (check all that apply) 
Agricultural Lawn or home garden Forest
Surface disposal Public contact Incineration
Reclamation Municipal solid waste landfill Other (describe)

. 

8.1 In Column 1 below, mark the sections of Form 2S, Part 1, that you have completed and are submitting with your 
application. For each section, specify in Column 2 any attachments that you are enclosing to alert the permitting 
authority. Note that not all applicants are required to provide attachments. 

Section 1: Facility Information w/ attachments

Section 2: Applicant Information w/ attachments

Section 3: Sewage Sludge Amount w/ attachments

Section 4: Pollutant Concentrations w/ attachments

Section 5: Treatment Provided at Your Facility w/ attachments

Section 6: Sewage Sludge Sent to Other
Facilities w/ attachments

Section 7: Use and Disposal Sites w/ attachments

Section 8: Checklist and Certification Statement

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 4 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔ ✔





EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

Complete this part if you have an effective NPDES permit or have been directed by the NPDES permitting authority to submit a full 
permit application. In other words, complete this part if your facility has, or is applying for, an NPDES permit. 
Part 2 is divided into five sections. Section 1 pertains to all applicants. The applicability of Sections 2 to 5 depends on your facility’s 
sewage sludge use or disposal practices. See the instructions to determine which sections you are required to complete. 

. 

All Part 2 applicants must complete this section. 

1.1 Facility name 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code Phone number 

Contact name (first and last) Title Email address 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) Same as mailing address

City or town State ZIP code 

1.2 Is this facility a Class I sludge management facility? 
Yes No

1.3 million gallons per day (mgd) 
1.4 
1.5 

Public—federal Public—state Other public (specify) ____________
Private Other (specify) ____________

1.6 Is applicant different from entity listed under Item 1.1 above? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 1.8 (Part 2, Section 1). 

1.7 Applicant name 

Applicant mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

1.8 Is the applicant the facility’s owner, operator, or both? (Check only one response.) 
Operator Owner Both

1.9 To which entity should the NPDES permitting authority send correspondence? (Check only one response.) 
Facility and applicantFacility Applicant
(they are one and the same) 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 7 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

1.10 Facility’s NPDES permit number 
Check here if you do not have an NPDES permit but are otherwise required 
to submit Part 2 of Form 2S. 

1.11 Indicate all other federal, state, and local permits or construction approvals received or applied for that regulate this 
facility’s sewage sludge management practices below. 

RCRA (hazardous wastes) 

_________________________ 

Nonattainment program (CAA) 

_________________________ 

NESHAPs (CAA) 

_________________________ 
PSD (air emissions) 

_________________________ 

Dredge or fill (CWA Section 
404) 
_________________________ 

Other (specify) 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 
Ocean dumping (MPRSA) 

_________________________ 

UIC (underground injection of 
fluids) 
_________________________ 

1.12 Does any generation, treatment, storage, application to land, or disposal of sewage sludge from this facility occur in 
Indian Country?  

No SKIP to Item 1.14 (Part 2, Section 1) Yes below. 
1.13 Provide a description of the generation, treatment, storage, land application, or disposal of sewage sludge that 

occurs. 

1.14 Have you attached a topographic map containing all required information to this application? (See instructions for 
specific requirements.) 

Yes No 

1.15 Have you attached a line drawing and/or a narrative description that identifies all sewage sludge practices that will be 
employed during the term of the permit containing all the required information to this application? (See instructions for 
specific requirements.) 

Yes No 

1.16 Do contractors have any operational or maintenance responsibilities related to sewage sludge generation, treatment, 
use, or disposal at the facility? 

No SKIP to Item 1.18 (Part 2, Section 1) Yes below. 
1.17 Provide the following information for each contractor. 

Check here if you have attached additional sheets to the application package. 

Contractor company name 
Mailing address (street or 
P.O. box) 
City, state, and ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) 

Telephone number 

Email address 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 8 

R5-2016-0045-02

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔





EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

. 

2.1 Does your facility generate sewage sludge or derive a material from sewage sludge? 
Yes No SKIP to Part 2, Section 3. 

2.2 Total dry metric tons per 365-day period generated at your facility: 

2.3 Does your facility receive sewage sludge from another facility for treatment use or disposal? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 2.7 (Part 2, Section 2) below. 

2.4 Indicate the total number of facilities from which you receive sewage sludge for 
treatment, use, or disposal: 

Provide the following information for each of the facilities from which you receive sewage sludge. 
Check here if you have attached additional sheets to the application package. 

2.5 Name of facility 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) Same as mailing address 

City or town State ZIP code 

County County code Not available 

2.6 Indicate the amount of sewage sludge received, the applicable pathogen class and reduction alternative, and the 
applicable vector reduction option provided at the offsite facility. 

(dry metric tons) 
Not applicable 
Class A, Alternative 1 
Class A, Alternative 2 
Class A, Alternative 3 
Class A, Alternative 4 
Class A, Alternative 5 
Class A, Alternative 6 
Class B, Alternative 1 
Class B, Alternative 2 
Class B, Alternative 3 
Class B, Alternative 4 
Domestic septage, pH adjustment 

Not applicable 
Option 1 
Option 2 
Option 3 
Option 4 
Option 5 
Option 6 
Option 7 
Option 8 
Option 9 
Option 10 
Option 11 

2.7 Identify the treatment process(es) that are known to occur at the offsite facility, including blending activities and 
treatment to reduce pathogens or vector attraction properties. (Check all that apply.) 

Preliminary operations (e.g., sludge grinding and Thickening (concentration) degritting) 
Stabilization Anaerobic digestion 

Composting Conditioning 
Disinfection (e.g., beta ray irradiation, gamma ray Dewatering (e.g., centrifugation, sludge drying 
irradiation, pasteurization) beds, sludge lagoons) 
Heat drying Thermal reduction 
Methane or biogas capture and recovery Other (specify) ___________________________ 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 10 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

2.8 For each sewage sludge use or disposal practice, indicate the applicable pathogen class and reduction alternative 
and the applicable vector attraction reduction option provided at your facility. Attach additional pages, as necessary. 

(check one) 
Land application of bulk sewage 
Land application of biosolids 
(bulk) 
Land application of biosolids 
(bags) 
Surface disposal in a landfill 
Other surface disposal 
Incineration 

Not applicable 
Class A, Alternative 1 
Class A, Alternative 2 
Class A, Alternative 3 
Class A, Alternative 4 
Class A, Alternative 5 
Class A, Alternative 6 
Class B, Alternative 1 
Class B, Alternative 2 
Class B, Alternative 3 
Class B, Alternative 4 
Domestic septage, pH adjustment 

Not applicable 
Option 1 
Option 2 
Option 3 
Option 4 
Option 5 
Option 6 
Option 7 
Option 8 
Option 9 
Option 10 
Option 11 

2.9 Identify the treatment process(es) used at your facility to reduce pathogens in sewage sludge or reduce the vector 
attraction properties of sewage sludge? (Check all that apply.) 

Preliminary operations (e.g., sludge grinding and Thickening (concentration) degritting) 
Stabilization Anaerobic digestion 
Composting Conditioning 
Disinfection (e.g., beta ray irradiation, gamma ray Dewatering (e.g., centrifugation, sludge drying 
irradiation, pasteurization) beds, sludge lagoons) 
Heat drying Thermal reduction 
Methane or biogas capture and recovery 

2.10 Describe any other sewage sludge treatment or blending activities not identified in Items 2.8 and 2.9 (Part 2, Section 
2) above. 

Check here if you have attached the description to the application package. 

2.11 Does the sewage sludge from your facility meet the ceiling concentrations in Table 1 of 40 CFR 503.13, the pollutant 
concentrations in Table 3 of 40 CFR 503.13, Class A pathogen reduction requirements at 40 CFR 503.32(a), and one 
of the vector attraction reduction requirements at 40 CFR 503.33(b)(1)–(8) and is it land applied? 

No SKIP to Item 2.14 (Part 2, Section 2) Yes below. 
2.12 Total dry metric tons per 365-day period of sewage sludge subject to this 

subsection that is applied to the land: 

2.13 Is sewage sludge subject to this subsection placed in bags or other containers for sale or give-away for application to 
the land? 

Yes No 

Check here once you have completed Items 2.11 to 2.13, then SKIP to Item 2.32 (Part 2, Section 2) below. 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 11 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

2.14 Do you place sewage sludge in a bag or other container for sale or give-away for land application? 
No SKIP to Item 2.17 (Part 2, Section 2) Yes below. 

2.15 Total dry metric tons per 365-day period of sewage sludge placed in a bag or 
other container at your facility for sale or give-away for application to the land: 

2.16 Attach a copy of all labels or notices that accompany the sewage sludge being sold or given away in a bag or other 
container for application to the land. 

Check here to indicate that you have attached all labels or notices to this application package. 

Check here once you have completed Items 2.14 to 2.16, then SKIP to Part 2, Section 2, Item 2.32. 

2.17 Does another facility provide treatment or blending of your facility’s sewage sludge? (This question does not pertain to 
dewatered sludge sent directly to a land application or surface disposal site.) 

No SKIP to Item 2.32 (Part 2, Section 2) Yes below. 
2.18 Indicate the total number of facilities that provide treatment or blending of your facility’s 

sewage sludge. Provide the information in Items 2.19 to 2.26 (Part 2, Section 2) below 
for each facility. 

Check here if you have attached additional sheets to the application package. 
2.19 Name of receiving facility 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) Same as mailing address 

City or town State ZIP code 

2.20 Total dry metric tons per 365-day period of sewage sludge provided to receiving 
facility: 

2.21 Does the receiving facility provide additional treatment to reduce pathogens in sewage sludge from your facility or 
reduce the vector attraction properties of sewage sludge from your facility? 

No SKIP to Item 2.24 (Part 2, Section 2) Yes below. 
2.22 Indicate the pathogen class and reduction alternative and the vector attraction reduction option met for the sewage 

sludge at the receiving facility. 

Not applicable 
Class A, Alternative 1 
Class A, Alternative 2 
Class A, Alternative 3 
Class A, Alternative 4 
Class A, Alternative 5 
Class A, Alternative 6 
Class B, Alternative 1 
Class B, Alternative 2 
Class B, Alternative 3 
Class B, Alternative 4 
Domestic septage, pH adjustment 

Not applicable 
Option 1 
Option 2 
Option 3 
Option 4 
Option 5 
Option 6 
Option 7 
Option 8 
Option 9 
Option 10 
Option 11 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 12 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

2.23 Which treatment process(es) are used at the receiving facility to reduce pathogens in sewage sludge or reduce the 
vector attraction properties of sewage sludge from your facility? (Check all that apply.) 

Preliminary operations (e.g., sludge grinding and Thickening (concentration) degritting) 
Stabilization Anaerobic digestion 

Composting Conditioning 
Disinfection (e.g., beta ray irradiation, gamma ray Dewatering (e.g., centrifugation, sludge drying 
irradiation, pasteurization) beds, sludge lagoons) 
Heat drying Thermal reduction 
Methane or biogas capture and recovery Other (specify) ____________________________ 

2.24 Attach a copy of any information you provide the receiving facility to comply with the “notice and necessary 
information” requirement of 40 CFR 503.12(g). 

Check here to indicate that you have attached material. 
2.25 Does the receiving facility place sewage sludge from your facility in a bag or other container for sale or give-away for 

application to the land? 
No SKIP to Item 2.32 (Part 2, Section 2) Yes below. 

2.26 Attach a copy of all labels or notices that accompany the product being sold or given away. 
Check here to indicate that you have attached material. 

Check here once you have completed Items 2.17 to 2.26 (Part 2, Section 2), then SKIP to Item 2.32 (Part 2, Section 2) 
below. 

2.27 Is sewage sludge from your facility applied to the land? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 2.32 (Part 2, Section 2) 

below. 
2.28 Total dry metric tons per 365-day period of sewage sludge applied to all land 

application sites: 

2.29 Did you identify all land application sites in Part 2, Section 3 of this application? 
No Submit a copy of the land application plan Yes with your application. 

2.30 Are any land application sites located in states other than the state where you generate sewage sludge or derive a 
material from sewage sludge? 

No SKIP to Item 2.32 (Part 2, Section 2) Yes below. 
2.31 Describe how you notify the NPDES permitting authority for the states where the land application sites are located. 

Attach a copy of the notification. 
Check here if you have attached the explanation to the application package. 
Check here if you have attached the notification to the application package. 

2.32 Is sewage sludge from your facility placed on a surface disposal site? 
No SKIP to Item 2.39 (Part 2, Section 2) Yes below. 

2.33 Total dry metric tons of sewage sludge from your facility placed on all surface 
disposal sites per 365-day period: 

2.34 Do you own or operate all surface disposal sites to which you send sewage sludge for disposal? 

Yes SKIP to Item 2.39 (Part 2, Section 2) No below. 
2.35 Indicate the total number of surface disposal sites to which you send your sewage 

sludge. 
(Provide the information in Items 2.36 to 2.38 of Part 2, Section 2, for each facility.) 

Check here if you have attached additional sheets to the application package. 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 13 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

2.36 Site name or number of surface disposal site you do not own or operate 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or Town State ZIP Code 

Contact Name (first and last) Title Phone Number Email Address 

2.37 Site Contact (Check all that apply.) 
Owner Operator 

2.38 Total dry metric tons of sewage sludge from your facility placed on this surface 
disposal site per 365-day period: 

2.39 Is sewage sludge from your facility fired in a sewage sludge incinerator? 
No SKIP to Item 2.46 (Part 2, Section 2) Yes below. 

2.40 Total dry metric tons of sewage sludge from your facility fired in all sewage 
sludge incinerators per 365-day period: 

2.41 Do you own or operate all sewage sludge incinerators in which sewage sludge from your facility is fired? 
Yes SKIP to Item 2.46 (Part 2, Section 2) No below. 

2.42 Indicate the total number of sewage sludge incinerators used that you do not own or 
operate. (Provide the information in Items 2.43 to 2.45 directly below for each facility.) 

Check here if you have attached additional sheets to the application package. 

2.43 Incinerator name or number 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) Same as mailing address 

City or town State ZIP code 

2.44 Contact (check all that apply) 
Incinerator owner Incinerator operator 

2.45 Total dry metric tons of sewage sludge from your facility fired in this sewage 
sludge incinerator per 365-day period: 

2.46 Is sewage sludge from your facility placed on a municipal solid waste landfill? 
Yes No SKIP to Part 2, Section 3. 

2.47 Indicate the total number of municipal solid waste landfills used. (Provide the 
information in Items 2.48 to 2.52 directly below for each facility.) 

Check here if you have attached additional sheets to the application 
package. 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 14 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

2.48 Name of landfill 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) Same as mailing address 

County County code Not available 

City or town State ZIP code 

2.49 Total dry metric tons of sewage sludge from your facility placed in this 
municipal solid waste landfill per 365-day period: 

2.50 List the numbers of all other federal, state, and local permits that regulate the operation of this municipal solid waste 
landfill. 

2.51 Attach to the application information to determine whether the sewage sludge meets applicable requirements for 
disposal of sewage sludge in a municipal solid waste landfill (e.g., results of paint filter liquids test and TCLP test). 

Check here to indicate you have attached the requested information. 

2.52 Does the municipal solid waste landfill comply with applicable criteria set forth in 40 CFR 258? 

Yes No 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 15 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

3.1 Does your facility apply sewage sludge to land? 
Yes No SKIP to Part 2, Section 4. 

3.2 Do any of the following conditions apply? 
The sewage sludge meets the ceiling concentrations in Table 1 of 40 CFR 503.12, the pollutant concentrations in 
Table 3 of 40 CFR 503.13, Class A pathogen reduction requirements at 40 CFR 503.32(a), and one of the vector 
attraction reduction requirements at 40 CFR 503.33(b)(1)–(8); 
The sewage sludge is sold or given away in a bag or other container for application to the land; or 
You provide the sewage sludge to another facility for treatment or blending. 

Yes SKIP to Part 2, Section 4. No 
3.3 Complete Section 3 for every site on which the sewage sludge is applied. 

Check here if you have attached sheets to the application package for one or more land application sites. 

3.4 Site name or number 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) Same as mailing address 

County County code Not available 

City or town State ZIP code 

(see instructions) 

USGS map Field survey Other (specify) ______________ 
3.5 Provide a topographic map (or other appropriate map if a topographic map is unavailable) that shows the site location. 

Check here to indicate you have attached a topographic map for this site. 

3.6 Are you the owner of this land application site? 
Yes SKIP to Item 3.8 (Part 2, Section 3) below. No 

3.7 Owner name 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

3.8 Are you the person who applies, or who is responsible for application of, sewage sludge to this land application site? 

Yes SKIP to Item 3.10 (Part 2, Section 3) below. No 
3.9 Applier’s name 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 16 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

  



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

3.10 Type of land application: 
Agricultural land Forest 
Reclamation site Public contact site 
Other (describe) 

3.11 What type of crop or other vegetation is grown on this site? 

3.12 What is the nitrogen requirement for this crop or vegetation? 

3.13 Are the vector attraction reduction requirements at 40 CFR 503.33(b)(9) and (b)(10) met when sewage sludge is 
applied to the land application site? 

No SKIP to Item 3.16 (Part 2, Section 3) Yes below. 
3.14 Indicate which vector attraction reduction option is met. (Check only one response.) 

Option 9 (injection below land surface) Option 10 (incorporation into soil within 6 hours) 
3.15 Describe any treatment processes used at the land application site to reduce vector attraction properties of sewage 

sludge. 
Check here if you have attached your description to the application package. 

3.16 Is the sewage sludge applied to this site since July 20, 1993, subject to the cumulative pollutant loading rates 
(CPLRs) in 40 CFR 503.13(b)(2)? 

Yes No SKIP to Part 2, Section 4. 
3.17 Have you contacted the NPDES permitting authority in the state where the bulk sewage sludge subject to CPLRs will 

be applied to ascertain whether bulk sewage sludge subject to CPLRs has been applied to this site on or since 
July 20, 1993? 

No Sewage sludge subject to CPLRs may 
Yes not be applied to this site. SKIP to Part 2, 

Section 4. 
3.18 Provide the following information about your NPDES permitting authority: 

NPDES permitting authority name 
Contact person 
Telephone number 
Email address 

3.19 Based on your inquiry, has bulk sewage sludge subject to CPLRs been applied to this site since July 20, 1993? 
Yes No SKIP to Part 2, Section 4. 

3.20 Provide the following information for every facility other than yours that is sending, or has sent, bulk sewage sludge 
subject to CPLRs to this site since July 20, 1993. If more than one such facility sends sewage sludge to this site, 
attach additional pages as necessary. 

Check here to indicate that additional pages are attached. 
Facility name 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 17 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

4.1 Do you own or operate a surface disposal site? 
Yes No SKIP to Part 2, Section 5. 

4.2 Complete all items in Section 4 for each active sewage sludge unit that you own or operate. 
Check here to indicate that you have attached material to the application package for one or more active 
sewage sludge units. 

4.3 Unit name or number 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) Same as mailing address 

County County code Not available 

City or town State ZIP code 

(see instructions) 

USGS map Field survey Other (specify) ______________ 
4.4 Provide a topographic map (or other appropriate map if a topographic map is unavailable) that shows the site 

location. 
Check here to indicate that you have completed and attached a topographic map. 

4.5 Total dry metric tons of sewage sludge placed on the active sewage sludge unit 
per 365-day period: 

4.6 Total dry metric tons of sewage sludge placed on the active sewage sludge unit 
over the life of the unit: 

4.7 Does the active sewage sludge unit have a liner with a maximum permeability of 1 × 10-7 centimeters per second 
(cm/sec)? 

No SKIP to Item 4.9 (Part 2, Section Yes 4) below. 
4.8 Describe the liner. 

Check here to indicate that you have attached a description to the application package. 

4.9 Does the active sewage sludge unit have a leachate collection system? 
No SKIP to Item 4.11 (Part 2, Section Yes 4) below. 

4.10 Describe the leachate collection system and the method used for leachate disposal and provide the numbers of any 
federal, state, or local permit(s) for leachate disposal. 

Check here to indicate that you have attached the description to the application package. 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 18 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

  



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

4.11 Is the boundary of the active sewage sludge unit less than 150 meters from the property line of the surface disposal 
site? 

No SKIP to Item 4.13 (Part 2, Yes Section 4) below. 
4.12 Provide the actual distance in meters: meters 

4.13 Remaining capacity of active sewage sludge unit in dry metric tons: dry metric tons 

4.14 Anticipated closure date for active sewage sludge unit, if known (MM/DD/YYYY): 

4.15 Attach a copy of any closure plan that has been developed for this active sewage sludge unit. 
Check here to indicate that you have attached a copy of the closure plan to the application package. 

4.16 Is sewage sludge sent to this active sewage sludge unit from any facilities other than your facility? 
No SKIP to Item 4.21 (Part 2, Section Yes 4) below. 

4.17 Indicate the total number of facilities (other than your facility) that send sewage 
sludge to this active sewage sludge unit. (Complete Items 4.18 to 4.20 directly 
below for each such facility.) 

Check here to indicate that you have attached responses for each facility to 
the application package. 

4.18 Facility name 

Mailing address (street or P.O. box) 

City or town State ZIP code 

Contact name (first and last) Title Phone number Email address 

4.19 Indicate the pathogen class and reduction alternative and the vector attraction reduction option met for the sewage 
sludge before leaving the other facility. 

Not applicable 
Class A, Alternative 1 
Class A, Alternative 2 
Class A, Alternative 3 
Class A, Alternative 4 
Class A, Alternative 5 
Class A, Alternative 6 
Class B, Alternative 1 
Class B, Alternative 2 
Class B, Alternative 3 
Class B, Alternative 4 
Domestic septage, pH adjustment 

Not applicable 
Option 1 
Option 2 
Option 3 
Option 4 
Option 5 
Option 6 
Option 7 
Option 8 
Option 9 
Option 10 
Option 11 

4.20 Which treatment process(es) are used at the other facility to reduce pathogens in sewage sludge or reduce the vector 
attraction properties of sewage sludge before leaving the other facility? (Check all that apply.) 

Preliminary operations (e.g., sludge grinding and degritting) Thickening (concentration) 
Stabilization Anaerobic digestion 
Composting Conditioning 
Disinfection (e.g., beta ray irradiation, gamma ray Dewatering (e.g., centrifugation, sludge 
irradiation, pasteurization) drying beds, sludge lagoons) 
Heat drying Thermal reduction 
Methane or biogas capture and recovery Other (specify) _____________________ 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 19 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

4.21 Which vector attraction reduction option, if any, is met when sewage sludge is placed on this active sewage sludge 
unit? 

Option 11 (Covering active sewage Option 9 (Injection below and surface) sludge unit daily) 
Option 10 (Incorporation into soil within 6 hours) None 

4.22 Describe any treatment processes used at the active sewage sludge unit to reduce vector attraction properties of 
sewage sludge. 

Check here if you have attached your description to the application package. 

4.23 Is groundwater monitoring currently conducted at this active sewage sludge unit, or are groundwater monitoring data 
otherwise available for this active sewage sludge unit? 

No SKIP to Item 4.26 (Part 2, Yes Section 4) below. 
4.24 Provide a copy of available groundwater monitoring data. 

Check here to indicate you have attached the monitoring data. 

4.25 Describe the well locations, the approximate depth to groundwater, and the groundwater monitoring procedures used 
to obtain these data. 

Check here if you have attached your description to the application package. 

4.26 Has a groundwater monitoring program been prepared for this active sewage sludge unit? 
No SKIP to Item 4.28 (Part 2, Yes Section 4) below. 

4.27 Submit a copy of the groundwater monitoring program with this permit application. 
Check here to indicate you have attached the monitoring program. 

4.28 Have you obtained a certification from a qualified groundwater scientist that the aquifer below the active sewage 
sludge unit has not been contaminated? 

No SKIP to Item 4.30 (Part 2, Yes Section 4) below. 
4.29 Submit a copy of the certification with this permit application. 

Check here to indicate you have attached the certification to the application package. 

4.30 Are you seeking site-specific pollutant limits for the sewage sludge placed on the active sewage sludge unit? 
Yes No SKIP to Part 2, Section 5. 

4.31 Submit information to support the request for site-specific pollutant limits with this application. 
Check here to indicate you have attached the requested information. 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 20 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

5.1 Do you fire sewage sludge in a sewage sludge incinerator? 
Yes No SKIP to END. 

5.2 Indicate the total number of incinerators used at your facility. (Complete the remainder 
of Section 5 for each such incinerator.) 

Check here to indicate that you have attached information for one or more 
incinerators. 

5.3 Incinerator name or number 

Location address (street, route number, or other specific identifier) 

County County code Not available 

City or town State ZIP code 

(see instructions) 

USGS map Field survey Other (specify) ______________ 

5.4 Dry metric tons per 365-day period of sewage sludge fired in the sewage sludge 
incinerator: 

5.5 Submit information, test data, and a description of measures taken that demonstrate whether the sewage sludge 
incinerated is beryllium-containing waste and will continue to remain as such. 

Check here to indicate that you have attached this material to the application package. 

5.6 Is the sewage sludge fired in this incinerator “beryllium-containing waste” as defined at 40 CFR 61.31? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 5.8 (Part 2, Section 5) below. 

5.7 Submit with this application a complete report of the latest beryllium emission rate testing and documentation of 
ongoing incinerator operating parameters indicating that the NESHAP emission rate limit for beryllium has been and 
will continue to be met. 

Check here to indicate that you have attached this information. 

5.8 Is compliance with the mercury NESHAP being demonstrated via stack testing? 
Yes No SKIP to Item 5.11 (Part 2, Section 5) below. 

5.9 Submit a complete report of stack testing and documentation of ongoing incinerator operating parameters indicating 
that the incinerator has met and will continue to meet the mercury NESHAP emission rate limit. 

Check here to indicate that you have attached this information. 

5.10 Provide copies of mercury emission rate tests for the two most recent years in which testing was conducted. 
Check here to indicate that you have attached this information. 

5.11 Do you demonstrate compliance with the mercury NESHAP by sewage sludge sampling? 
No SKIP to Item 5.13 (Part 2, Section 5) Yes below. 

5.12 Submit a complete report of sewage sludge sampling and documentation of ongoing incinerator operating parameters 
indicating that the incinerator has met and will continue to meet the mercury NESHAP emission rate limit. 

Check here to indicate that you have attached this information. 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 21 

R5-2016-0045-02

✔

  



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

5.13 Dispersion factor in micrograms/cubic meter per gram/second: 

5.14 Name and type of dispersion model: 

5.15 Submit a copy of the modeling results and supporting documentation. 
Check here to indicate that you have attached this information. 

5.16 Provide the control efficiency, in hundredths, for each of the pollutants listed below. 

Arsenic 
Cadmium 
Chromium 
Lead 
Nickel 

5.17 Attach a copy of the results or performance testing and supporting documentation (including testing dates). 
Check here to indicate that you have attached this information. 

5.18 Provide the risk-specific concentration (RSC) used for chromium in 
micrograms per cubic meter: 

5.19 Was the RSC determined via Table 2 in 40 CFR 503.43? 

Yes No SKIP to Item 5.21 (Part 2, Section 5) below. 

5.20 Identify the type of incinerator used as the basis. 
Fluidized bed with wet scrubber Other types with wet scrubber 
Fluidized bed with wet scrubber and wet Other types with wet scrubber and wet electrostatic 
electrostatic precipitator precipitator 

5.21 Was the RSC determined via Table 6 in 40 CFR 503.43 (site-specific determination)? 
No SKIP to Item 5.23 (Part 2, Section 5) Yes below. 

5.22 Provide the decimal fraction of hexavalent chromium concentration to total 
chromium concentration in stack exit gas: 

5.23 Attach the results of incinerator stack tests for hexavalent and total chromium concentrations, including the date(s) of 
any test(s), with this application. 

Check here to indicate that you have attached this information. Not applicable 

5.24 Do you monitor total hydrocarbons (THC) in the exit gas of the sewage sludge incinerator? 

Yes No 

5.25 Do you monitor carbon monoxide (CO) in the exit gas of the sewage sludge incinerator? 

Yes No 

5.26 Indicate the type of sewage sludge incinerator. 

5.27 Incinerator stack height in meters: 

5.28 Indicate whether the value submitted in Item 5.27 is (check only one response): 
Actual stack height Creditable stack height 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 22 

R5-2016-0045-02



EPA Identification Number NPDES Permit Number Facility Name Form Approved 03/05/19 
OMB No. 2040-0004 

5.29 Maximum performance test combustion temperature: 

5.30 Performance test sewage sludge feed rate, in dry metric tons/day 

5.31 Indicate whether value submitted in Item 5.30 is (check only one response): 
Average use Maximum design 

5.32 Attach supporting documents describing how the feed rate was calculated. 
Check here to indicate that you have attached this information. 

5.33 Submit information documenting the performance test operating parameters for the air pollution control device(s) 
used for this sewage sludge incinerator. 

Check here to indicate that you have attached this information. 

5.34 List the equipment in place to monitor the listed parameters. 

Total hydrocarbons or carbon monoxide 

Percent oxygen 

Percent moisture 

Combustion temperature 

Other (describe) 

5.35 List all air pollution control equipment used with this sewage sludge incinerator. 
Check here if you have attached the list to the application package for the noted incinerator. 

EPA Form 3510-2S (Revised 3-19) Page 23 

R5-2016-0045-02



BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

 

 

 

Supplement to Form 2S 
 

Section 1.15 - Sludge Handling Narrative Description  

 

The Bear Valley Water District (BVWD) treatment process uses pond treatment. Influent wastewater 
solids settle to the bottom of the pond and decays in place. The actual wastewater load on the 
pond system is so low (2019 average flow was 0.059 MGD, of which approximately 0.023 MGD is 
inflow and infiltration), that material sludge accumulation on the bottom of the pond system has 
not been observed to date.  

District staff measures for sludge accumulation annually. If and when sludge removal is necessary, 
the District envisions using a licensed sludge removal contractor. The District does not generate 
sludge on a regular basis in any normal use of the terms. Consequently, the District has not 
completed Sections 2, 3, 4, or 5 of EPA form 2S.  

 



 
BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

 

   

 
 

MAP AND SCHEMATIC 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



!.

Effluent
Storage Reservoir

Discharge Point EFF-001

Treatment Pond

Main Pump Station

Control
Building

BEAR VALLEY

Be
ar

Cr
ee

k

Bl
oo

ds
C

re
ek

6740

7800

67
60

6780
68006820

7 780

6860

7540

75 80

7520

75007 5 60

7600

7 480

7760

7460

7680

7660

7740

7 640

68
40

76207720

7
700

6900

688
0

6940

7440

6920

69
60

6980

7020

7 000

7420

7380

7 04
0

7400

73
40

73
60

7300

7320

70 6 0

7260

7220

72

80
724 0

7100

72
00

7 140

71 60

7080

7120

7 1 80

Alpine County

Calaveras County

¬«4

La
ke

Rd

Im

m igrant Rd Station House RdTol l G
ate

Rd

F

re m ont
Rd

A
lpi

ne Way

OrvisRd

C
reeksid

e
D

r

Lo
mbard

iL n

Sch imke
R

d

Snow
shoe

Rd

Bear
Vall ey Rd

Bloo

d s Ri
d

ge
Rd

Q
ua

kin
g

AspenRd

Notes

V
:\

18
40

\a
c

tiv
e

\1
84

03
04

75
_b

e
a

r_
va

lle
y\

g
is\

m
xd

\f
ig

_1
_b

e
a

r_
va

lle
y_

p
ro

je
c

t_
lo

c
a

tio
n.

m
xd

   
   

Re
vi

se
d

: 2
01

5-
12

-1
0 

By
: k

g
ro

ss
g

ra
y

($$¯
0 1,000 2,000

Feet

1:16,500 (at original document size of 8.5x11)

1

Bear Valley Wastewater Treatment
Facility Topographic Map

Legend

!. Discharge Point

State Highway

Local Road

Stream

Contour (20ft)

Treatment Plant Facilities

County Boundary Bear Valley Water Distict
Report of Waste Discharge
184030475

Figure No.

Title

Client/Project

1.
2.

Coordinate System:  NAD 1983 StatePlane California II FIPS 0402 Feet
Data Sources Include: Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, TomTom, Intermap,
increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL,
Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo,
MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community















































































































                           Bear Valley Water District

Performance vs. Budget 

May  2019 vs. May 2020

FY 18-19
Budget

FY 18-19
Budget

FY 19-20           
July 1 - May 31

FY 19-20
Budget

FY 19-20
Budget

Variance Explanation

REVENUES
Residential 589,664 586,000 101% 609,807 605,500 101%
Commercial 198,719 176,000 113% 169,209 172,000 98%

Subtotal Operating Revenue 788,384 762,000 103% 779,016 777,500 100% Revenue Target - 100%

EXPENSES
Salaries & Benefits 287,628 347,108 83% 324,261 360,225 90%
Director Expenses 1,678 3,000 56% 1,369 2,000 68%
Operator Training & Certs 756 1,500 50% 239 1,500 16%
Gas, Diesel, Oil & Filters 2,399 3,000 80% 3,034 3,000 101%
Insurance 17,574 23,000 76% 17,500 23,000 76%
Memberships & Conferences 7,078 8,000 88% 6,350 7,000 91%
Office Expenses & Supplies 9,147 10,000 91% 9,078 10,000 91%
Field Expenses & Supplies 19,307 15,000 129% 23,463 20,000 117% UBD Failed Probe, Sludge Treatment
Grooming, Snow Removal & Vehicle 1823 3,500 52% 2,636 3,500 75%
Engineering & Consulting 5,314 5,000 106% 315 5,000 6%
Legal & Accounting 15,169 10,000 152% 15,515 10,000 155% UBD Legal - Bylaws, Rates, CC Policy
Equipment Rental 429 600 72% 226 600 38%
Repairs & Maintenance 48,159 60,000 80% 69,991 60,000 117% UBD Gen Rprs, CK Clos, Coll Lines
Laboratory Fees 12,424 18,000 69% 11,022 15,000 73%
Regulatory Reporting & Comp. 6,305 6,500 97% 6,330 6,700 94%
Taxes, Fees, Licenses & 34,325 33,000 104% 40,420 39,000 104%
Utilities 54,645 55,000 99% 61,014 60,000 102%

Subtotal Operating Expenses 524,160 602,208 87% 592,762 626,525 95% Expense Target - 92 %

Net Operational Income 264,224 159,792 165% 186,254 150,975 123%

OTHER REVENUE
Interest Income - LAIF 5,467 4,000 137% 5,343 7,000 76% 3rd Quarter Total

Late Fee, Penalties and Interest 7,941 0 UBD 5,781 7,000 83%
Expense Reimburements - USFS 2,870 2,870 100% 6,685 3,538 189%
Expense Reimbursements - 4,608 4,608 100% 2,740 5,887 47%
Misc Other Income 333 0 UBD 557 0 UBD

Subtotal Other Revenue 21,220 11,478 185% 21,106 23,425 90%

OTHER EXPENSES
Loan Interest 15,799 17,203 92% 14,410 15,680 92%
Depreciation 102,486 103,451 99% 100,851 114,223 88%
Mics Expense 10 UBD 429 0 UBD

Subtotal Other Expenses 118,295 120,654 98% 115,690 129,903 89%

Net Other Income (97,075) (109,176) 89% (94,584) (106,478) 89%

NET INCOME 167,149 50,616 330% 91,671 44,497 206%

Depreciation 102,486 103,451 99% 100,851 114,223 88%

Subtotal Non-Cash Expenses 102,486 103,451 99% 100,851 114,223 88%

WWTP Lagoon Upgrade Proj

Capital Improvements / (124,220) (92,500) 134% (202,804) (189,053) 107% Inundation Mapping, 

Loan Payments - Principal 92% NPDES Permit Renewal

Subtotal Addl Cash Expenses (160,064) (131,634) 122% (240,036) (229,710) 104%

NET CASH FLOW 109,571 22,433 488% -47,515 -70,990 67%

                                                Prior Year 
July 1 - May 31

NON CASH EXPENDITURES (included in net income)

CASH EXPENDITURES ( Not Included in net income)

(35,844) (39,134) 92% (37,232) (40,657)



 12:56 PM
 06/16/20
 Accrual Basis

 BVWD

 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
 As of May 31, 2020

May 31, 20 May 31, 19 $ Change % Change

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

11015 ꞏ F&M Bank 396,190.42 509,002.30 -112,811.88 -22.16%

11018 ꞏ LAIF 316,698.51 309,417.43 7,281.08 2.35%

11020 ꞏ Petty Cash 50.00 50.00

11025 ꞏ Capital Facilities Fund 21,656.00 21,656.00

Total Checking/Savings 734,594.93 840,125.73 -105,530.80 -12.56%

Accounts Receivable

11050 ꞏ Accounts Receivable -16,155.95 -16,059.38 -96.57 -0.6%

Total Accounts Receivable -16,155.95 -16,059.38 -96.57 -0.6%

Other Current Assets

11055 ꞏ Accounts Receivable-Tax Roll 10,876.97 14,123.63 -3,246.66 -22.99%

11140 ꞏ Prepaid Insurance 9,290.42 16,804.00 -7,513.58 -44.71%

11170 ꞏ Prepaid Dam Fees 13,548.00 13,548.00 100.0%

11499 ꞏ Undeposited Funds -5,584.47 -5,584.47 -100.0%

Total Other Current Assets 28,130.92 30,927.63 -2,796.71 -9.04%

Total Current Assets 746,569.90 854,993.98 -108,424.08 -12.68%

Fixed Assets

12010 ꞏ Land 25,805.16 25,805.16

12020 ꞏ SbSrfLine 1,196,893.29 1,196,893.29

12040 ꞏ Col Facilities 485,584.50 425,176.65 60,407.85 14.21%

12041 ꞏ LA Facilities 166,428.79 166,428.79

12050 ꞏ TRT Facilities 1,127,133.14 1,127,133.14

12060 ꞏ DSP Facilities 1,244,788.01 1,244,788.01

12080 ꞏ P & A (Plant & Admin)Facilities 482,118.91 482,118.91

12100 ꞏ Accumulated Depreciation -2,775,750.75 -2,664,375.10 -111,375.65 -4.18%

14030 ꞏ Work in Progress

14030.0 ꞏ W.I.P. - GIS Consulting Support 4,722.05 4,722.05 100.0%

14030.6 ꞏ Treatment Pond Dock 4,664.11 4,664.11 100.0%

16540 ꞏ Bee Gulch Lift Station Upgrade 60,407.85 -60,407.85 -100.0%

16545 ꞏ Transfer Flow Meter 5,943.27 5,943.27 100.0%

16550 ꞏ Inundation Mapping Project 17,652.60 15,691.20 1,961.40 12.5%

16560 ꞏ Treatment Pond Improvement Proj 221,095.84 11,756.91 209,338.93 1,780.56%

16565 ꞏ FY20/21 - NPDES PERMIT (5 YR.) 17,288.25 17,288.25 100.0%

Total 14030 ꞏ Work in Progress 271,366.12 87,855.96 183,510.16 208.88%

Total Fixed Assets 2,224,367.17 2,091,824.81 132,542.36 6.34%

TOTAL ASSETS 2,970,937.07 2,946,818.79 24,118.28 0.82%

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

21021 ꞏ Accounts Payable 16,782.35 4,994.69 11,787.66 236.0%

Total Accounts Payable 16,782.35 4,994.69 11,787.66 236.0%

Other Current Liabilities

 Page 1 of 2



 12:56 PM
 06/16/20
 Accrual Basis

 BVWD

 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
 As of May 31, 2020

May 31, 20 May 31, 19 $ Change % Change

21090 ꞏ Payroll Liabilities 16,268.62 -628.57 16,897.19 2,688.2%

2110 ꞏ Direct Deposit Liabilities -8.18 -8.18

22021 ꞏ Accrued Vacation 15,179.60 10,433.38 4,746.22 45.49%

Total Other Current Liabilities 31,440.04 9,796.63 21,643.41 220.93%

Total Current Liabilities 48,222.39 14,791.32 33,431.07 226.02%

Long Term Liabilities

26025 ꞏ F&M Bank Loan 379,211.07 419,737.97 -40,526.90 -9.66%

Total Long Term Liabilities 379,211.07 419,737.97 -40,526.90 -9.66%

Total Liabilities 427,433.46 434,529.29 -7,095.83 -1.63%

Equity

29000 ꞏ Retained Earnings 1,855,178.28 1,748,484.24 106,694.04 6.1%

29100 ꞏ O & M Emergency Reserve Fund 150,000.00 150,000.00

29200 ꞏ CIP Reserve Fund 425,000.00 425,000.00

29300 ꞏ Capacity Fee Reserve Fund 21,656.00 21,656.00

Net Income 91,669.33 167,149.26 -75,479.93 -45.16%

Total Equity 2,543,503.61 2,512,289.50 31,214.11 1.24%

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,970,937.07 2,946,818.79 24,118.28 0.82%

 Page 2 of 2



 2:09 PM
 06/18/20

 BVWD
 A/P Aging Summary

 As of March 31, 2020

Prepaids March 2020 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

A.T.&T. 58.85 58.85 U-Verse for Main Office

A.T.&T. 91.96 91.96 Telephone for Lake Alpine

A.T.&T. 153.37 153.37 Telephone for Main Office

Card Services 1,384.40 1,384.40 Office, Field Supplies, Telephone

E.D.D. 261.42 261.42 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 235.09 235.09 State Payroll Taxes

F&M Bank of Lodi 4,694.80 4,694.80 Principal & Interest on Loan

I.R.S. 2,156.06 2,156.06 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 2,084.74 2,084.74 Federal Payroll Taxes

Lake Alpine Water District 162.41 162.41 Water for Main Office

P.G.&E. 3,020.63 3,020.63 Electricity

SDRMA 1,858.44 1,858.44 Medical Benefits for Employees

SDRMA 653.38 653.38 Dental, Vison, LTD, Life Insurance

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 250.57 250.57 401 Retirement

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 863.09 863.09 457 Retirement

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 243.43 243.43 401 Retirement

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 855.95 855.95 457 Retirement

TOTAL 19,028.59 19,028.59

Accounts Payable March 2020 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

Alpha Analytical Laboratories Inc. 502.00 502.00 Laboratory Analysis

Alpine County Public Works 92.82 134.89 227.71 Unleaded & Diesel Fuel

Bear Valley Snowmobile Inc. -213.24 -213.24 Adjustment

Clay Eastman Snow Removal 382.67 382.67 Snow Removal

Ebbetts Pass Lumber Co. Inc. 66.40 49.02 115.42 Field Supplies

Lake Alpine Water -0.04 -0.04 Bank Adjustment

Lou's Gloves, Inc. 77.00 77.00 Gloves for Field Staff

Mead & Hunt 1,961.40 1,961.40 SH Dam Inundation Map

Neumiller and Beardslee 50.00 50.00 Legal

State Water Resources Control Bd/OPERATOR 150.00 150.00 Operator Certification

Vantagepoint Transfer Agents 0.01 0.01 Adjustment
92.82 3,324.36 49.02 -213.27 3,252.93

Description

Description

TOTAL

 Page 1 of 1



 2:50 PM
 06/18/20

 BVWD
 A/P Aging Summary

 As of April 30, 2020

Prepaids April 2020 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

A.T.&T. 58.85 58.85 U-Verse for Main Office

A.T.&T. 92.39 92.39 Telephone for Lake Alpine

A.T.&T. 154.66 154.66 Telephone for Main Office

Card Services 1,237.26 1,237.26 Office, Field Supplies, Telephone

E.D.D. 230.48 230.48 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 241.44 241.44 State Payroll Taxes

F&M Bank of Lodi 4,694.80 4,694.80 Principal & Interest on Loan

I.R.S. 2,071.52 2,071.52 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 2,098.22 2,098.22 Federal Payroll Taxes

Lake Alpine Water Company 166.36 166.36 Water for Main Office

P.G.&E. 2,585.45 2,585.45 Electricity

SDRMA 1,858.44 1,858.44 Medical Benefits

SDRMA 653.38 653.38 Dental, Vision, LTD, Life Insurance

Vantage Point - ICMARC 242.02 242.02 401 Retirement

Vantage Point - ICMARC 854.54 854.54 457 Retirement

Vantage Point - ICMARC 243.43 243.43 401 Retirement

Vantage Point - ICMARC 855.95 855.95 457 Retirement

TOTAL 18,339.19 18,339.19

Accounts Payables Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

Accurate Air Engineering, Inc 91.54 91.54 Repair & Maintenance for Blower

Alpha Analytical Laboratories Inc. 502.00 502.00 Laboratory Analysis

Aqua Sierra Controls, Inc. 5,943.27 598.02 6,541.29 Alarm Parts, Transfer Flow Meter

Arnold Auto Supply Inc. 69.54 69.54 Auto Supplies

Bear Valley Snowmobile Inc. -213.24 -213.24 Adjustment

California Water Environment Association 192.00 192.00 Operator Certification

Clay Eastman Snow Removal 71.66 71.66 Snow Removal

Columbia Communications Inc. 39.00 39.00 Pager for Field Staff

Dept. of Water Resources 13,548.00 13,548.00 Dam Fees

DMV 104.00 104.00 Registration on Vehicles

EBBETTS PASS GAS CO. Inc. 693.09 693.09 Propane for Main Office

Ebbetts Pass Lumber Co. Inc. 52.03 52.03 Field Supplies

Description

Description

 Page 1 of 2



 2:50 PM
 06/18/20

 BVWD
 A/P Aging Summary

 As of April 30, 2020

Accounts Payables Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL Description

Hach 167.96 167.96 Laboratory Supplies

Lake Alpine Water -0.04 -0.04 Adjustment

Neumiller and Beardslee 675.00 675.00 Water for Main Office

P.G.&E. 2,783.70 2,783.70 Electricity

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 3,303.25 3,303.25 Antidegradation Analysis Report

Vantagepoint Transfer Agents 0.01 0.01 Adjustment
TOTAL 5,943.27 22,890.79 -213.27 28,620.79

 Page 2 of 2



 3:28 PM
 06/18/20

 BVWD
 A/P Aging Summary

 As of May 31, 2020

Prepaids May 2020 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

A.T.&T. 58.85 58.85 U-Verse for Main Office

A.T.&T. 91.81 91.81 Telephone for Lake Alpine Boat Ramp

A.T.&T. 152.78 152.78 Telephone for Main Office

Card Services 2,630.46 2,630.46 Office, Field Supplies, Telephone

E.D.D. 298.96 298.96 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 368.42 368.42 State Payroll Taxes

E.D.D. 411.51 411.51 State Payroll Taxes

F&M Bank 4,694.80 4,694.80 Principal & Interest on Loan

I.R.S. 2,311.26 2,311.26 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 2,512.14 2,512.14 Federal Payroll Taxes

I.R.S. 2,600.56 2,600.56 Federal Payroll Taxes

Lake Alpine Water Company 169.51 169.51 Water For Main Office

P.G.&E. 2,783.70 2,783.70 Electricity

SDRMA 1,858.44 1,858.44 Medical Benefits for Employees

SDRMA 653.38 653.38 Dental, Vision, LTD, Life Insurnace

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 264.99 264.99 401 Retirement

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 907.41 907.41 457 Retirement

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 292.74 292.74 401 Retirement

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 972.29 972.29 457 Retirement

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 296.17 296.17 401 Retirement

Vantagepoint - ICMARC 981.93 981.93 457 Retirement

The Zenith 1,180.00 1,180.00 Deposit on Workers Compensation

TOTAL 26,492.11 26,492.11

Accounts Payable May 2020 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

Alpha Analytical Laboratories Inc. 923.00 923.00 Labrotory Analysis

Alpine County Public Works 180.18 180.18 Unleaded & Diesel Fuel

Aqua Sierra Controls, Inc. 574.41 574.41 IT Services for Computer Protection

Bear Valley Snowmobile Inc. -213.24 -213.24 Adjustment

California Water Environment Association 89.00 89.00 Membership

Ebbetts Pass Lumber Co. Inc. 25.39 25.39 Field Supplies

Guy West 990.00 990.00 Storage Fee for District Vehicles

Description

Description

 Page 1 of 2



 3:28 PM
 06/18/20

 BVWD
 A/P Aging Summary

 As of May 31, 2020

Accounts Payable May 2020 Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL Description

Hach 95.37 95.37 Labrotory Supplies

ICMA Retirement Corporation 103.27 103.27 Administration Fee for Retirement Account Qtrly

Lake Alpine Water -0.04 -0.04 Adjustment

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 8,417.00 5,568.00 13,985.00 NPDES Permit - Antidegradation, Salinity, ROWD

Terry West 30.00 30.00 Fee to Drive Guy West to Truck Dealership 

Vantagepoint Transfer Agents 0.01 0.01 Adjustment
TOTAL 8,417.00 8,578.62 -213.27 16,782.35

 Page 2 of 2



 1:01 PM
 06/18/20

 BVWD

 A/R Aging Summary
 As of June 18, 2020

Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

LA023 28.91 289.05 28.91 346.87

TM020 28.91 289.05 46.02 363.98

BV335 28.91 289.05 54.24 372.20

SM309 377.95 377.95

TM005 28.91 354.24 383.15

BV179 289.05 196.94 485.99

CM180 316.99 565.39 882.38

BV083 28.91 289.05 723.34 1,041.30

BV137 209.79 289.05 665.38 1,164.22

CS006 28.91 289.05 914.40 1,232.36

BV373 28.91 289.05 914.40 1,232.36

CS116 28.91 289.05 941.51 1,259.47

CS036 28.91 289.05 991.22 1,309.18

TOTAL (281.05)              1,072.14     194.97          24,065.79      (51,906.99)       (26,855.14)       

TOTAL CREDITS (281.05)              (282.06)       (1,193.77)      (588.05)          (59,537.81)       (61,882.74)       

TOTAL DEBITS -                     1,354.20     1,388.74       24,653.84      7,630.82          35,027.60        

TOTAL (281.05)              1,072.14     194.97          24,065.79      (51,906.99)       (26,855.14)       

SM309 415.06 415.06

BV345 27.11 271.11 267.87 566.09

CS001 27.11 271.11 292.47 590.69

BV335 27.11 271.11 298.22 596.44

BV137 27.11 271.11 301.23 599.45

BV034 27.11 271.11 325.33 623.55

TM018 54.22 271.11 298.22 623.55

BV179 27.11 271.11 336.43 634.65

TM020 27.11 271.11 352.44 650.66

BV082 271.11 438.33 709.44

BV338 271.11 596.44 867.55

BV037 27.11 271.11 650.66 948.88

CS116 27.11 271.11 1,003.99 1,302.21

CS057 27.11 271.11 1,031.41 1,329.63

BV373 27.11 271.11 1,114.93 1,413.15

TM009 27.11 271.11 1,158.20 1,456.42

CS105 27.11 271.11 1,185.08 1,483.30

CS006 27.11 271.11 1,219.88 1,518.10

TOTAL 704.85        (2,046.76)      31,446.25      (47,268.08)       (17,143.71)       

TOTAL CREDITS (271.11)       (3,871.37)      -                 (59,899.84)       (64,042.32)       

TOTAL DEBITS 975.96        1,824.64       31,446.25      12,631.76        46,898.61        

TOTAL 704.85        (2,046.73)      31,446.25      (47,268.08)       (17,143.71)       

BVWD

A/R Aging Summary
As Of June 18, 2019

 Page 8 of 8








	Agenda Item # 1 - Meeting Minutes
	Minutes_March_15_2020_Draft - jg edits - USE THIS
	GM REPORT BOD ADDENDUM MAR 2020 - USE THIS

	Agenda Item # 2 - LAFCO
	GM REPORT BOD ADDENDUM - LAFCO - June 2020
	LAFCO SUPPORTING DOCS
	LAFCO Representation White Paper 

	Agenda Item # 3 - Election & Appointment of Officers
	GM REPORT BOD ADDENDUM - Officers of the Board - June 2020
	BVWD Approved Revised Bylaws - July 22, 2019

	Agenda Item # 4 - FY 20-21 Preliminary Budget Proposal
	GM AGENDA ITEM - FY 2020-21 Prelim Budget -JUNE 2020
	BVWD FY 20 - 21 - Prelim Budget +3 Year Projection
	FY 20-21 - 5 Year+ Cap Ex Budget
	Sewer Service Rate Increase - Notice Date November 15 - Effective Date January 1, 2020
	bvwd_let_prop_npdes_renewal_20200318
	Task 1. Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan
	Task 2. Antidegradation Analysis
	Task 3. Project Facilitation and Management
	Task 4. As-Needed Permitting Services
	Task 5. Contingency
	Summary/Schedule
	Table 3 2020 Rate.pdf
	Description
	Junior Level position
	Fully Qualified Professional Position
	First Level Supervisor or first complete Level of Specialization
	Highly Specialized Technical Professional or Supervisor of groups of professionals
	Senior Level Consultant or Management
	Senior Level Management under review by Vice President or higher


	Vanguard System

	Agenda Item # 5 - Manager's Report
	GM REPORT BOD ADDENDUM JUN 2020
	MANAGER'S REPORT - 1
	bvwd_rowd_cover_letter_20200608 - Final
	BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT - REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE - FINAL
	Cover Page - TOC
	AntiDeg Cover Page
	bvwd_antidegradation_analysis_20200611 - Final
	1.0 Introduction & Purpose
	2.0 Resolution No. 68-16 and 40 CFR Section 131.12
	3.0 Proposed Amendments
	4.0 Effluent Discharge Impacts on Bloods Creek
	5.0 Antidegradation Analysis
	6.0 Summary and Conclusion

	Salinity Eval Cover Page
	bvwd_salinity_eval_20200608 - FINAL
	1.0 Introduction, Purpose, & Scope
	2.0 Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan
	3.0 Effluent Limitations and Applicable Water Quality Objectives
	4.0  CV-SALTS
	5.0 Salinity Evaluation and Minimization Plan Effectiveness
	6.0 Conclusion

	Form 1 Cover
	Form 1 - Pages 1 - 3
	Form 1 - Sig Page
	Form 200 Cover
	Form 200 - Pages 1 - 3
	Form 200 - Sig Page
	Supplement to Form 200
	Form 2A Cover
	Form 2A Pages 1-21
	Form 2A - Sig Page
	Form 2A Pages 33-50
	Form 2S Cover
	Form 2S - Pages 1 - 5
	Form 2S - Sig Page 1
	Form 2S - Pages 6 - 7
	Form 2S - Sig Page 2
	Form 2S - Pages 9 - END
	Form 2S - Supplement - Section 1.15 Sludge Accumulation Narrative
	Supplement to Form 2S

	Maps & Schematic Cover
	TOPOGRAPHIC MAP
	PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAM - 2020

	MANAGER'S REPORT - 3
	MANAGER'S REPORT - 4

	Agenda Item # 6 - Financials
	Profit  Loss Budget Previous Year Comparison May 2020 vs  May 2019
	Balance Sheet May 2020 Previous Year Comparison May 2019
	Accounts Payables March 2020
	Accounts Payable April 2020
	Accounts Payables May 2020
	Accounts Receivable as of 6-18-2020
	Credit Card Statements




